


A @ O o= S'Today, our sixty three year heritage has
stamped o significant footprint In the- Kenyen' market, with a
‘branch presence in all the major fowns throughout Kenya
-supported by o large agency force,

‘We pioneered the inkoduction of Individveal and Group Life

products withoui the HIV/AIDS exclusion and were the first. .
Company to offer life insurance without the necessﬂy of a medicc ;

fest, which underpins Pan Africa Life's cxnh-dnscnmmatory poil

- Pan Africa Life remains the only life insurer in Kenyu wﬂh an: enﬂre-:

portfolio of individuat life business that pays afl claims, irespective
of the cause of death, where death falls outside the prescribed
‘waiting period.

‘We have o solid capital base, drawing experience and technical
experfise from our shrategic portnership with Sanlam Llid, the
second largest financial Services Group in Afiica. The company
<lso has over 644,000 lives covered, market share of over 21% of
the Life business in Kenya, sfaff complement of 105 permanent
employees and 500 Agency staff,

We pride ourselves in being the first company to actively
market and distribute unit-linked life assurance products in the
Kenyan market. True fo tradifion, we confinve to show fresh
thinking, as is evident with the launch of new life insurance
products such as the Flexi range of products (FlexiSaver,
FlexiEducator and FlexiAnnuity).

O U r V | S I O n 7o be the provider of choice in

insurance and the craation of wealth in Kenya and the Region.

O U r M ISS l O n We create and secure wealth

for the changing needs of our customers other stokeholders.
We achieve this through cqnjmuous pr vigi

Innovative and uﬁordqble ciieni solutions that i improve their
guality of life;

Supetlor refurns o our investors that ensure growth from one
generation 1o the next;

A conducive work envirenment that promotes creativity, seif
expression and perscnaol development;

Support and involvement in community activities that
enhance “a sense for life”
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Branch

Eldoret

Embu

Kisii

Kisumw

Machokos

Mery

Mombasa

MNairobi City Centre

MNeairebi Mega

Head Cffice

Pan Africa life Assurance Limiled

Pan Africa Life House, Kemyotta Avenue
PO Box 10493, 00100 Nairobi
Telephone:

Q7272 2065900/1
0733 418807
SMS heloline number: 0720 632000

Details
Nakury
KVDA Plaza, Oloo/Uialit Sirzet
FO Box 596, 30100
Tel: 053 2061447
eldoret@pancfrica.com )
MNaivasha
Barclays Bank Building, Kenyatta Highweny
PO Box 1804, 50100 Embu
Tel: 068 30789
embu@par-airice.com
Ny

Shabana Building

PO. Box 288, 40200 Kisii
Tel: 058 30948
kisii@pan-frica.com

' Thika
AHrmran Plaza,

Ogirga Cdingn Road

FO. Box 1884, 40100 Kisumu
icl: 057 2020780
kisumu@gan-afica.com Vi Office:
Red Cross Building

PO. Box 1852, 90100
Tal: Q44 21484
machakos@panafrica.com

Wastlands

Meru Myalimu Plaza, Mol Avenue
PO, Box 1329, S0200 Meru

Tel: 064 30658 Myahurury
mer@pan-africa. com :
155 Tower, Mkurumah Road

PO Bax Q03835, 80100 Mombasa
Tel: 041 2223316/2315862

membasa@pan-africa.com

Pan Alrica House, Kenyatta Avenue
PO, Box 4404100100
Tl 020-2247600

palaleitycenre@pan-afica.com

Uniafric House, Koinange Street
P.C. Box 44047, 0100 Nairchi
Tel: 020 2210680/674

" mega@pandafica.com

Q20-2247600/2279367 /2781000,/2225050

Gidde Plaza, Naisobi/Eldoret | lighwery
PO, Box 15163, 20100 Nakuru

Tel: 051 2215858
nckuru@pan-alrica.com

Rosewood Building, Moi Read
P.O. Box 205%, 20117 Naivashe
Tel 020 2340679

naivashe@parralrica.com

Gatemu Building
PO Box 618, 10100 Nye
Tel: 061 2030204

nyeri@panafrica.com

Thike Arcade, Kenyatta Highway
P.O. Box 1144, 01000 Thike
Tel: 067 31408/22123

thika@nan africa.com

Poter House
Voi - Mombasa Highway
Tel: 0729 211175

Scheol Lane, Whitefieldplace, 2nd Flaor
PO Box 44047, 00100 Naircbi
Tel: 02G 23496778 /44403364

westlends@parraltica.com

Mbaria House
FO. Box 2241, 20300
Mhyahurury
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Tom Gitogo
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Jomes Muirur
Joseph VWamwea
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Ermma Wachira

Senior Managers
Luke Magambo
Martin Nzoma
linde Were
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Pius Kitelo

tuey Munjuga
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Unit Managers
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Margaret Nyambura

Shifrine Simwa
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Nelson Kaboy
Rita VWaweru
Samual Kuyoh
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Samuel Mbaabu
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James Dome
Martin Cmido
Sarah Maweu
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Sales Managers
Joseph Akstch
Purity Makena
Edhwin Ahenda.
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Peter Mbugua
Anderson Riungu
Kennedy Kiema
Terry Amina
George Runyora
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John Mbindyo
Jenniter Tsimbiri
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General Manager - Finance & Administration
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General Manager - ICT and Operations
General Manager - Salas and Marketing

‘Human Resources Managar

Compuny Secrefary /Chief legal Officer

Finance

Corporate Business
Cperations

Marketing - Western Region
Muarkefing - Eastern Region
Finance '
Public Relations

Business Development
Regional Administration

Cerporate Business

Customer Service Back Office
Custemer Service Front Qffice
Finance

Actuaria

Information Systems Technology
Premium Adminisiration
Premium Administration

Spacial Projects -

Quality Complionce

Mew Business

Information Systems Technology
Finance

Training Manager

Eldoret
Embu

Kisli

Kisumu
Machakos
Meru
Mombasa
Nekuru
MNyeri

Thika
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Wesllands
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MNyahurury
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Notes to the Financial Statements Continvea
For The Year Ended 31 December 2008

40, RISK MAMAGEMENT {Continued)

(x)

Insurance risk- [Continued)
Claims risk [Continued)
The tohles below pravide an analysis of the Group’s exposure 1o the value of berefits insured in respact of norparticipating

Iife business as well as the annuity payable per palicy in respect of nonparticipoting -annuities:

Yalue of benefits insured: non-participating life business

Number of lives Before reinsurance ! Afier reinsurance ]

| 2008 J 2007 éOOB J 2007 ‘ 2008 2007 J

6,053,744 ‘ 3,602,308

|

J

} Kshs ‘D00 J } 4’— .} } r

| 0 - 500 J 280,044 / 303, 368 | 183,033 ( § 53,865 J 179,209 } 150,650

( 500 - 1000 } 50,603 ( 7,360 618,207 | 583,696 J 500,177 ( 566,673

[ 1 000 - 5000 ( 80,664 r 41,779 } 1,687,129 | 1,079,156 / 1,057,726 ( 76564 |
[ 156 | | 3,860,953 | 2,297,477 |

‘ 5000 - 8000 ( 402

>8000 [ 47 9086433 | 6021862 / 5,891,032 (390417
12 200 | 354,910 17,628,546 546 11,440, saﬁ 11,589,097 ( 7,595,535

Nor-participating annuity pcyqbie per annum por life insyred

Number oF lives Before reinsurance [ APrer reinsurance

i 4 2008 | 2007 [ 2008 2007 008 | 2007

|

| kehe00D | |

\ 0-20 0 0| S0 ( 0 j 0 J 0!

J 20 - 40 | o | o | 0 | 0 r 0 J ol

| 40 - 60 | T 0 / 52,644 o 52,644 } 0|

| 60 - 80 ‘ 4 } 0 | 274198 | 0 [ 274,128 | 0|

| e | o 0 | o0 J 0 J 83,064 ( 0|
>100 J 50 { 0 | 21,400,140 0 | 21,400} > | 0|

| 56| o | 21809876 | o2

]809976 [ 0 [

Capital adequacy risk
Refer to the capital management section on page 40 for details on the management of the Group’s capital base.

All subsidiaries of Pan Alrica Insurance Holdings limited were adequately capiialised, with CAR covered by the excess of

assets over liahilitiss.



Notes to the Financial Statements Continved
For The Year Ended 31 December 2008

40, RISK MANAGEMENT [Continysd)
[}

Insyrance risk (Continued)
Claims risk {Continued]

The table helow summardses the effect on the valuation of other nonpadticipating life business, for pessible changss n
mortdlity and morbidity, lopse, expense and investment raturn assumptions.

Assumption changes

Base valye Investment  Expenses Expense Lopse & Morrcliﬁ
refurns +10% inflation Surrender  Morbidity
-1% +1%  rates +10% +10%

KShs. ‘000 KShs, ‘000 KShs. *D00  KShs. ‘000  KShs. ‘000 KShs. “000
Year ended 31 December 2008
Non-participating life business:

Individual business 186,688 186,688 184,688 184,688 186,688 186,688

Employee benefits business 759,590 759990 759,990 759,990 750,990 759,990
Total policy fiability 946,678 946,678 946,678 946,678 946,678 946,678

Year ended 31 December 2007
Mor-participating life business
individual business 597 829 507 829 597 829 597 829 507 829 597 829

Employee berefits business

Total policy liability 597829 597829 597829 597 829 597829 597 829

The chove sensitivities are afler taking inte account the retating of premiums but before the imipact of reinsurance. The impact

- of reinsurance is not material for the disclosed sensitivities.

Concentration risk

The Group writes o diverse mix ok business, and continually moniters this-risk-and the opportunities for mitigating actions
through refnsurance. The Group's life insutance businessas are focused on diffstent market segments, resulting in a rmix of
individual ond institutional clients, as well.as.eniry-level, middie market and high nef worth clients,

oy ety o 1 B
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Notes to the Financial Statements conrinved
For The Year Ended 31 December 2008

RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

_Insurance risk {Continued)

Quarierly full actuarial valuations and the Group's regular profit reporfing process assist in the fimely identification of
experience variances. The following policies and practices are vsed by the Group as part of s underwriting strategy 1o

mitigate underwriting risk:

Policies and practices: underwriting strategy
"i) " Al longrterm insurance product additions and alierations are required fo pass trough the approval framework that |

| forms part of the life Insurance business’ governance process. The statutary actuaries approve the policy condifions

| and premium rates of new and revised products;

ii} Spemhc testing for HIV /Aids is carried out in all cases where the applications for risk cover exceed q set limit, Product |
pncmg and reserving policies also include specific allowance for the risk of HIV/ Aids;

iii) Appllcahons for risk cover are reviewed by experisnced underwriters and evaluated against established standards. |

Retention limits are applied to limit the exposure per individual like;

iv) | Appropricte income replacement levels apply to disability thsurance; ' .
v} _The experience of reinsurers is used where necessary for the rating of subsiandard risks; .
vi} | The risk premivms for Group risk business and some of the inforce individual risk business can be adjusted within 12
months should clafms experience deteriorate fo the extent that such an adjustment is considered necessary.

vii)  Risk profits are determined on o regular casis; and
vilil | Regular investigations inte mortality and morkidity experience are conducted to ensure that corractive action, for

example rerating of premiums, is taken whete necessory. !

Persistancy risk

Distribution models are used by the Group io identify high-risk clients. Client relationship management programmes are aimed
at managing client expectations and relationships to reduce lapse, surender and paidup rates. The design of insurance
products exclides material lapse, surrender and paidup value guaraniees, subject to regulatory consiraints, 10 limit fnancial
loss at surrender. Parsistency experience is monitored to ensure that nagative experience is timeously identified cnd corrective
action taken. The Group's reserving policy is besed on the sialutory reguired Net Premivm Method which ensures that
adequate provision is made for lapses, surrenders and paidup policies.

Expense risk

Expenses are managed thiough the Group's budgeting process and continuous monitoring of actual expenses versus budgeted
is canducted and reported on.

Claims risk

The risk that Pan Africa Insurance Holdings Limited may pay kaudulent claims [claims risk) is mitigated by employing highly
trained client service staff o ensure that fraudulent claims are identified and investigated theroughly. The legitimaey of claims
is verified by internal, financial and operating controls that are designed 1o contain and monitor cloims risks. The Sanlam
forensic investigation team also advises on improvements to infernal contral systems.



Notes to the Financial Statements continuved
For The Year Ended 3i December 2008

41, RISK MANAGEMENT [Continued)

w] Liquidity risk [Continued)
Liquidity risk — policyholder solufions {Confinued)
Maturify profile {Confinued)

Year ended 31 December 2007

1 Year 1-5 Years 5 Years Open ended Total
1. KShs." 000 KShs.'000 KShs,’000 KShs."000 KShs."000
: ' ~ Insurance confrocts 161,601 1,100,405 1,659 708 .315,21 0 3,230,924
: Imvagtment coniracts - - - 293,372 - 293,372
%_i Total policy liabilities 161,601 1,100,405 1,659,708 08,582 3,530,296
i | Properfies - - . 224 000 2724 000
. j Equities and similar sscurities - - - 837,288 837,288
' Public sector stocks and loans 270,837 685,627 743,041 - | 1,699, 505
.‘ Commercial paper and
corporate bonds 41,069 : . - 41,069
Moartgages and policy loans Q.632 45975 44 870 204,011 404 489
. Cash, deposits and similar
securities 931,961 : : : 931,961
!! . longterm reinsurance assels 57737 - - - 57,737
r Nei working capifal C [685,353) - _ - - [665,753)
Total policyhoiderﬁsaefs 645,883 731,603 787,911 _ 1,365,299 3,530,296

x]  Insurance risk

Insurance risk ariscs from the writing of other non-participating life business, as these products are valued prospectively and
thercfore expose the lengrerm required capital to risk if actual experience differs from that which is assumed. The Group is
however also exposed o persistency risk in respect of other policyholder solutions and insurance risk in respect of universal
life solutions.

i : Underwriting risk
The Group mcmdges underwriting risk through;

& s product development process and undenwriting policy fo prevent antiselection and ensure appropricte premiom rates
{loadings) for substandard risks;

* Adequate reinsurance ariangements io limit exposure per individual and manage ¢oncentration of risks;

* Claims hondling pelicy; and

* Adequate pricing and reserving.

- I o
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RISK MANAGEMENT {Continued)
Moximum exposure fo credit risk

The Jife insurance businesses’ maximum exposure o
credit risk is equivalent o the amounts recognised in
the balance sheet, as there are no findncial guarantees
provided 1o parfies outside the Group, nor are there
any loan commitments provided that are irrevocckle
over the life of the facility inor revocable only in adverse
circumstances).

The credit qudlity of cach class of financial asset that
is neither past due nor impaired, has been asssssed os
aoceptable within the parameters used to measure and
monitar credit risk, as described above. There are no
assels that would heve been past due or imgaired, had
the tetms not been ranegotialed,

Notes to the Financial Staiements Continued
For The Year Ended 31 December 2008

Liquidity risk
liguidisy risk ~ policyholder seiutions

Siople, reversionary bonus and participating annuity

“business (smoothed-bonus business)

These policyholder solutions de not expose the Group to
significant Tiquidity risks. Expacted cosh flows are taken
inte account in defermining the investment guidelines ond
asset spread of the porffolios.  Limits are also placed on
the expasure 1o iltiquid investments.

Cugrantes p?cns
Other policyhclder business

Policyholder porfiolios supporting linked and market-
related business, parficipating cnnuities and other non-
participating fife business are invested in appropriaie
assafs, laking inte account expected cash aufflows.

The fellowing iable summarises the averall maturity profile of the policyholder business:

Year ended 31 December 2008:

1 Yeor 1-5 Years =5 Yeors Open ended Total
KShs."00C KShs."000 KShs.'GO0 KShs. /000 KShs 000
Insurance contracls 337,297 1,423,143 1,570,656 353,471 3,693,567
Investment contracts o 352405 352,405
Total policy liabilities 337,297 1,423,143 . 1,579,656 705,876 4,045,972
Propetties 374,500 374,500
Equities and similar securities - - _ - 1010170 1,010,170
Public secior stocks and leans 400,032 855,334 1,223 881 2,510,247
Commercia! paper and .
corparate bonds 201,848 701,868
Morgages and policy loans 19,255 71,347 177506 263,108
-Cash, deposits and
similar securities F03,664 Q03,664
langterm reinswance assets 30,630 - ' - 30,6230
Net working capited {1,262,215) _11L,262,2135)
Total policyholder assets 21,366 1,168,549 1,401,387 1,384,670 4,045,972
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RISK MANAGEMENT {Confinued)
Market risk - sensitivities

Sensitivities fthot illusirate the effect of changes in
investment refum assumptions on the value of inforce
WIFL business are disclosed in the embedded value
report. The change in VIF relative fo the base value is
an indication ot how the present value of future aftertax
erofits {including the allowance for the cost of capital at
risk) are impacted based on these assumgfions.

It investment ratun fand inflotion} assumptions were
o decrease by 1%, coupled with o 1% decrease
in risk discount rates, and with bonus rates chargirg
commensurately, tha impact on the presant value of future
dflertax profits would be o decrease of KShs. 21.4
million 2007 : decrease of KShe, 25.3 million).

Credif risk ~ policyholder sclutions & capital

Pan Affica Insurance Holdings limited recognises that
o sound credit risk peolicy is essential to minimise the
effect on tha Group as a resull of loss due o a major
comarate failue and the possible systemic risk such o
failure could lead to. The Pan Africa Insurance Holdings
Limited Investmen! Risk Policy and Strategy has been
established for this purpose. Credit risk occurs due to
trading, invesiment, structured transactions and lending
ucivifies. These activities in the Croup are conducied
mastly by Sanlam Investment Management (SIM in
terms of the invastment guidelines granted to them by the
lnvestment Commitize. The Board of SIM has delegated
responsibility for credit risk manogement to the Central
Credit Commities.

The governance shuctures ensure that an dppropriale
credit culture ond environment is mainigined, such
that no transoctions are concluded outside aregs of
competence, nor withoul following normal procedures.
This eradit cultyre is the product of a formal credit risk
strategy and credir risk policy.

The credit sisk strategy stipulates the parometers for
approval of credit applications, such as. econemic
secior; risk concen!rc:ﬁoni MQXHTUm exposure per
abiiger, group, and indusiry; geographical location:
product type; cumency; malurity, anticipated profitability
or excass spread; economic caplkal fimits; and eyclied!

aspects of the economy.

IT1E

v)
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued
for The Year Ended 31 December 2008

Al [ociliies are reviewed on o least an ermual basis by
the appropriate approval authority, Where possible, Pan
Alrica Insurance Holdings Limited interest is protected
by obtaining acceptable security. Covenants ate alse
stipulated in the loan agreements, specifying acfions that
are agreed fo.

I addition to the chove measwies, the portfolios cie also
managed in terms of the invesiment guidelines of the {ife
insurance operations, which place limits in terms of the
lowest credit quality thai may be included in a porifolio,
the average credit quality of instrumanis in o porlfclio as

well as imits on concentration risk.

The Group is also exposed lo cedit sisk in respect of its
working copital assefs. The following aore some of the

main credit risk management actions:

*  Unacceptoble concentrotions of credit risk to groups
of counterparties, business sectors and product types
are avelded by dealing with a variety of mojor banks
and spreading debiors and feans among a number of
majer indusiries, customers and gecgraphic areas

¢ longrterm insurance business debtors are secured by
the underlying value of the unpaid policy benefits in
terms of the policy cantract.

¢ Exposure 1o external financial insfitutions cencerning
daposiis and similar iransactions is menilored against

appraved limits.
Reinsurance risk

FPan Africa Insurance Holdings limtted makes use of
reinsurancg 1o;

¢ Agcess underwrifing expertise;
*  Access produet opportunities;

¢ Enable it o underwiite risks greater than its own risk
appelite; and

*  Frotect its mortality/risk book against catastraphes.

The use of reinsurance exposes the Group 1o credit
risk. The counterparty risks of reinsurers are managed
under the Group’s cradit risk framewark.  The Group's
reinsurance arrangsments inclyde propartionale, excess
ond catasirophe coverage. All risk exposuras in excess
of specified monetary limits are reinsured, Cafastrophe
insurance is in place for singleevent disasters. Credit
risk in respect of reinsurance is managed by placing the
Group's reinsuranee only with subsidiaries of companies
that have high infermational or similar credit ratings.
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Notes o the Financial Stafements consinuea
For The Year Ended 31 ODecermber 2008

RISK MANAGEMENT {Continued)
Fquily & intcrest rate risk

The capital is invested in squitiss and Interestbearing nstumants that are valued of foir value and are therefore susceplidle to
market fluctuations. Investments in listed subsidiaries are reflected af net asset value based on the market value of the underlying
invesiments.

Currency risk
The expasure of the capital to currency risk is for the purpose of seeking international diversification of investments.
Property Tisk

The capital particlic has limiled exposure fo investment properties and nccordingly the refoted property risk. Diversification in
property type, geogrophical location and tenant exposurs are all used o reduce the risk exposure,

Credit risk_

The amount that best represents the company’s maximum exposure to eradit risk at 31 Dacember 2008 s made up as follows:

2008 2007

KShs./000 KShs.'C00

Financial lnstruments : 3,871,84) 3,555,596

Curtent income tox recoverable | 23,292 23,293

Reossurelrs' share of technical provisions and reserves 30,630 50,900
Receivables arising out of reassurance amrangesments 6,837

Receivables arising out of ditect insuiance arrangements 220,072 113,607

Shott term deposits with financlal ingtiutions 830,417 1,054,350

Cash and cash equivalents 73,247 62,670

5,049,499 4,867,253

No'collateral s held for any of the above assets. All frade receivables that are neither pasi due or impaired are within their
approved credit limits, and no receivables have had their terms renegatiated.

All receivables arising out of direct insurance arangement are neither past due nor impaired.

Price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluciuate because of
changes in market prices {other than those arising fromt interest rate risk or currency risk], whether those changes are

caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer. or faciors affecting oll similar financial
instrurnents traded in the market.

The Group’s equity price fisk exposure relates fo finoncial assets whose values will Huctuate as a result of changes in market
prices, principally imesiment securifies not held for the account of unitlinked businass.

The Group’s price sk policy requires if tlo manage such risks by setting ond monitaridg objectives and constraints
on investmenis, diversification plans, limits on investmenis in each secior and market and careful and planned use of

financial instruments.

The Group has ro significant concendration of prics risk.
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RISK MANAGEMENT {Confinved}
Market risk ~ policyhalder salulions [Caontinued)

Equity risk is bome by policvholders to the sxtent that
the afferfox and aftercost investment refurn is declared
as bonuses. The capifal portfolio is however expased
to some equity risk as an under performance in equity
markets may result in on under funded posiion that
will require financial support by the capital porifolio.
The Group manages this risk through an appropriate
invesiment policy. Acluariol commitiee overseas the
investiment  policy. for the various  smoothed-bonus
pattfalias. The qim is fo find the optimum bolance between
high investment returas (o be abls to declare competitive
bonus rares) and stable invesiment retums given the need
fo mest guaranteed benefits and fo support the granfing
of stable honus rates. The requirements for the Investmant
management of each porffolio are set out in invastment
guidelines, which cover, inter alig, the following:

* Llimiations on expasure fo volatile assels;

* The benchmarks tor the performance measurement
of each asset cluss and limits on deviations from
these benchmarks;

o it risk limits;

» limiis on osset concemration — with regard fo
shiategic investments, the exposure of pelicyholders’
porttolios to these investments is based on porficlio
invastment considerations and  restricted  with

reference to o specific counter's weight in the

henchmark portfolio;

= limits on exposure lo some porlicular types . of
assets, such as unlisied equities, property und
hedge tueds; and

* Reguigtory constraints.

Feedback on the investment policy and ifs implementation
and the pertormance of the smoothed-bonus portfolios is
provided quarterly to the Pan Africa Insurance Haldings
Limited Board.

Inferest rate risk
linked and marketrelated business

The life busingss is exposed fo interest rate risk to the
extent thot guaranteed minimum bsnefiis ot death or
maturity are provided. Refer fo equity risk in note 40 {s)
below tor the management of market risk in respect of

these policies.

i.

e

i

AR

ql

Notes to the Financial Statements continved
For The Year Ended 31 December 2008

Sable, reversionary borus ond posicipating annuily
business {smoothed-barus business).

The life business is exposed 1o interest rote risk to the
extent thal choanges in interest tates resull in negative
siabilisafion reserves that cannot be eliminated through
the smocthed-bonus management oction philosephy. In
these circurmstances the life insurance businesses will

have to providé support 1o the policyholders’ poitfolios.
Guarantee plans

Qur Flexisaver and FlexiEducator policies provide tor
guaranieed maturity amounts. The life insurance business
is therefore exposed to interest rale risk, i the ossets
backing these liabilities do not provide o comparable
vigld ic the guarantesd value.

Infersst rate risk is managed by matching the liokilities
with assets that have similar investment return profiles as
the ligbililies.

Currency risk

The maijority of currency exposure within the policyholder
portfolios results from offshore assets held in respact
eflinked ond smoothed benys business. Offshore expasure
within these porfotios 13 desirable from o diversification
perspective. To miligate expasure 1o foreign currency
denominated investments, the investmant committee meets
on a qucr?erfy basts fo consider movements in currency
fluctuations and take clternate decisions to either realize
the profits or minimise loss.

Property risk

The mojority of the invesiment properties ore held in respeci
of marketrelated and nen-porticipating  policyhalder
Refer
to Equity Risk above for a description on how the risks

business as well o5 smoothedbonus business.

associated with these types of business are managed.
Market risk
Capital

Compighensive measures and limits are in ploce fo
control the exposure of the life insurance businesses’
capital to market risk. Continuous monitoring tokes place
o ensure that oppropricte assels are held in suppart
of the capitol and investment retumn targets. limits are
applied in respact of the exposure fo asset classes and

individual counters.
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RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued]

* The Group's shalegic direction and success iy
discussed und evoluated at on annual strategic
session of the Pan Africo Insurance Holdings Limited
Board as well as ai the scheduled Board meetings
during the year:

* As part of the annual budgeting process, the Groug
businesses present their strategic plans and budgets
to the Pan Africa Insurance Heldings Limited Executive
Commiiee, whe ensures hatthe bysinesses” strotegiss
are aligned with the overall Group strafegy; and

» The Pan Afiic Insurance Haldings limifed Executive
Commifiee, which includes the chiel execulive of
the various Group businesses, meets on a ragular
basis to discuss, amang ofhers, the achievement of
the businesses’ and Group's strategiss. Any strategic
issues are identified at these meefings and cormrective

actions are immediately Implemented.
Risk management - life insurance

The Group’s life insurance business is expased to
financial sisk through the design of some pelicyholder
solutions, and in raspect of the value of the businesses’
capital. MNer-participating policyholder solutions and
those that provide invesiment guorontess, such os
marketralated business, stoble and reversionary bonus
businass and non-parficipating annuify business, expase
the life insurance businesses 1o financial risk. Other
business, such as linked policies fwhere the value of
policy benefits is directly linked to the fair value of the
supporting assets}) does not expose the life insurance
business to financial risk as this risk is assumed by the
policytiolder. The life insurance business’ capital is

invested n financial instuments and properties, which

p

|

Notes io the Financial Stafements continued
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also exposes the businesses fo financial risk, In the’

form of market, property, credit and liquidity risk. The
management of these risks is described below.

Market risk — policyholder solutions
Bquity risk
linked and marketrelated business

linked and marketralated business relates to contracts
where there is a direct relofionship between the refwms
eamed on the underying porffalio and the refurns

credifed fo the contract. Policyholders carry the full market
risk in respect of linked businass. Marketrelated policies
however, provide for guaranteed minimum bensfits at
death ar mahity, and therefore axpose the life insurance
business to market risk.

The risk relating to guarantesd minimum bansfits is
mandaged by appropriate investment policies, determined
by the Aciunrial committee, and by adjusting the level
of guarantess for new policies to prevailing market
conditions. These imvesiment palicies are then reflected in
the invesiment guidelines for the policyholder portfolios.
Pan Africo Inswronce Heldings Limited does not include
o specific provision for investment guarantess s the
guorantees are afready providad for in the pricing of the
products i.e. the premium pavable already includes
provision for guarantees.

Swble, reversionary bonus and participating annuity
business [smocthed-bonus busingss).

These policies provide for the poyment of an ahertax
and aftercost invastment return to the policyholder, in
the form of bonuses. The use of bonuses is o mechanism
i smocth returns 1o policyholders in order fo reduce the
effects of wvolatile investment pedformance, and bonus
rafes are determined in line with the product design,
affordability
and the approved bonus philesophy. Any returns not

policyhalder  reasonable  expectations,

yet distributed are refained in o bonus stabilisation
reserve, for future distribution fo policyholders. 1n the
event of adverse investment perFormonce, this reserve
may become regative. Megative bonus stabilisation
reserves are alowed for in the valuation of these
liabilifies to the extent that the shortfall is expected 1o be
recovered by declaring lower bonuses in the subsequent
three years. The tunding lovel of portfalios is bolstered
through loans %om shareholders in instances - where
negalive stabilisafion reserves will not be eliminated by
these managsmeni aclions. At year end, oll stuble and
reversionary bonus business porifolios hod @ funding

level in excess of 79%.
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Compliance risk
ftows and regulorions:

The Group considers compliance with applicable laws,
industry regulaiions and codss an inlegral part of deing
business. The Group compliance function faciliiates the
management of compliance through the analysis of
statutory and regulatory requirements, and manftoring

the implementation and execution thereol.
Compliance with lnvestment mandates:

The Investment Commiiles reviews compliance 1o
Investment mandates on o quarterly basis. When
a possible breach is detected, the fund manager is
ieguesied fo confiim whether o breach has token placs,
to explain the reason for the breach and tndicate when
it will be rectified {which is expected to be as soon us
possible). Further action may be token, depending on
lhe type of breach. The detailed resulis of the mandate
monitoing process are discussed with the Fund AManagers
on a monthly bosis.

Fraud risk

The Group recognises that finencial erime and unlawful
conduct arg in conflict wilh the principles of ethiccl
behaviour, as set aut in the Group” code of ethics, and
undermines the organisational integrity of the Group.
The financial crime combating policy fer the Pan Afiica
Insurance Haldings Limited group 1s designed to counter
lhe threat of financial crime and unlawful coaduet, A
zerotolerance  opproach i applied i cpmbating
financial crime and all offendars will ke prosecuted. The
forensic services function at Group level oversees the
prevention, defection and investigation of incidents of
unlowful conduct that are of such o nature that they may
have an impact on the Group.

The heud of euch business unit is responsible for the
implementotion of the policy in his or her respective
business and is accountable to the Group Chisf Executive
and the Boord of Pan Africa Insurance Holdings Limited.
Quarterly repoits are submitted by Group Forensic
Servicas to the Group Audit Committee on the incidence

k)

Nofes to the Financial Statements continyed
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of financial crime end unlowful conduct in the Group
and on meastres taken to prevenl, detecl, investigaie
and deal with such conduct. '

Taxation risk

The risk is addressed through cloar contracting fo ensure
that policy contracts entitie palicyholders o aftertax
raturns, where applicable. The Graug's internal fax
resoutces montior the impact of changes in tax legislation,
participate in discussions with the tax legislotor to
comment an changes in legislation and are involved in
the development of new products. External 1ox advice is
ohtained as required.

Reputational risk

Actions with a potential reputational impact are
escalated tothe appropriate level of senicr management.
The Audit commitee and boord of direclors are
involved as required. Fvents with an industrywide
reputationat impact are addressed through industry

represeniative groups.
Legislation risk

Legislation risk s mitigated by ensuring that the Group has
dedicated persennel that are invalved in and therefore
intermed of relevant developments in legislation. The
Group fokes o proactive approuch in investigating
and formulafing views on all applicable issuss facing
the financial services industry. The risk is also managed
as for as possible through dear contracting. The Group
monitors and influences events fo the axtent possible by

parlicipation in discussions with |egistators, directly and

_through indusiry organisations

Strategic risk

The Group's governance structura and vdrlous moniforing
tools in place ensure that any events that affect the
achievement of the Groups siategy are escalated and
addressed at the sarliest apportunity. The Board has no
tolarance for any breach of guidance.

Group strategy is addressed on a coniinuous basis af
various forums within the Group, the most imporant of
which are:
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RISK MAMNAGEMENT {Continued)
Risk management
Cperational risk

The Group witigates this risk through its culture and
values, o comprehensive syslers of Infernal conlials,
infernal audit, ferensic ond compliance functiens and
other measures such s backup focilifies, contingency
plarning and insurance. The initialion of tronsactions
ond their administration is conducted on the basis of the
sagregation of duties, designed 1o ensure the correctness,
complateness and validity of all transactions.

The management of risks assaciated with human resources

is addressed in the Corporate Governance Reporl.

The following funclionaries ossist in  mitigaling

operafional rsk:
Internal audit

A board-approved internal audit charter governs internal
audit activity within the Croup. A regular riskfocused
review of internal control ond risk monagement systems is
carried out, and has unresiricted accass to the Chairman

-of the Committec and the Pan Africa nsurance Holdings

Board. The authurty, resources, scope of work and
effectiveness of the functions are reviewed regularky.

External qudit

The Gioup's external cuditors are Emst & Young. The
report of the indopendent auditors for the year under
review is in a separate section of this annual repart. The
external auditors provide an independent cssessment
of systems of infernal financial control and express wn
independent opinian on the annual financial statements,
MNoraudit services rendered by the external auditors ace
strictly governed by a Croup policy in this regard.

External consultants

Sardam Risk Managemant Unit performs an annual review
of the Graup’s risk munagement processes. The purpose
of this review is o continuously identify potential areas
for improved risk mancgement in line with developing

internafional best practice.

Noteas to the Financigl Statements contfinued
For The Year Ended 31 December 2008
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Information and technology risk

The "Group Information ond Technology [IT) Risk
Management Palicy” is authorised and ratified by the
Group Executive Commiliee. If stipulates the role of the
fnformation and 1M Risk manager that eosh business is
respensible for appointing. Furthermere, it provides
a framewark of [T risk management, the mathods
et reporting,  assessment and action, uppropriate
documentation and monagement of all riskrelated [T
incidants that have cocuired, fiming of communicafion

and ligisan with other functicns in the Group.

Reliance on and the continuous avallability of 1T systams
and processes are inherent io the nature of the Group's
operalions, An important objective  of the Group
Information and Technology Risk tanagement Policy
is accordingly to ensure that the Group’s [T resources
and platffarms are mainained and develeped in fine
with charges in the Group's businassas environment and
requirements, and that proper backuo processes and
disaster recovery megsures are in place.

Going concern / business confineity risk

The Boord regularly considers and records the facts
and assumptions on which it selies to conclude thal Fan
Africa Group Entities will confinue as a geing concern.
Reflecting on the year under review, the directors
considered o number of focks ond circumsionces ond
ore of the opinion that adequate resources exist io
confinue business in the foreseeable future and that Pan
Alrica Group Entities will remain @ going concern in
the year ahead. The Board’s stutemant 1o this effect is
alsa contained in the statement an the responsibility of
directors in the annual financial siatemens.

legal risk

During the development sloge of any new product
and for materlal transactions entered inio by the
Group, the legal resources of the Group monitor
the drafing of the contract documents to ensure that
rights and cbligations of afl porties are clearly set oul,
The Gioup sesks to minimise vncerainties through
with
legal wdvisers, o understand the nature of risks and

confinuous  consulichion internal and  external

to ensure that transactions are appropriately struciured
and dacumented,
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RISK MANAGEMENT [Confinued)

c) Risk Types

The Group it expo:,cu‘ to the following main dsks:

P
sk type Descripfion ~ limpact

CUperational

Jt

eral Risks i .

Oporchoncl al risk s the: risk that there is @ loss as o result of inadequate or fafled infernal processes, | Al Graup
peaple or systems and external everfs. Operational risk includes: businessas
Information and technology nisk: the sk of oheoliscence of mhastuchure, deficiercy in
integration, luilures/inadequacias in systems/networks and the loss of ascuracy, confidentiality, ‘
availability and infegrity of data.
Going concern/business continuity risk: the risk that inodequate puoaesses people, finoncial contils |

and rescures exist 1o continue business in he foresssable future.
Lega

lential significant

\
|
|
|

I risks the risk that the Group will be exposed o contrasiual abligotians which hove not been
provided for. |
Compliance risk: the risk of not complying with laws and ragulations, ts well as investment | !
| management mandetes. _ \
| Fraud risk: the rigk of financial erime and unlowul conduet occuring within the Group J
| €| Taxation Vaetion risk 15 the risk of financial loss dus to changas in tox legislation that result n the aciual i
© tox on shargholders’ fund earnings being higher than expecicd, with a conespanding reduction in Al IGIUUP \
| retuin en Group Embedded Value; or the aclual policyhalder lox being higher than ot assumed | businosses
\ in the determinafion of premium rates oad guoranieed palicy benelits, 4
Reputational | Reputational risk is the risk that the actions of o business [e.g. the neaiment of clients, employment | Group
- equity and sacial responsibility] haren its reputation and brand. buginoses
\ [ Legislgtion Egislcﬂioﬂ risk is the risk that unanticipated new acts or reguictions will resylt in the nesd to change | All Group \
business practices that may lead o financial loss, | businzsses i
\ " Strategic [ Straicgic risk is the risk thal he Group’s sirategy is inappropriale or that the Group is ungble 10 | All Group ) \
= !mpIPmenI its strafegry. . busmessc:. |
Market Markst risk is the risk thaf the value of a financial instrumoent will fuctuate as o result of changss in ‘ ‘
the market: Market risk includes: Life insurance \

Equity Figk: the risk that fhe valus of  financial insttument will fluclugte o8 @ resull of changes in Copital markets

equity prices. | Shorterm

Interest rate visk: the fidk that the vobe of on unmotched fironcial insrument will fuchiote os o result |

insurances

of changes in interes’ rales and the risk that mismetch losses will be incuned in respecr of o malched

| st liability position fallowing changes in intews! rtes.
Currency risk: the dsk thal the Kenya Shilings value of @ finamcial instument or liability wiil‘
flictuate owing to changes in forsign exchange rales,

Property risk: the risk that the value of invesimant properfies will flucuate as a resulf as o of

. L|re insurance
changes in the envitoment

Cradir fisk arises from the inabilizy or unwillingness of a counterparty to a financial instrument 10 | Life msurance

| discharge its contractual obligations. Credit risk includes: | Capita) markets
Reinsurance risk: cancentrafion fisk vwilh indivicual reinsurers, due fo the nahurg of the reinsurance mquer Shorttem
| and the restricted range of reinsurers that have arcepiable credit rafings. insurance

Liquidity

[nsurance

7

Financial And Eusiness—_Specific Risks

Coapita)

T ;___“__

lite insurance
Capital markels

l!'l'rqu'\d'ﬁy sk iz the dsk relofing 1o the diﬁicu'ﬁyﬁnobﬁw o geeessing/1aizing funds to mee
| commifinents associated with linanciol instruments or palicy confracts.

i adequacy variations in actual fulure experience, worse than thal which has been assumed in the valuation bases.
O I -

Unsurrnee cish includes: _ i
i Underwriting risk: the risk that the actual experience relating 1o marialiyy, disablfity and medrcuT‘ tife insuance
risks will deviate negatively from the expected expurience used in the pricing of solutions and Shortterm

valuation of policy fiabilities. ‘ insuronce
Perslsiancy risk: the risk of firancicl ks due to negafive lapse, surender and paicdup sxperisnce.

Expense risk: the risk of loss due fo uctual expense experience being worse than that assumed in
premium rates and the valuation of d the valuation of policy liabilities.
Concentration risk: the risk of financicl loss due 'o having wiillen large propartions of business ‘

with policyhalders of the same/similar risk profile
| Copiial adequacy fisk ts Ihe risk ol eve are msdficien  gssels 1o provide  far

life insurance

i

L I e
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RISK MANAGEMENT (Conhnuad)

[l Oppeorunity: managing risk on the upside as an
*offensive” function: focusing on actions foken by
management to increase the probability of success
and decreass the probability of fallure,

(i) Hozard: managing risk en the downside os «
"defensive” funcion; focusing on 1he prevention or

mitigation of actions that can generate losses; and

{ili} Uncertainty: managing the uncerfainty associated
with risk, focusing on achieving overall financial
performance that falls within o defined acceptable
range.

Process

Each business has a documented process that links into

the business’s normal menagement process and includes:
*  Siralegic organisational and risk management confext:

o Strategic contexl [defining the business’s strengths,
weaknesses, opportunitias and thieals relative fo

its ervironmment],

o Cnganisational context{undersianding the business's

goals, strategies, capobilities and values},

o Risk manogement conjext [selling of scope and

boundaries),

= Developing risk evalualion criteria, defining o
logical frameweork for risk identification, astablishing
a risk identification process, analysing the risks
identified, evaluating the risks against established
risk criteria, deciding on the oppropriate action
and communication, with the aim of continuous
management and improvement.

Notes to the Financicl Statements Continved
For The Yeqr Ended 31 December 2008

We are always at hand so you can rely on us.

We keep in touch with our stakeholders to forge a common
purpose in the journey of life,
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RISK MANAGEMENT (Confinued]
Group risk policies and guidelines

All risks are monaged in terms of the policies and
guidelines of the Board and its commiffeas. Some of the
main palicies ars:

[l The Group Sirategic Risk Managerment (SRAM];
{ii) Group Risk Escalation Policy {REP);
(i) Group Business Continuity Policy {BCPL;

{iv] Group information and Information Technelegy (I &
T} Risk Management Policy [ITRMPI; and

(vl Group Investment Policy

SRM, REP, BCP and ITRMP policies were developed
by Sanlam Gioup Risk Management and have been
implemenied by all Group businesses. The matunty of
the implementation within the Group does, however,
vary from business to business due ko different cost/
benefit scenarios, complexity of risks and the degrec
of risk Integration. At the guarterly Pan Afiica Insurance
Holdings Limited Board, risk management reports are
tabled that must also indicate the extent of compliance
with the Sanlam Risk Management Policy,

The aim of the Group Escalation Policy is 10 ensure that
key risks and risk events in any business in the Group cre
reported to the appropriate governance level. The Group
Business Continuity Palicy ensures that effective vertical
and horizontal recovery ahililies, consistent with business
pricrities, exist across the Craup, fo deal with disasters
and related contingencies. The Pon Alrica Insurance
Holdings Limited Group Strategic Risk Managemenl is
briefhy summarised below:

Pan Altica Insurance Holdings Llimited Croup Stratagic
Risk Management

Definition

SEM s
ensure that:

o highlevel overarching approach to

il ANl risks which could jecpardise or enhance
achievement of the Group’s stdiegic  goals
are identified;

il Appropricte siructures, - policies, procedures and
practices are in place to manage these risks;

fiii] Sufficient  organisational resources are  applied

T

LEN T

fiv]

v

Notes to the Financial Statements Continved
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to, and corporate culture s fully supportive of the
effective implemeniation of these structures, policies,
procedures and practices;

The organisafion’s risks are indeed being managed in
accordance with the foregoing; and

The impect of sfralegic decisions on the risk-adjusted
relurn on Group Embedded Value is considered by
way of appropricic modelling techniques pricr 1o such
decisions being implemanted.

Objective

The primary objective of SRAM is to optimise the Group’s
risk-adjusted raturn on Group Embedded Yalue.

Philosophy
SkM. is achieved by,

[} Appling o decenfralised philosophy, i that
the individual businesses aie responsible for the
identification of fisks in their business and to apply
appropriate risk management, Only significant risks
are escalated to the Pan Alica Insurance Holdings
limited Groug level, in cocordance with the Group
Risk Escalotion Palicy (mentioned ubove}. This policy
guides the businesses to assess the impact of the
risk {on o scale of insigniﬁcsn‘r is] curosirophic}, hvpe
of risk {on o scals of unlikely to alrendy eccurred/
highly prabablel, and accordingly to determine the
role players to whom the risk should be reporied
tfrom the Risk Officer of the business fo the chairman
of the Audit and Risk Committee)

i} Implementing  maximum  loss  limits, by using
measures such as “value af risk”, longderm solvency
requirements, capital odequacy requiremenis and
sensitivilies on return on embedded volue/value of

new businass: and

(i Clearly defining and documenting the business's
risk appeiile, being the degree of uncertainty that @
business is willing to accept in pursuit of its goals, and
describing it both gqualiiatively and quantifatively.

Risk is inherent in deing business, and includes all
of the uncertain consequences of business activifies
that could prevenl Pan Africa Insurance Holdings
limited {rom achleving ts strategic goals. Pan Afica
Insurance Holdings Limited SRM procass is cimed o
managing three elements of risk:
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Notes to the Financial Statements continved
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A number of other risk moniloting mechanisms are operating within the Group s part of the everall risk management structure.

The mest important of these are illustrated in the following fable.

——
' Capital Management
Reviews and oversees the
management of the Group's
capital buse

OTHER RISK MONITORING MECHAMNISMS

Asset and Liability Match
Delermines appropriate investment policies and
guidelines for policyholder porffolios where
guarcntees are provided

Compliance
Facilitates managament
of compliance through

. analysis of statutory and
i regulatory requirements, and
monitering implementation
and execution thereof

Group Risk Forum
Aids coordination and iransfer of knowledge
between businesses and the Group, and assists
Group Risk Management in identifying risks
requiring escalefion fo the Pan Africa Insurance
Holdings Limited Board

General Manager - Finance
‘ Ensures that sound financial

practices are followed,
odeguate and accurate
. reporting cccurs, and financial
statement risk is minimised

MNon-listed Assets
The Audil Committes reviews
and approves the valuation
of all unlisted assets in the
Group for recommendation
te the Pan Africa Insurance
Holdings Limited Board

Actuarial
Monitors and reports on key risks affecting the
life insurance operations. Defermines capital
requirements of the life insurance operations and

i the patential impact of siotegic decisions thereon,

by using appropriate modelling techniquas

Group legal and Secretarial
Reviews and reports on
corporate governance
practices and struciures.
Reperts on applicable

legal and compliance matters

Sanlam Farensics
Investigates and reports on
fraud and Hiegal behaviour

in businesses

Investmant Committee
Datermines and monitors appropiiate investmeant
sirategies for palicyholder sclutions

IT Risk Management
Manages and reports Group-
wide [T risks

Risk OHicer

Assists business management in their implementation of
the Group risk munagement process, and to monitor the
business” entire risk profile

Internal Audit
Assists the Pan Africa Insurance Heldings Limited Board
and management by monitoring the adequacy and
elfectiveness of risk management in business
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CAPITAL MANAGEMENT {Confinued)

The Group continues to improve and further develap irs
capital management madels and processes n line with
intarnational best practice and the current significant
international  developments surrounding  sehvoney and
capital requirements {for example the Solvency 1l initiative
in the European Unian).

Other Group operations

The performance  measurement of  other

Group

operations is based on the return achieved on the fair
value of the businesses. Risk adjusted return targets
are set for the businesses fo ensure that each business'
return farget takes cagnisance of the inherent risks in the
business. This approach ensures that the management
leams are focused on operational stalegies that will
optimise the refurn on fair value, thereby contributing
1o the Group's main abjective of aptimising raturn on
Group Embedded Value,

Audit Commitee

The Audit Commitize is responsible for reviewing and
overseelng the managemant of the Group's capital
base in terms of the specific strategies appreved by

the Board.

Diséreiionar_y capital

Any capital in excess of requiremenis, and not optimally
utilised, is identified on a confinucus basis. The pursuit
of stuctural growth initiotives has been set as the
preferred application of Group capital, subject to such
initictives yielding the applicable hurdle rate and being
complementary to of in support of Group strategy. Any
discrefianary capital not being eficiently redeployed will
be returned to sharehclders in the most effective form.

471,
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RISK MANAGEMENT
Governance structure

In terms of the Group's overall governance structure, the
meetings of the Pan Africa Insurance Heldings Limited,
Pan Afica life Assurance limited and PA Securities
Limited are combined 1o improve the flow of informatian
and fo increase the efficiency of the Boards. The
agenda of the Board focuses on Group strategy, capital
management, accounting  policies, financial results,
dividend policy, human resource  development and
carporate governance, CMA and NSE requirements.
The Pan Aflica life Assurance Board is responsible Tor
stalutory matters acrass all Pan Africa Insurance Heldings
Limited businesses as well as menitoring operational
efficiency and risk issues throughoul the Group.,

The Group operates within o decentralised business
model In terms of this philosophy, the Pan Ahica
Insurance Heldings Limited Board sets the Graup risk
managernent policies and frameworks white the individual
businesses icke responsibility for all operational and
risk-related matters an o business leval, within the limits
sot by these policies and frameworks. The following
diagram generically depicts the flow of isk managemen
information feom the individual businesses to the Pan
Alrica Insurance Holdings Limired Board.

Pan A_Friéo

insurance Heldings

Limited Board

Responsible for
the Group's risk
managemant
stiotegy and
palicies, as well
as monitoring the
effectivaness and
disclosure therecf,
in accordance with
best proctice

=

Pan Africa Insurance Holdings

Limited Audit, Actuarial and
Risk Committes

Assisls the Pan Alrica Insuronce
Haoldings Limited Board ini
fulfilling its responsibilities

Pan Africa Insurance Holdings Limitad
Group Executive Committee

Resporsible as the Pan Africa Insurance
Haoldings Limiled Board's executive

overseer, o ensure ot the businesses 4—
achieve optimal riskadjusted refurns

Sanlam Group Risk
Management

Develons Group
isk management
oolicies and
guidelines for

UFJPI'DVU] EJ}J

Business Level Risk
Management

Identifies and manages risks
taced by the bosiness

Additional camenittiees that moy be :
established by o business 1o assist their |
Executive Commitiees in certain crecs of |

Business Level Management

i the Pan Alrica
Insurance Holdings |
Commitiees . limited Beard, co- !
—|  ordinctes raporting
i responsibilities
ared Improyas risk
i management across

risk managemant | the Group

T R e
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The elfsctive management of Pan Africa Insurance
Holdings Limited capiial base is an essential component
al meeling the Group's strategic obijective of moximising
shareholder value. The capital velue used by the Group
us the primary performance measurement base is the
Group Embedded Value, as reported an pages 40 to
43. The Group Fmbedded Value is the aggregate of the

following components:

{ii The embedded value of covered business, which
comprises the longferm required capital supporting
these operalions and their net valug of inforce
business; refer embedded value report on page 40.

The fair value of other Graup operations, which
includes the land and property development, capital
markets and shorHerm insurance,

fii

The management of the Group’s capital base requires
a confinuous Treview of optimal capitel levels, including
the use of alternative scurces of funding, o maximise
refuin on Group Embedded Value. The Group has an
infegrated copifal and risk management approach. The
amount of capital required by the wvaricus businesses
is direcily linked to their exposure to inancial and
operational risks. Risk management is accordingly aa
imporfant companent of effective copital management.

Capital allocation methodology

Group businesses are euch allocated an opiimat lavel
of capital ond are measured against appropriate
return hurdles.

The following methodology is used 1o determine
the allocation of [ong-ferm required Copffcﬂ to -the
covered business:

The level and nature of the supporting copital is defermined
by minimum regulaiory capital requirements as well os
cconomic, risk and growth considerations. Regulatory
capital must comply with specific requirements of the
Insurance Act and Kenya Companias Act. A deterministic
modelling prozess is used fo delermine the longterm
required capilal levels.

The fair value of other Group operations includes the
warking capital allocated to the respective operations.
The Group’s approach to ensure appropricte working
capital levels is two told:

fit The Group dividend policy s based on the annudl
decloration of all discretionary capital that is not

Notes to the Financiai Statements continved
For The Year Ended 31 December 2008

b)

required for mormal operations or expansion; and

Performence targets are set [or other Group

{ii

operations based on an expecled refurn on the fair
value of the businesses, equal 1o their intema; hurdle
rates. This ensures that all nor-productive working
capital is declared os o dividend fo the Group.

Required Capital
Longferm required capital — covered business

The Group’s covered business requires significantly
higher levels of allocated capital thar the other Group

operations. The apfimisation of long-term required cupital

is accardingly a primary focus arca of the Group’s
capital management philosophy given the significent
potential to enhance sharcholder value.

The following main sirategies are used to ochieve
this objective:

(it Appropriote matching of wssets and habilities for
policyhaolder solufions. This is especially important
for long-duration policyhelder selutions thal exposs
the Group to interest rate 1isk, e.g. non-participating
annuities, but alse for participating business where
asset/liability matching and investment strategy have
a1 direct impact on capital requirements.

it Managing the impact of new business on capital
requirements by limiting volumes of capitcHnfensive
new business per business.

{iil) The asset mix of the long-term required capital also
impacts on the overall capital requirement. An
increased exposure fo inferestbearing  inshuments
reduces the volatility of the capitol bose ond
accordingly alse the capilal requirement. The
expected investment refurn on these inslruments are
however lower than equity with a potential negative
impact on the relum on Group Embedded Value. -
There is accordingly o tradeoff between lower
capial lovels and the retum on capital. The Group's
stochastic capital model is used to determine Ihe
optimal asset mix that will ensure the highest retuin
on capifal. '

fivl Certain of the Group's investments in other Graup
operafions qualify, io a varying degree, to be ufilised
as regulatory capilal for the covered business.
Maximum  capital  efficiency con  therefore he
achieved by aptimising the lavel of such investments

held in the life companies’ regulatory capital
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! 39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS [Continued)

() Key manogement compensation

| 2008 2007
! KShs. "GO0 KShs.'000
! Sclaries and other shorHerm employment benefits 792,828 74,798
Long term benefits incentive : 9,500 2,800
Termination benefits 15,190
Postemployment benefits ] 12,312 2,467
_ | 116,840 94,063
{d) Directors’ remuneration :
Other emeluments | included in (e} above) 31,024 30,200
Directors’ fees _ 4,993 6,644

fe}  Directors’ pension

The Company does net cater for any director’s pension.
{fl  Investment in associates
Mo guarantess or collateral were provided 1o the assodiules.

{g) Met transactions between related parties

The following are net fransactions between related. parties relating o net payments made on bhalf of these companies.

2008 - 2007
KShs.'000 KShs "000
Alrican life Assurance Cempany Limited (452) 7,985
SIM. [K) Limitedt 16,687 26,185
Hubris Holdings Limited 2,212 (439)
fhi  Particulars of the Group principal undertakings are shown below:

; Country of incorporation Primary business %
' and domicile operation ~ Held
!- Pon Alfrica bife Assurance Limited Kenya Life: insurance 100
! PA Securities Limited : Kerya Investment 100

i Mae Properties Limited Kerya Investmeni in
, Properfies [dormant] 100

Chem .Chemi Mineral YWater Limited Kenya Dealing with bottled

watar [darmani] 100

AR e | TR
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Notes to the Financial Statements cortinved
For The Year Ended 31 December 2008

Company Group
Amounts dus from related parfies: 2008 2007 2008 2007
KShs.'000 KShs. 000 KShs.'000 KShs, 000
Farent
Sanlam Limited 553
Hubris Holdings limited 427 2,639
Associates |
APA Insurance Limited 1,141
Runda Water Limited i6 16 - 16
Subsidiary
PA Securities Limiled 28,612 27,400 _ o
28,628 27,416 427 4,298
Amounts due to related parties:
Parent
Sanlam Limited 5,212 5,664
Subsidiary
Pan Africa life Assurance Limited 39,171 226,498
Maoe Properfies Limited 62,627 62,627 -
Sister Company
SIA (K] Limited] 1,167 5,875 25,959
Associates
Runda Vafei Limited 1,213
101,738 11,087 3_3,53_6

290,292




38, CASH GENERATED FROM QPERATIONS [Continued)
{b) Yeor ended 31 December 2007

Cash flow from operations
Prafit befare tax
Adjustments for:
Profit on disposal of property and eguipment (note 114)
Ivferest incame
Fair value {gains)/losses:
Imvestment property
Guoied shares
Treasury bonds
Corporate Bonds & Commarcial paper
Depieciation and armortisalion (note 13)

Share of resuts of asseciated company before income fax

Changes in working capital:
Receivable fram dired insurance arangements
Receivable from direct reinsurance arangements
Other receivables
land and development
Actuarial value of policyholder lighilities
Poyaible under deposit administration contracts
Technical provisions
Payable under direct reinsurance arangements

Other payables and accrued expenses

Notes to the Financial Statements continved
For The Year Ended 31 Decermber 2008

Cash generated from operations

Investments
Long ferm General Property

Insurance Busingss Development Group
KShs."0Q00 Kshs.'Q00 KShs.' 000 KShs."000
159,458 41,120 {15,584 184,904
{1,204 (1,290]
{198,520} {22,188) 112,363 (240,071)
(13,500 (2,000) {15,500
(106,433 {657) (12,198) {112,288]
{44 321} (44,321)
[2,673) {2,673
22,039 183 @5 22,316
1,259 (294) Q65

(60,313 (60,313
{15,329} [15.32%)
2,684 11,481 83,898 105,063
[7,.907] {7,207}

834,936 834,936
63,715 63,715
19,724 12,724
26,418 26,418
136,502 {14,961 20,580 142,121
830,097 14,237 49,227 893,561

. e

:




38. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
{a} Year ended 31 December 2008

Cash flow from operafions
Profit before 1ax
Adjustments for:
Investmendt incame
Rental Income
Fair velue [gains}/losses:
Invesiment property [ncte 13)
Quoted sohres
Treasury bonds
Corporate bonds and commercial paper

Depreciation & amartization [note 13]

Notes to the Financial Statements continued
For The Year Endad 31 December 2008

Changes in working capital:

Orther receivables
Land and development
Actuarial value of policyholders liohilities

Payables under deposit admin contracts

Technical provisions

Orlher payables and accrued expenses

Investrments
Leng term General Property

Insurance Business Development Group

KShs."000 KShs."Q00 KShs."QO0 KShs."000

214,083 (183,091} [47.361]) (16,369

{308,058} (10,430} 14,255) (322,747]
(23,449 (232,449}

(116,729] (116,729}

175,041 45,631 1,049 221,721

21,290 ' (854] 20,436

(2,728) (2,728

27,240 145 7 27 464

Profit on dispesal of propedy and equipment [nole 11d) {1,112) {1,112]
Share of resulis of associaled company bcforg_ income tax _ 133,178 525 133,703
(11,692) (14,567) (53,545) (79,804

Receivables from direct insurance arrangemeants {144,272 (144,272
Recaivables from reinsurance arangemsnis 27107 27,107
215,718 (20,373} 5,887 201,232

(40, 793) 140,723}

456,643 456,643

50,032 59032

Pavable under direct reinsurance armangements (24,024 (24,024
(18,241} (18,241

197,108) 5009 (143,261)  [332,360)

363,163 (26,931)  (231,712) 104,520

Cash generated from operations




35.

36.

37.

34

81

Nofes to the Financial Statements continued
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EARMNINGS PER SHARE
The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted earnings per share computation.

2008 2007
: K5hs.'000 KShs."000
Met (loss)/ profit aifributable i ordinary shareholders for basic and diluied earmings ) (95, 900) 146,890
2008 2007
Thoysands Thousands

Weighted average number of ardinary shares for basic eainings per share :
. 48,000 48,000
Basic eamings per ordinary share KShs. 12} 3
Diluted earnings per ordinary share KShs. (2] 3

There have baen no other transactions involving ordinary shares between the reporting date and date of completion of these
financial statements.

CONTINGEMT UABILITIES- GROUP

The Group companies are defendants o legal proceedings tiled against them by third parties. Unverified claims bave also been
placed against the former Pan Africa Insurance Company limited {See note 31}. The direciors are of the opinion that the ouicome
of these proceedings and claims will not have a material impact on the financial postiion of the Group.

The Group operates in the insurance industry and is subject to legal proceeding in the narmal course of business. While it is
nof practicable to forecast or defermine the final results of all pending or threatened legal procecdings fincluding liigations], the
directors are of the opinion that the results of the Group, having sought the advice of the Groups legal counsel will not have ©
material effect on its results and financial pasition.

The Group is also subject to insurance solvency regulations n all the territories where it operates and has complied with all

these solvency regulations. There are no contingencies assaciated with the Group's compliance or lack of compliance with
such regulations.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS - GROUP

The Group has no capital commitments cs at balance sheel date. The Group has enfered into commercial property leases
inraspect of its invastment property portfolio, including the Group’s unuiilised office buildings. Leases include a clause o enable
vpward revision of the rental charge on an annuat basis according 1o prevailing market condifions.

2008 2007
KShs.'000 KShs.'000
Property and equipment
Operating lease commitments
The future minimum lease payments under noncancellable cperating leases are as follows:
Mot later than 1 year 0,475 3,269
lafer than 1 year but not later than 5 yeors ] 20,447 23,005
) ' 26,922, 28,274
DIVIDENDS PAID AND PRCPOSED
Ceclared and poid during the year
Equily dividends on ordinary shares:
Final dividend for 2007: KShs. 1.60 [2006: KShs.__? A4) 76,800 69120
Total dividends paid in the year ) 76,800 B 49, 120

Pioposed for opproval as ot 31 December {not recognised as a liability before approval af the AGM)
Final dividend for 2008: Nil (2007 KShs.1.60) 3 Nil 76,800

Payment of dividends is subject to withholding tax at the rate of 5% for residents and 10% for non residenis.

T T[] T L T



33.

PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENTS
a) Year ended 31 December 2007

Notes to the Financial Statements continved
For The Year Ended 31 Dacemibzer 2008

The pricr year adjustment arose from restatement of the associate’s reported earnings fer the yvear 2006. Amounfs re ported in

the financial staterments have been restated as follows:

As reported at 01 As restated af 01

lanuary 2007 Adjustment January 2007
KShs."000 KShs."0C0O KShs,"000

Assets
Imvesiment in associale 675,821 (18,574) 457,305
'Defered ox 5,008 [6,068)
Share capital and reserves
Retained earmings 69,134 (24,584) 744,550
Transfer from life funds 153,684 (170.322] (224 0084
Statutory fund 170,322 170,327
Incoms Statement
Share of results of associated company 320,974 {2,760] 318,214
Income tax charge [3,672] _ |21,824] [25,4%6)
Earning per ordinary share ’
Basic/diluted eamings per share 887 887

b) Year ended 31 December 2008

The prior year adjusimeni arose from restatement of the associate’s reporied eamings, property and equipment, premivm
debors’ write off and current income tox for the year 2007. Amounts reported In the financial statemenis have been

restated a3 follows:

As reported at 01 As restated at 01

January 2008 Adjustment January 2008
KShs. 000 KShs."000 KShs."000

Assets
Property and equipment {cost} 143,269 (278} 142,591
Other payebles 734,066 876 734,942
Receivables out of direct insurance 151,400 137,793) 113,807 .
Current income fax {38,004} {38,004]
Share capital and reserves
Retafned earmings 700,268 {208 700 740
Transter from life funds (170,3272) (38,004) (208,328
Statutory fund 292,172 {37,793 254,373
Revaluation reserve 10,936 [663) 10,273
Income statement
Share of results of associated company {152 {813 [9&5]
income tax charge (38,004 {38,004]
Earning per ordinary share
Basic/diluted earmnings per share 419 i.16 3.06




Notes to the Financial Statements continved
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31. PROVISIONS

2008 2007
r KShs.'000 KShs.'000
Provision for outstanding claims on discontinued cperations 67,381 53,381
j Pravision for guarantecs on discontinued operations _ 43,904 . 43,504
111,285 97.285
; The movement in he provisions is as follows:
AtO1 January 07, 285 97,285
Additions _ _ 14,000 _
At 31 December 111,285 97,285
32, QTHER PAYABLES
| Company Group
: 2008 2007 2008 2007
' KShs."000 KShs."000 KShs. "G00 KShs.'000
Rent deposits - - - 18,504
Amount due lo related parties| note 39) 101,738 290,292 11,087 33,536
Warranties - - 28,018 28,018
, Unclaimed dividends 43,412 25,839 43,412 25,839
Other poyables and aceruals _ - 91,038 63,409 432125 330,886
234,188 379,540 514,642 636,783

T [T T O
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30. GROUP DEFERRED INCOME TAX

Deferred tax s caleulated, in full, on all lemporery differences under the liakility method vaing a principal tax rate of 30% (2007
30%). The movemeni on the deferred income tax account is as follows:

2008 2007
KShs. "000 KShs,'000
At O1 January
Deferred tax charge [nofe 15) . _ 28,230
Atend of year 28,930

Deferred income tax assets and liokilities and deferred income tox charge/|credit) in the income statement are aitributable o the
following items:

Charge/

fcredi] to
At start of Incame At end of
year staternent yaar
KShe."000 KShs."000 KShs."000
Property and equipment [6,946) 1,814 (5,132}
Investmenl property fair valus gains {3,900 41,729 37,829
Quoted shares — fair value goin 107,134 (@4,108) 11026
Provisions (108,151) 3,464 (104,657
Tox losses carried forward {769,629 636,910 (132,719
B | | 781,492) 587,809 (193,683

Pan Africo Life Assurance Limited 629 1G3 (629 193)
PA Securities Limited 35,273 Q0. 896 126,169
Mas Properiies Llimited 3,234 - 3,234
Pan Africa Insurance Holdings Limited _ ] 113,792 (78,442} 35,350
Deferred income tax not recognised 781,492 (616,739 164,753
Deferred income tax on the balance sheet - (28,230) 28,930}

b.  Company deferred income tax

Plant and equipment (2} - {2)
Provisions {1,189 - {1,18%)
Tox losses carried forward ) (32,983 ) m 132,984
(34,175) ) (34,175}
Deferred income tax not recognised 34,175 1 3ﬂ7£

Deferred income fax on the balance sheet

Defarrad income tax net recognised 1s in respect of tax loss carriad forward as it is probable thal the lemporary differences wil
not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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28, INSURANCE CONTRACT LIABILTIES [Continued)
Yaar ended 31 December 2008

KShs. '000
. < 1year  1-5 years »5 years  open ended Total
Linked and marketrelated liabilities 44,013 550747 1,176,488, - 1,771,248
Reversionary bonus policies 109,274 524,503 341,804 - Q75,641
: Ciher non-participating linkilities 184,009 347,833 61,364 353,472 Q46 678
| Total insurance policies 337,296 1,423,143 1579456 353,472 3,693,567
: Year ended 31 December 2007
KShs. "000
< 1year  1-5 years =5 ysars  open ended Total
Linked and marketvelated liabilities. Q0790 261,138 1,167,800 - 1,519,818
Reversionary banus policies 61,832 540,211 457,712 59,523 1,119,278
Other norrparticipating llabilities ) 8,979 299056 34,106 255687 597,828
Total insurance policies 161,601 ar 100,405 1,459,708 315,210 3,236,924

29. INTEREST AMD BONUS DECLARATION
Invesiment coniracts

The liabilities of the company in respect of funas managed under depesit administration contracts are shown inclusive of

interest accumulated to 31 December. Interest was declared and credited to the customer accounts al a weighted average

rate of 10% (20071 71%).
Insurance contracts

The insurance contract lighiliies are shawn gross of bonus declaration. Benus to with profit policies was declared and

credited as follows:

_ 2008 2007
Revisionary bonus 2.5% 2.5%
Terminal bonus 2.5% 2.5%

Revisionary bonus vest immediately while terminal bonus vest ‘after 8 years or earlier on maturily.

: _.._.i i .. || | l ——— | | i|| [ | . ] .-_..._i-_ . [ : e,
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MSURANCE COMNTRACT LIABIUTIES
2008 2007
Total nsurance  Investment Total Insurance  Investment
Contracts  Contracts Contracts Coniracis
KShs. "G00 KShs. 000  KShs. ‘000 KShs, 'QC0 KShs. ‘000 KShs. ‘000
Net premium 2,396,674 2,318,094 78,580 1,892,326 1,833,671 58,655
Gross | 2588612 250032 78580  2,129.089 2070434 58,655
Reinsurance | (191,938) (191,938 J L[236,763J (236,763 |
Investment income {net] 238,630 236,261 369 443,546 420,497 23,049
Invesiment Income 200708 206765  2043| 494201 4e5708 28493
Investment expenscs (63,078] {60,504) [2,574]: L (50,655 {45,217} {5,444}
Total Income 2,633,304 2,554,355 78,949 2,335,872 2,254,168 81,704
Qut go 2,117,628) (2,097,712 (19.214) (1,450,455) [1,445,448) (5,007)
Benefit poyment 10890481 (1,069131] 199161 W474513) (469,545  (4.964)
Expenses (858,905] (858,C05) - | [83%,492) {839,449 {43];
fncome statement ‘ {]@Q,é?’é} []69,6761 . {136,450 (136,450} ] o
Increase in the fund 518,674 456,643 59,033 885,417 808,720 76,897
Policy lean revaluction 26,222 26,222
Fund af the begiming of the
year 3,530,296 ) 3,236,924 293,372 2,é|8_,t.‘.157 2,40],@82 216,675
Fund at the end of the year 4,045,972 3,693,567 352,405 3,530,296 3,236,924 293,372
Matirity analysis of investment policy confracts
Year ended 31 December 20d8
KShs. ‘000
< Tyeor 1.5 yeors >5 years  open ended Total
Linked and marketrelated liabilifies 352 405 352,405
Total investment policies _ 352,405 352,4%
Year ended 31 December 2007
KShs. ‘GO0
Unked and marketrelated liabilifies 293,372 293,372
Tetal investment policies 293,372 293,372

Maturity analysis of insurance contracts



26, WEIGHTED AVERAGE EFFECTIVE INTEREST RATE

bearing investments.

Notes to the Financial Statements confinuved
For The Yaar Ended 31 December 2008

The follewing table sumaarises the weighled aveioge effective interest rales af the yaar end on the principal interest-

2008 2007
% %
Treaisury bills Q 7
Treasury bonds 13 11,
Martgage loans and commercial papers Q o
Short term deposits with financial institutions Q &
Policy loans ) 14 14
27. OTHER RECEIVABLES
Company Group
2008 2007 2008 2007

KShs.'000 KShs.’000 KShs."000 KShs. /000
Debtors and prepoyments 2,718 2,008 32,329 65,227
Amounts due fom related parties (note 39 28,628 27,416 A27 4,349
Rent outstanding 5,962 8,847
Plot debtors 6,798 14,249 6,798 14,249
Impeirment of plot debtors (3,137 (3,131] (3,131) (3,131)
Reclassification to invastment property (10,271)
Other non-current assels 432 ?8,376 8,728
A 31 DecemEer _ 35,445 41,332 70,490 98,969

m— T T N —

The carmying amounts disclosed above reasonably approximate fair value ot balance sheet date.
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2?3 TRANSFER TO UFE FUNDS

During 2001, the direciors authorised a total transfer of KShs, 297,001,000 from shareholders’ funds to the individud
life fund 1o finance an actuarial deficit arising from new business stiain and the write down of certaln investment properties
The directors with the advice of the statutory actuary recommend a transter of KShs. 169,000,000 for the year ended 3 |
December 2008.

24, STATUTORY FUND

The statutary fund represents a reserve maintained within the long term insurance business and represents unallocaled
surpluscs from previous acarial valuations as required by section 46{5) of the Insurance Act. Transfers from this fund to the
income statement and the statiiory funds are made upon recommendation of the actuary. This movement has been shown

on page 48.
25. MORTGAGE LOANS 2008 2007
KShs. 000 KShs ‘000
Group:
A0l Jonuary 126,994 104,122
Accrued interest Q557 6,026
Lloans advanced 33,641 39,278
loan repayments _ B [23,&42}_ {22,432
At 31 December ) o 146,750 126,994
Impairment:
A 01 Jarary 5,752 5,752
Charge for the year B 4,440 -
At 31 December ) ) 10,192 5752
At 31 December {note 204 136,558 121,242
Maturity profile of morigage loans
Lloans maturing:
Within 1 yeor 5,971 18,485
In 1-5 years 21,235 50,780
After 3 years B 119,544 A7 720
146,7"_._50 126,994
Loans at:
Market rate 15,517 | 4,447
Concessionary rafe 22,095 23,009
Stalf loans ) : 109,138 88,878
146,750 126,994

These loans cre caried af amoriized cost. None of the above loans have had their terms renegotioted. The collateral on the
mortgage loans amounted io KShs. 441,050,000 {2007 KShs. 410,630,000},



Notes to the Financial Statements Continued
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20. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

d.  Loans and receivables 2008 2007
KShs."000 KShs."000

Policy loans ' 131,550 304,011
Mortgage loans [nofe 25 A 136,558 121,242
Other receivables {nate 27] 70,4290 78,969

Total Lowns and receivables ) o 338,598 . 524222

Refer to nofe 26 for effective inferest rates
e Available for scle

Available for sale investments comprise o sharehelding of 17.5% in Sanlam Investment Management Kenye Limited {SIM
(K)l. SIM K] is registered in Kenya and ifts core business is fund management. The Shareholding was acquired o the
beginning of the year. This equity instruments does not have o quoted market erice in an active market, its fair value cannot
be reliably measured and has thus been measured at cost.

2008 2007
KShs.'000 KShs.‘000
Total available for sale ossets 3,827

21, CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash squivalents comprise the following:

a. Group
2008 2007
KShs.’000 KShs.’000
Cash and bank balances § 73,247 62,670
Shart ferm depo_sits with financial institutions 330,417 1,054,350
903,464 1,117,020

Shorterm deposits are made for varying periads of between one day and three manths depending on the immediate
cash requirements of the Group. Shorterm depnsits are made For varying periods of betwaen one day and three months
depending on the immediale cash requirements of the Group. All depasits are subject to an average variable interes rate of
4.8% (2007 4.3%. The carrying amounts disclosed above reasonably approximate foir value ot balance sheet date.

b. Company 2008 2007

KShs.'000 KShs, ‘000

] Cash and bank balances 7661 18,303
Deposits with financial insfitstions - 19,259 77,915
| 26,920 96,218
| Ordinary Crdinary
" shares shares

KS&hs.'000 kShs. ‘000

22. SHARE CAPITAL
At start and end of year o 240,00 240,000

It The total number of authorised ordinary shares is 100,000,000, with a par value of KShs, 5 per share. There are
48,000,000 shares in issue with a par value of KShs. 5 per share. All issued shares are fully paid.

1T ' | | iy CELEL T
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
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Notes to the Finoncial Statements contirved
For The Year Endaed 31 Decermber 2008

The: Groups financial instruments other than derivative financial insiruments are summarised by categories as fellows:

2008 2007
KShs.'000 KShs."000
Financial assets at foir value through profit or loss note b) 3,036,894 2,799,823
Held-termaturity financial assets {nole <) 492,523 231,551
loans and receivables {note d) 338,598 5242272
Available for sole [note e} 3,827
Total financial instruments 3,871,842 3,555,596
Maturity profile of financial instruments
< 1 year 1 -5 years > 5 years Open ended Total
KShs. ‘000 K$hs. ‘000 KShs. ‘000 KShs. ‘000 KShs. ‘000
31 December 2008
Pubiic sector stocks and loans 400,032 ¢ 895,334 1,223,88] 2,519,247
Loans and receivablas 70,4904 268,108 338,598
Equity securities 1,810,170 1,010,170
Available for sgle ) 3,82/ 3,827
470,522 1,163,442 1,223,881 1,013,997 3,871,842
31 December 2007
Public sector stocks and loans 336,353 808,825 777729 1,922,207
loans and receivables A18,202 34,848 52,052 17120 524,222
Equity securities . N 1,108,467 1,108,467
754,555 845,673 879,781 1,125,587 3,555,594
financial assets at kair value through profit or loss 2008 2007
KShs."000 KShs. ‘000
Equity securities 1,010,170 1,108, 4&7
Gewvernment debt securifies [note 1,824,857 1,643,398
Commercial paper 201,867 47 958
3,036,894 2,799,823

Total financial assets at fair value through prefit or loss

Refer to note 26 for effective inferest rates

held-ta-maturity financial assels

HeldHtomaturity investments comprise Government bonds held under lien in faver of Commissioner of [nsurance. The group has

the positive infention and ability to hold until maturity:

Gaovernment Bends under lien

Total Heldto-maturity financial assets

2008 2007
KShe.'GOO " KShs."000
492,523 231,551
492,523 231,551

Refer to note 26 for effective interest rates
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18. (b} COMPANY PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

At 31 December 2008 Furniture and
equipmem‘. Total
Cost: KShs.'000 KShs. ‘000
AF O January 560 560
Additions ) . -
At 31 December E 560 560
Accumulated depreciation:
Ar Q1 January 314 314
Charge for the year o : ) 78 - 78
At 31 December ) 392 392
Net hook value:
At 31 December 2008 168 168
At 31 Pecember 2007 |
Cost:
At O January 560 560
Additions . . - ’
At 31 December 560 560
Accumulc;ed depreciation: N
Ar Q1 fanuary 219 219
Charge for the yvear N 95 i @5
At 31 December _ 314 314
Net book value:
At 31 December 2007 _ 246 246
19. INVESTMEMNT PROPERTY Company Group
2008 2007 2008 2007
KShs.'000 KShs./000 KShs."000 KShs ‘000
At Q1 Jonuary &,000 4,000 234,500 439,000
Reclassification from property and equioment - - 13,000
Raclassification from other receivables - 10,271
Fairvalue gain - - 116,729 15,500
Disposals ) - - . (220,000}
At 31 December - 6,000 6,000 374,500 234,500

Investment properties are siated ot falr value, which has been determined based on valuations performed by loyd Masika
Limited and Knight Fronk Limited as at 31 December 2008. Lloyd Masika and Knight Frank Limited are industry specialists
in voluing these types of investment properties. The fair value represents the amount ot which the assets could be exchanged
between a knowledgeable, willing buyer and o knowledgeable, willing seller in an arm's length transaction af the date of

I valuation. Veluations are performed on an annual basis and the fair value gains and losses are recorded within the income
sfolement. The Group entered into operating leases for its invesiment pioperties. The renfal income arising during the vear
and the expenses arising in respact of such properties during the year is disclosed in note 1 1. The fair valuation basis takes
infe account the existing use and the fenancies and also considers the nomal lease structure for similor bulldings.

1) N ITRE IR e
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Nofes fo the Financial Statements continved
For The Year Ended 31 Decernber 2008

i8. (a) GROUP PRCPERTY AMD EQUIPMENT
Year ended 31 December 2008

Furniture,
Motor fittings
Buildings vehicle  and equipment Total
Cost /valuation: KShs.'000 KShs.'000 KShs."000 KShs.'000
A O Janvary 15,084 10,396 117,789 143,249
Pricr adjusiment [note 33) - 1278} {278)
Restated ' 15084 10,396 117,511 142,997
Additions - 4,530 37910 42 AAQ
Disposals - (6,200 - {6,200
Redlassification fo investment property [15,084] - - 115,084)
At 31 December - 8,726 155,421 164,147
Accumulated depreciation:
At 01 Janvary 2,084 8,401 72,637 83,122
Charge for the year - 2,749 21,097 23,846
Disposals - {5,942 - 15,942
Reclassification io investiment property {2,084 - - [2,084)
At 31 December T 57208 93,734 (98,949
Net book value: .

At 31 December : 3,518 61,687 65,205

Mo depreciation has been charged in arriving at the resulls for the year in respect of certain hully depreciated property and
equipmeni with a cost of KShs 51,833, 178{2007: KShs, 43,422,990} which are sifll in use. If depreciation had been
charged during the year on the cost of these assets af normal rates, 1t would have ameunted to KShs 12,161,703( 2007
KShs. 8,006,508). No borrowing costs have been capiialised in the additions io property and equipment. MNone of the above
assets was pledged os security for liabilities. :

Year ended 31 December 2007 Furniture,

Motor fittings
Buildings vehicle  and equipment Total
Cost /valuation: KShs.'000 KShs. 000 KShs. "G00 KShs.*000
Ar Q1 January _ 12,819 13,428 102,886 129,133
Additions - 14,927 14,927
Revaluations 2,265 - - 2,265
Reclassification to invesiment property - ~[3.032) {24] - {3,056}
At31 December | 15084 10,396 117,789 143,269

Accumulated depreciation:

At 01 January 2,084 § 702 55,371 66,247
Charge for the year 256 2,641 17,268 20,165
Revaluations (256 - - (256]
Reclassitication to investment property - {3,032} {2) (3,034)
At 31 December _ 2,084 8,401 72,637 83,122

Net beok value:
At 31 December 13,000 1,995 45,152 60,147




14, GROUP INTANGIBLE ASSETS {SOFTWARE])

Notes o the Financial Staterments continved

For The Yegr Ended 31 December 2008

2008 2007
KShs. ‘000 KShs. 000
Cost:
AtO1 January 10,515 7437
Additions ) 6,570 3078
At 31 December T?‘_',O_BS 10,515
Accumulated depreciation
ALOT January 5,227 3,076
Charge for the year . 3618 2151
Al 31 December 8845 5227
Net book value 8,240 5,289
INVESTMENTS
. Sharehaiding 2008 2007
a) investments in subsidiaries - Company KShs."000 KShs."000
Pan Africa Life Assurance Limited 100% 331,203 331,203
PA Securties Limited 100% 679,009 679,009
o 1,010,212 1,010,212
b} investments in associates Company Group
2008 2007 2008 2007
KShs, ‘000 KShs. "000 KShs.’QOC KShs.' 000
Share of associates” balance sheet
Current gssets 10,203 11,124 483 419 441,582
MNoncurent assets 2,312 2,704 1,509,416 1,367,224
Current licthilities (4,059 (3,834 {83,450} [53,438|
Non-current liabilities (1,145} 2,156 (1,401,227 (1.106,620]
Nef assets 7,31 7,836 508,158 648,748
Share of associates” revenue and profit o
Revenue 6,066 5713 131,237 21,933
Profit (525 294 {133,703] (265
Carrying amount of investments: 7,311 7,836 508,158 648,748
Principal activity 2008 2007
Investments comprise Shareholding Sharshalding
APA Insuranee limited General Insurance I907% 39.97%
Runda VWater Limited Water distribution 24.90% 24.90%

APA Insurance fimited and Runda Water limited are. private entities incorperated in Kenya and are net listed on any public .
exchange and there are no published price quotations for the fair value of these investments. The rsporting date and
reporting year of APA Insurance Limited and Runde Water Limited is the same as the Group and beth use uniform accounting
palicies excapt as follows: APA Insurance adopled IAS 39 [amended) thal permitted equity insiruments fo be reclassified from
finameial instruments through profit or loss fo held for trading. The Group policy is to classify equity instruments as financial
instruments through profit or loss, Consequently tha group modified the results of the associate to conform with Group pelicy

as required by [AS 28.

Lill T T
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2008 2007
13. OPERATING EXPENSES KShs. ‘000 KShs. ‘000
Commission 385,471 399 073
Adm‘misfrc:ﬁqn 473,434 - 440,376
858,905 839,249
Other expenses include:
Staff costs{ note 14} 237 572 217,591
Amortisation and {note 16} 3,618 2,151
Cepreciaticn [nofe 1 8] 23,844 20,165
Fees lor managerial and adminisfrative services: 10,409 2,305
Auditar's remuneration 2,272 2070 |
Tox audt 4318 1,114 |
legal 1,349 2,751
Actuarial ! 2,470 2,470 ¢
Repairs and mainienance i 3,368 1,902
Impairment provision on mortgage loans - o7
Premium fax and slemp duty 23,266 19,038
i4. STAFF COSTS
Staff costs include the following:
Refirement benefit costs 33,371 12,237
Siaff Banus 30,000 41,000
long Term refention scheme (LTRS) 12,165 14,250
Social security benefit costs 507 412
Cther expenses 161,529 149,692
237,572 217,591

Stafft are enttled to o bonus which is based on preset padormance parameters on an annual basis. The full cost of the banus
is expensed in the year in which if is camed, long term refenfion schemes exist for qualifying staff. The annual LTRS expense
is bosed on the growth of the value of inforce. The LTRS is an independent private trust regisiered under the frustees [perpatucl
succession} Act Cap 164 with independent frustees. The frust is independent of Graup,

15, INCOME TAX

as follows:

2008 2007
KShs."000 KShs."000
Current income tax 50,700 38.004
Deferred income taxdnole 30) 28,930 -
Current year tax charge 79,630 38,004
Share of gssociates” tax 10,572 2,534
_ 90,202 40,540
The tax on the Group’s profit before 1ax differs from the theeretical amaunt that would arise using the statutory tax rafe
Reconciliation of faxation expense to tax based on 2008 2007
cccounting profit- KShs."000 KShs."000
Profit before income tox (5,796 ] éé,? 17
Tax calculafed at a statutory rate of 30% (1,739) 56,015
Tax effect of
Incorme not subject to fax (87,551 [225,082]
Expenses nof deductible for tax 61,222 91,545
Deferred income tax asse not recognised - 78768 158,444
Prior yeor adjustments 7 {42,238
| ' 50,700 38,004

Incame fux charge
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11, INVESTMENT RETURN {Centinued)

. b.  Reclised gains Investing activity Operating activity
| 2008 2007 2008 2007
KShs."000 KShs.'000 KShs.'000 KShs."000
Realised gains/[loss) - equity securities 22,978 265,889 83,627 [67,468]

c.  Fair value gains and losses

| Treasury bonds 856 - [21,290] 44,321
i: Investment properties fair value
gain/(loss) [note 19) 18,72¢ 2,000 8,000 13,500
Financial assets fair value [loss)/gains (&2, 209) {237,343 258,667} 158210
Caiporale bonds und commercial papers o - 2,673
(49,626 235,343) _ (181,957) 218,704
d.  Other revenue
: Profit Commission - - - 17,752
' Sale of plats - 10,150 -
| (lossl/gain on dispesal - {8,943} 1,112 1,290
Miscellaneous - 231
Deht recovery 7 - 22,000
- 23,438 L1z 19,042

12. POLUCYHOLDER EENEFITS

2008 2007

KShs.'000Q KShs."G00

Gross death and disability claims 509,173 328 991

Meturity and survival benefits 241,065 196,886

: | Poliey surrenders 424,235 66,708
_: || Interest declared to deposit adminisiration funds 368 23,006
! ' Gross benefits and claims poid 1,174,841 615 591
1 Change in actuarial value of insurance contract liabilities 456,643 B0 719
\ Claims ceded o reinsurers _ {105,710] (146,042}

et benefits and claims paid 1,525,774 1,278,268

1] I .
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GROSS PREMIUM INCOME

Notes fo the Financial Statements confinved
For The Year Ended 31 Decamber 2008

The principal activity of the Group is the underwrifing of longterm insurance business as defined by the Insurance Acl. Premium
income can be analysed betwesn the two main classes as follows:

2008 2007
Mew business KShs."000 KShs.'000
Recurring
Individual life 230,834 121,510
Group business 106,742 125,845
Single premiums
Individugl |fe 73,778 29,393
Gewbenes ________ su0sis 551,000
Toolnewbusnes 100172 ess0s
Renewal recurring
Individual lite 1,197,833 1,007,588
_Crovpbesiness 810027 17736
Total renewal premiven jncome - 1307860 ),782384
Total pramiym income 2,510,032 2,070,433
FEES AND COMMISSION INCOME
| 2008 2007
KShs."C00 K.Shs.'000
Fees 7,332 5107
Commisionreccvotie 83774 53908
51,106 59,015

INVESTMENT RETURN

investmant income

Inferest from qovarnment secyrifies
Inferest from bank deposis
Inferest from loars

Dividends from listed companics
Rental income

Investment expenses

Investment income

investing activity

Operating activily

2008 2007 2008 2007
Kshs."000 KShs.000 KShs. 000 KShs."000
33,684 35,620 164,480 156,354
6,602 13,219 115,583 56,658

2,340 1,108 20,511 18,209

5,720 18,854 13,675

- 9927 23,449 (8.481]
e 60,504 45211
48,346 59,872 262,373 191,204
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ANl 8. BUSINESS SEGMENT INFORMATION {Cenfinuved)
| Year ended 31 December 2007 Ordinary e Group life
Iif | : business business Total
, ' _ KShs' 000 K3hs' 000 K3hs' 000
' Grogs pramiums. 1,218,491 851,942 2,070,433
‘ MNet premiums - __rLl?_?»,_Z_Q_q ___féAD,ddS 1,833,670
‘ Investment incoms . 206,903 68,544 365,447
Commissions eorned 7,690 51,325 59015
Othes income findluding fees) - 14 13935 19,042
1! Tofal income 1,502,025 774249 2277,174
Policyholders” benefits:
Life and health claims 1145,548) {305,123) {450, 671)
'I Surranders and annuity poyments (140,28%] {45¢] (140.778]
I Policyholder bonuses and interest (278} 123,006 {23,284
Claims handling expenses .(858) . {858)
I Change in actuarial value of policyhelder benefits (G471,2194 (167,500 {808,719
Less: amounts recovarable from refnsurers e - 146,042 ____140,042
J Net claims and policyholder benefits payable {928,185) {350.083) 11,278,268)
“ Operating and other expenses 1397 0421 43,334) (4403, 378)
: Commissions payable (240,077) (158,096) (399,073
Toral expenses 0565504 (52413 R117717)
I'I {toss!/profit bafore income tox {62,37%) 221,836 159,457
homewregone (3004 L im0y
(Loss)/profit for the year (100,383) 221,836 121,453
' Life funds of the end of the year comprise amounts aftributable fo:
Policy hotders
Actogna Nokilties 2,830,622 406,302 3,236,924
: 2,830,622 406,302 3,530,296
||' :
B T I S ‘ -




BUSINESS SEGMENT INFORMATION {Centinued)

The long term insurance business is further analyzed s follows:

Notes to the Financial Statements continved
For The Year Ended 31 December 2008

2,933,577

Yecr ended 31 December 2008 Ordinary life Group life
business business Total
KShs'000 K$hs' GO0 KShs" 000
Gross premivms 1,502,445 1,007,587 2,510,032
Reinsurance (10,008 (181,930} (191,938]
Net premiums 1,492,437 825,657 2,318,094
Investment income 19¢ 619 28,835 228,454
Comrmissicns eorned 43,744 43,744
Other income (including fess) 8,481 (5] 8478
- Totalincome 1,700,537 898,231 2,598,768
Policyholders” berefits:
life and health claims {30,092 (467,345) (497,437}
Surrenders and annuity payments (676,205 [676,205]
Policyholder bonuses and interest
Claims handling expenses [1,204) [1,204)
Change in actuarial value of policyholder bansfits {102,949 (353,689} [456,638)
less: amounts recoverable from reinsurcrs 105,710 105,710
Net claims and policyhelder benefits payable (810,450 (715,324) {1,525,774)
Operating and other experisas {418,599 {54,835} {473,434
Commissions payable i (249 8B&1] (135,590 [385,471)
Total expenses (1,478,930) (905,749} (2,384,679)
{Loss]/profit before income tax 221,607 7.518) 214,089
Income fax expense (79,631 | 79,631)
{Less)/profit for the year 141,976 [7.518) 134,458
Life funds at the end of the year comprise amounts citributable to:
Pclicy helders
Actuarial Tiabilities 2,933,577 759,990 3,693,567
Deposit administration funds - 352,405
759,990 4,045,972
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8. BUSINESS SEGMENT INFORMATION
For management purposes, the Group is organized into business units bosed on their products and services and has three
it reporiable operating segments as follows: :
. : ¢ The life insurance segmert, which is the core activity of the Group, offers o wide range of assurance products, unitised
products, pension schemes and mortgage preducts.
* The nendife insurance segment, through the Group's subsidiory — APA Insurance, camprises general insurance. General
4 insurance products offered include motar, household, commercial and busingss interruption insurance. Norrlife healthcare
contracts provide medical caver to policyholders.
‘ : * The property development segment involved in ihe development and sols of properties.
' Mo opercting segments have besn aggregated to form the above reporable operating segments.
i Segment performance is evaluated based on profit or loss which in certain respects is maasured differently from profit or loss
it in the conselidated financial statemants. Where any intersegment transactions occurred, ransfer prices between operation
0 segments are sef on an arm's length basis in @ manner similar fo transactions with third parties. Segment income, expense and
Uil resulls will then include those transfers batween business segments which have then been eliminated on consclidation.
. : investments
Long term General Property Elimination on
' Insurance Business  development consolidation Group
Year ended 31 December 2008 KShs.' 000 KShs."000 KShs.'000 KShs.'000 KShs. '00G
Gross premium income 72,510,032 - ] - 2,510,037
0 Net premium income 2,318,094 B 2,318,094
E : Other income .
Investment income 280,674 (31,302 5,471 254,843
Share of associate’s profit - (133,178} [525) (133,703
Segment inflows N 2,598,768 (164,480 4946 2,439,234
Segment outflows 12,384,679 {18,615} (52,308} (2,455,603
M) Profit before income fax 214,089 [183,095] [-47;.3:53} {16,369
!5 Income tux expense (72630 - - 72,6301
: Net profit for the yec:r. 134,459 (183,095) [47,365} .-{95,999]
i Scgment assels o 5113614 927,804 T80.653  [131,143] 6,004,128
\| i Segment liabilities 4,532 579 270,610 236,187 [137,143] 4,208,193
A Capital expenditure 42,4410 - 42,440
.'| Depraciafion 27,240 145 79 27,464
Year ended 31 December 2007
) Gioss premium income 2,070,433 - - 2,070,433
: Net premium income 1,833,670 - S 1,833,670
Other income h i
: Investment incomea 365,447 34,681 22,097 ARD 225
' Miscellancous income 78,057 13,232 10,204 ‘ 101,493
| Share of associate’s profit - 11,259 294 (F65]
Segment inflows 2,277,174 46,654 32,595 2,356,423
Segment oulflows (2,117,717] (5,533 (48,179} (2,171,427)
= Profit before income tax B 159,457 41,121 B (15,584] . 184,994
Income tox expensa {38,004 - - (38,004)
Net profit for the year 121,453 41,021 (15,584) 146,990
Segment assets 4,510,4/0 1,170,046 330,167 147.008) 5,863,669
Segmeri liabilites . 4,177 469 248,235 223,451 {147 ,008) 4,502,158
Cuapital expenditure 18,005 - - 18,005
Dapreciafion 22,316 - - 22,316
T Ll
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Critical accounting estimales ond judgements

Estimates and judgemerts are confinually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other faciors,
including experience of fulure events thai are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances.

The preparation of the Groups financial * statements
requires management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, ussels and liabilifies and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities, at the reporting date. However,
unceriainty about these assumpfions and esfimates could
result in oulcomes that could require a material adjustment
to the carrying amount of the asset or liability offected in
the future. These faciors could include:

it Critical accounting estimates and assumplions
al Valugtion of invastment contract Tiobilifies

Critical assumplions are made by the actuary in
determining the present value of actuarial liakilifies.
These assumplions are sel out in accounting policy
(e} above.

The liability for life insurance contracts is either bosad
on £lirsnt assurptions of on assumptions esiablished
ot inception of te confrach, refleciing the best
esfimate at the fime increased with a margin for risk
and adverse deviation. All contracts are subject o o
liahility adequacy test, which reflect management's
best current estimate of fulure cash flows.

The main assumptions used relate to mortality,
morbidity, longevity, Investment relums, expenses,
lupse and surrender rates and discount rates. The
Group base mortality and merbidity on sfandard
industry and Eurcland mortality fobles which reflect
hisiorical experiences, adivsted when appropriate
fo reflect the Group’s unique risk exposure, produc
choracteristics, larget markets and own claims severity
and frequency experiences. For those contracts that
insure risk to longevity, prudent allowance is mods for
expected future mortality Improvements, but epidemics,
as well as wide ranging changes to life st/le, could
restli in significant changes to the expected futurs
mortality exposure,

Estirnates are also made os to fulure invesiment income
arising from the assats backing life insurance contracts.
These estimoies are based on current marke! relurns
as well as expectations aboul future econemic and

financial developments.

Assumptions on future expense are based on curfent
expense levels, adjusted for expected expense inflafion
adjustmenis il appropriate.

Lopse ond surender rates are based on the Group's
hisiorical  experience of lapses and  surrenders,
Discount rais are based on current indusiry risk rates,
adjusted for the Group's own risk expasure.

&2
L
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bj Propery and equipment

Crifical esfimales ore made by the directors in
determining depreciation rates for property, plont and
equipment. The rates used are set out in accounting
policy (j| above.

cl  Iheome taxes

i} The Group is subject o income taxes under the
Kenya Income Tax Act. Significant esfimates are
required in defermining Ihe provision for income
taxes, There are many fransactions and calalations
for which the ultimate tax defermination is uncaskain
during the ordinary course of business. YWhere
the final fax cutcome of these mallers is differant
fram the amounts that were inftially racorded, such
differences will impact the income tax and the
deferrad fax provisions in the pariod in which such
determination is made.

Critical judgements in applying the eniity's
accouniing policies

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies,
munagoment has made judgements in defermining:

a} The clussification of financial ossets and leases

b Whether assets are impaired

1

¢} Whether land ard bulldings meet the erteria to be

clussified as investmert property
Events affer the balance sheet date

The finarcial statements are adiusted 1o reflact events tha
oceurred between the balance sheet date and the dats
when the financial statements are auvhorised for issue,
provided they give evidence of conditions that existed
at the balonce shest date. Events that are indicaiive of
condifions that arase dfer the balancs sheet date are
disclosed, but do net result in an adjustment of the financial
statements thamselves.
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gslimates used to detorming the assef's recoverable amount
since the last impaiment loss was recognised. f that is
the case the camrying amount of the asset is increased
io its recoverable amount. That increased amount cannat
exozed the camying amount thar would aove been
determined, net of depieciation, had no impairment loss
hecn recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal
s recognised in the income statement unless the asset is
corried at revalued amount, in which cose the reversal is
treated as o revaluation increcso.

The following criteria are olse applied In assessing
impairment of specific assels:

The recoverable amount for the e insurance business
hos been determined based on o fair valug less costs
to sell calculation. The caleulation requires the Group fo
make an estimate of the total of the adjvstec net worth
of the like insurance business plus the value of inforce
covered business. This caleulation is derived from the
embedded value principles developed by the Eurcland
Institute of Actuarias. New business confribution represenis
he prasent value of pro]ecied fuiure distribulable prof'lrs
generated from business written in a pericd. Growth and
discount rates used are suilable rates which reflect the risks
of the underlying cush flows.

Associates

After application of the equity method, the Group
delermines whether it is necessary ‘o recognise an
additional impairment loss of the Group's investments
in associales. The Group defermines af each halance
shest dote whether there is any objective evidence that
the investment in assoclate is impaired. If this is the cose
the Group caleulates the amount of impairment as being
the difference between the fair value of the associate
and the acquisition cost and recognises this amount in
the income statement,

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses ot euch balance sheet date whether
a financicl asset or group of financicl assets is ‘mpaired.

Assets carried af amortised cost

If there is objecfive evidence that an impaimment loss
on assets caried al umertised cost has been incured,
the amount of the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the assefs carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows {excluding
future expected credit osses that have not beer: incurred)
discounfed at the financial asset’s original effective inlerest
rate. The carrying omeunt of the asset is reduced and the
loss is recorded in the income siarement.

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of
impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individuglly significant, and individually or collectively for
financial assets that are act individually significant. IF it
is defermincd that no oblective evidence of impairment
exisls for an individually assessed financial assct, whether
significant o nol, the asset is included in a group of

T

ad)

ag}

of)

ag)

Notes to the Financial Statements continved
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financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and
that group of financiol assefs is collectively assessed
for impairment, Assets that are individually assessed
for impairment and for which an impaiment loss is or
continues fo be recognised are not included n o collective
assessment of impairment. The impaiment assessment s
performed at each balance shest date.

If, in o subsecuent pericd, the amount of the imgairmentloss
decreascs and the decrease can be relaied objeciively to
an event occuring dfter the impairment was recagnised,
the praviously recognised impairmant loss is reversed. Any
subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in
the income statement, to the exlent that the carrying value
of the osset doos not exceed its omartised cosl at the
reversal dale.

Sales tuxes and premium faxes

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the
ameunt of sales taxes and premium faxes except:

- when the sales o premium fax incurred on @ purchase
of assets or services is nol recoverable from he taxation
autherity, in which case the sales tax is recognised as
part of the cost of acquisifion of the asset or as part of
the expense ifem s applicable, and receivables and
poyables thal are sfated with the amount of sales or
premium fax included. Cutstanding net amounts of sales or
premium ax recoverable from, or payoble to, the laxation
authority is included as part of receivabiles or poyables in
the balance sheet.

Provisions

General Provisions are recognised when the Group has
a present ebligation (legal or construclive] as o result of a
past event, and it is probable that an ouflow of rescurces
embodying economic benefits will be recuired 1o sefile
the obligation and @ refiable estimate con be made of the
amount of the ahligation. Where the Group expecis some
or all of a provision 1o be reimbursed, the wimbursement
fs recognised as o separate asset bub only when the
reimbursement is virlually certain. The expense relating to
any provision is presented in the income stalemen net of
any reimbursement. If the effect of the fime value of money
is maferial, provisions are discounting using a current pre-
tox rale that reflects, where appropriate, the risks specific
io the liability, Where discounting is used, the increase in
the provision due to the passage of fime is recognised as
a borrowing cast.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the cash flow statement, cash und cash
equivalents consist of cash at bank end in hand and short
term deposits with Financial insfitutions with an original
maturty of three months or less.

Revaluation reserve

This rcpresents the Group’s share of the associate’s
revaluation reserve emanofing from  revaluations of
certain assels.
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with the Kenyan Incorme Tox Act. The tax rates and tax faws
used to compute the amount are those that are enacled or
substaniively enacted by the balance sheet dote.

Dafarred Income tux

Deterred incame tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on all femparary diflerences erising between the
fax bases of assets and liabiliies and their carrying values
tor financial reporiing puiposes. However, if the deferred
income fax arises fram the initicl recognition of an asset or
liability in @ fransaction other than o business combinafion
thal ot the fime of the ransaction affects neither aceounting
ror faxable profit nor loss, it is not accounted for, Deferred
income fox is delermined using fox rakes enacted or
substunfively enacted at the balance shest date ond are
expacted 1o apply when the related deferred incomes tax
fiakility is sefiled.

Deferred income fox assefs are recognised only o the extent
that it is probable that fuiure taxable profits will ke available
against which the lemporary differences can be ufilised.

The carrying amount of deterred income tax assefs is
reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced 1o the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
prefit will be available to allow ol or part of the deferred
income fax assef fo be ulilised. Unrecognised deferred
income 1ax assefs are reassessed af each balance sheet
date and are recognised to the extent that it has become
probable that fulue taxable profit will alfow the deferred
fax asset fo be recovered, '

Dividends

Dividends on ardinary shares ara chorged to equity in the
period inwhich they are declared. Froposed dividends are
shown os o separate component of equity until approved
af a general meeting of the shareholders. Dividends for
the year that are approved ofter the balance sheet dote
are dealt with as an event alfter the balance sheet date.

Comparatives

Where necessary, comparatives have been odjusted fo
conferm o changes in presentafion n the current year.

Risk and capital management
The Gioup has adopted IFRS ¥ Finoncial lnstruments:

Disclosures and the revised 1AS 1:- Preseniation of Financial
statements. MNoie 3% defails the Copital Managemsnt
Palicy while Note 41 details the nalure and sxtent of risks
arising from financial instruments and the approach the
Gioup has adopted fo miigate these risks.

Deferred acquisifion cost

Incremental costs directly afiibutable to the ccquisition of
investmeni cantracts with investiment management scrvices
ore capitalized 10 a Defered acquisifion cos{DAC) asset if
they are senorately identifiable, can be measured relfably
and its probeable that they will be recovered. DAC are

Notes to the Financial Statements Confinuea
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amorfized in the income stafement over the term of the

confracts as the related services are rendered and revenue

recognized, which varies from year to year depending on
the outstanding term of the contracts in force. The DAC
asset is fested for impairment bi annually and writien
down when it is not expecied fo bs fully recovered.

For the period io the end of the vear, no DAC asset has
boen recognized since the incremental costs comnot be
separately identified and measured reliably.

Expenses

i} Expenses ave recognised in the income skatement
when decrecse in ruture economic benefits reluied
to 1 decrease in an asset or an increase of @ fiability
has arisen that con be measured reliably. This
means in effect that recognition of an increase In
lighilities or a decrease in an asset {for example the
accrual of employae enfitlements or the depreciation
of equipment).

il Vhen economic benefits are expacted fo arise over
saveral accounting pericds and the associalion with
income can only be broadly or indirecily determined
expenses are recognised in the income stalemenl
on the bosis of systematic and rafional allecation
procedures. This is often necessary in recognising
the equipment associated with the using up of cssefs
such as property, plant and equipment in such
cases the expense is referred to as a depreciation
or amorfisation. These allocation procedures are
intended 1o recognise expenses n the accounting
periads in which the economic benefits associcted
with these items are consumed or expire.

il An expense is recognised immediately in the

income sfatement when expenditure produces ne

future sconomic benefits or when, and 1o the extent

that, future econcmic benefits do not qualify, o

cease to quality, for recognitian in the balance sheet

as an gssef.

Impairment of nonfinancial assets

The Group assesses at each reporfing date whether there
is an indication thaf an asset may be impaired. If any
such indicalion exists, or when annual impairment testing
for an osset is required, the Group estimates the qssel’s
racaverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is he
higher of an asset’s or cash-geneialing unit's fair value fess
costs o sell and its value in use. The recoverable amount
is dedormined for an individual assef, unless the asset does
not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of
those from other assets or groups of assets.

Impairment losses of cantinuing operations are recognised
in fhe income stalement in those expenses calegorics
consistent with the function ef the impaired assef,

An assessment is made at each reporiing date as o
whether thera is any indicafion that previously racognised
impaiment losses may no longer exist or may have
decreased. If such indication exists, the Group makes an
esfimate of recoverable amouni. A previsus impairment
loss is reversed only if there has-been o change in the
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Bad and deubtul debts

Palicy recsivables are lopsed when pramiums have
been in arrears for three cumulative months. Bad debrs
are writen off when all possible measures have been
taken without success.

Insuronce contract liabilities

Life insurance liabilifies are recognised when contracts
are enfered info and premiums are charged. These
liobilities are measured by using the net premium methad.
The liahility is determined as the sum of the discounted
value of the expected fuiure bengfits, claims handling and
policy administration expenses, pelicyholder oofions and
guarantees and investment income from assets backing
such llabififies, which are directly related 1o the contract,
less the discounied value of the expected thearefical
premiums that would be required to mesl he futurs cash
oufflows hased en the valuction assumptions used. The
liability is either based on current assumptions or calculated
using the assumpticns established of the time the contract
was issued, in which case o margin for risk and adverse
deviaticn is generally included.

A separaie ieserve for longevity may be established and
included in the meusurement of the liability. Furthermore,
the liabiliny for life insurance confracts comprises the
provision for uneamed premiums and unexpired risks, as
well as for claims outsianding, which includes an esfimale
of the incurred claims that hove not vet been reporied to
the Group.

Adiustments to the licbiliies af cuch reporting dale are
recorded in the income statement. Profits originated from
marging of adverse deviations on runoff contracts, are
recogniscd in the income siatement aver the life of the
sontract, whereas losses are fully recognised in the income
statement during the first year of rumvoff. The liability is
derecognised when the contract expiras, is discharged o
is cancelled,

Met asset value gitributable to unithclders

Unit trusts in which the Group has o pescenioge holding
in excess of 50% have been consolidated. This liability is
referred o as ‘net asset value aftributable to unitholders'.

These liabiliies are designated ot fair value thiough profit
o loss. Fair value is measured o current unit values, which
reflect fair values of underlying assets of he fund.

These liabilities ore derecognised when the reloted
contiacis are setled or disposed of.

Employes entitlements
ij  Refirement benefit ebligations

The Group operates a defined coniribusion retirement
benefit scheme for qualifying employees. The Group
and all its employees also contribuie to he Nationdl
Saciul Security Fund which is also a defined cantribution
scheme. A defined conribution olan is a pension plan
under which the Group pays fixed contribufions into o
saparate entily. The Group\pes ner legal or constructive
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ohligations to pay further contributions if the fund doss
not hold sufficient assels 1o pay ol employees the
benefits relating 1o employee service in the cusrent
and prior pericds,

The Group's contritutions to the defined contribution
schemes gre charged 1o the income statement in the
year to which they relate.

Cash sefled non-share anfilements

The Group has a long-ierm refirement berefit scheme
that is separately administered by Trustees under o
lagal entity tegisterad with the Recfiremeni Benefits
Authority [RBA). The Group has ne legal or canstructive
obligations to pay further contributions if the fund does
not hold sufficient assets 1o pay qualifying employees
the benchits due to them on vestation. The amount
expensed each year is based on the increase in value
of infarce MIF} and charged d'\recﬂy to the income
statement on approval by the Board of directors. The
Group has no claim whatsoever on the amounts that
have not vested as this is redistibuted 1o the exisiing
qualifying members,

Bonus

Stalt are enfitled to o bonus which is based on praset
performance parameters on an annual basis. The full
cost of the bonus is expensed in the year in which it
is earned.

it Olher entilfemnants

The estimated monetary liability for employees accrued
annual leave enfilernent of the balance shest date is
recognised as an expense acerual,

Cither financial liabilifies and insurance payables

Ciher financial Tiabllifies are recognited when due and
measured on inificd recogniion at the fair value of the
consideration recaived less direetly attributable ansection
costs, Subsequent to Iitial recognition, they are measured
at amortised cost using the effective inlerest rate method.

Financial  ligbiliies and  insurance  poyables  are
derscognised when the obligation under the liability is
discharged, cancelled or expired. Vwhen the existing
lighility 1s replaced by ancther from the same lender on
substantially differert terms, or the terms of an existing
licbility are subsiantially modified, such en exchange or
modification is freated as @ derecognition of the eriginal
fiabsility and the recognition of a new liability, and the
difference in the raspective carrying amounts is recognised
in the income statement.

Taxes
Current Income tax

Income tax expense is Ihe aggregale of the charge 1o the
income statement in respect of curent, income tox and
deferred income tax,

Curtent income tax is the amount of income tax payable
on the toxable profit for the year defermined in occordance

1 | |



Financial assets at foir value through profit o loss are
subsequently carried of fair value. Loans and receivables
and heldto-maturity investments are carried af amortised
cast using fne effective intercst method. Realised and
vnrealised gains and losses  arising from changes in
the fair value of the ‘financial assefs al lair value thraugh
profil or loss' cotegory o included in the income
statement in the period in which they arise.

Amortised cost is computed using the eflective interest
method less any aflowance for impairment and principod
repayment or reduction. The caleulation takes inio
cecount any premium or discount on aequisition and
includes fransaction costs and fees that are an integral
part of the effective interesl rate. The fair values of
quoted investmants are basad on current bid pricas. If
the market for @ firancial asset is not active [and for
unlisted securities), the Group establishes fair value
by wsing vaduation technigues. These include the usc
of recent arm’s lengih transactions, reference o other
instruments that are substantially the same, discounted
cash flow anclysis and option pricing models refined to
reflect the issuer's specilic circumstances.

The Group assesses ai sach balarce sheet date wheather
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or
group of financial assels is impaired. A financial assei or
a graup of financial assets is deemed 1o be impaired ff,
and only i, there is objective evidence of impaimment as
a result of one or more events that has ocounsd after the
inificl recognition of the asset {on incurred ‘loss event’) and
that loss event has an imgact an the estimated fulure cash
flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets
that can be reliobly estimated.

Due from lecns and cdvances to customers

For amounts due frem loans and advances to customers
cormied o amortised cost, the Group first assesses
individugily whether objective evidence of impairmenl
exists individuefly for financial assets that are individuclly
significant, or collectively for financial assefs thet are not
individually significant, If the Group determines that no
objective evidence of impairmant exists for an individually
assesscd  financial asset, whether significant or net,
it includes the asset in o group of financial assefs with
similar credit risk characieristics and collectively assesses
them for impairment. Assefs that gre individually asscssed
lor impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or
continues fo be, recognised are not included in o collective
assassment of impairment.

If there is objeciive evidence that an impaiment [oss
has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured
as the difference betwcen the asset’s canying ameunt
and the present value of estimated future cash flows
[excluding future expected credit losses thet hove not
yet been incurred].

The carrying amounl of the asset is recluced thiough the
use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss
is racognised in the income siatement. Infeigst income
continues o be acerued on the reduced camrying amount

Notes to the Financial Statements confinuea
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bused on the orginal effective interest rate of the asset,
loans together with the associated allowance are writlen
off when there is no redlisiic prospect of future recovery
and all colbateral has been realised or has been fransferred
to the Group. I, in a subsequant vear, the amount of the
estimated impaiment loss increases or decreases because
of an event occurring affer the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is increqsed or
reduced by adjusling the allowance account. If a future

wiiterolf is later recovered, the recovery is recognised in
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the income statement.

The present value of the estimated future cash flows is
discounted at the financial asset's eriginal effective interes:
rate. If o loan has a variable interest rate, the discount rate
for measuring any impairment loss is the curent effeclive
interast rate.

Translation of foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at
the functional currency rate prevailing af the date of the
transaction. Monetary assets and liabilites denominated
in foreign curencies are refransiated ot the functional
curiency rate of exchange rling at the balance sheel
date. All differences are token to the income siatement,
MNommonetary iters that ore measured in forms of
historical cost in a foreign curency are franslated using
the exchange rale as at the date of the initial fransaction
and are ot subsequentty restated. Non-monetary items
measured af fair value in a foroign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dote when the fair valus
waos determined. All loreign exchange differcnces are
taken to the income statement,

Acceunting for leases

leases of assets where o significant proportion of the risks
and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
clussified as opetating Fec:scs. Payments made under
operating leases are charged to income on o straightline
basis over the period of the lease.

Land and development

land and development, comprising plots held for resale,
is stated at the lower of cost and net redlisable value. The
vost of land and development includes infrastruciure costs
incurred in respect of unsold plats, which are deferred
and released fo Income as the land is sold.

Insurance receivobles

Insurance receivables are recognised when due and
measured on Initial recognifion at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Subsequent io
inifial recagnition, insurance receivables aie maeasured ot
amortised cost, using the effective interest rate methad.
The carrying value of Insurance receivables is reviewed
for impairment whencver events or circumstances indicofe
that the carmying amounf may not be recaverable, with the
impairment loss recorded in the income statement.

Insurance receivables are derecognised when the
desccognilion criteria for financial assels, as described in
[m] have been mef. '
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usc, the specific softwore. Following initial recognition,
infangible assets aré carried ot cost less amy accumulaied
amorfisation and any accumulated impairment losses. The
useful live of intangible asset are ossessed to be finite.
These cosls are amortised aver their estimated useful lves
[three to five years).

Intangible assels ocquired separately are measured on
inifial recognifion at cost. Foliowing initial recognifion,
infangible assets are carried of cost less any actumulated
amarfisaiion and any cccumulated  impaiment losses.
Internally  gencroted  infangible  ossets,  excluding
capitalised development casts, are nol capitalised and
expenditure is reflected in the income siatement n the year
in which the expenditura is incurred.

Infangible assef with finite ives are assessed for impaitment
wherever there is an indication that the inlangible asset
may be impuired. The amorlisation pericd and the
amortisation method for an intongible asset with a finite
useful life is reviewed ot lsast at sach financial year end.
Changes in the expected usehul life or the expacted pattern
of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in
the asset is accourted for by changing the amortisation
pericd or method, as apprapriate, and arc freated as
changes in accounting  estimates. The  amerfisation
expense on infangible assets with finite lives is recognised
in profit or loss in he expense category consistent with the
function of the intangible asset.

Gains or lossas arising from derecagnifion of an intangible
asset are measured os the difference betwean the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the osset
and are recagnised n the income statement when the
asset is derecognised.

Financial instruments

The Group classifies its financial instuments in the
following categaories: financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and receivables, heldtormaturity and
availobleforsale invesments. The classification depends
on the purpose for which the investments were acquired.
Management determines the classification of its invesiments
at initial recognition and reevaluates such designation at
avery reporting date;

il Financial assets at feir value thiough ool ar loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss
include financiel assets held for trading and these
designatedat fairvalue through profit or loss at inception.
Ivestmenis typically bought with the inlention 1o sell in
the near future are classified as held for roding. For
investments designaied as at fair value through profit or
loss, the following criteria must be met:

+ the designotion eliminates or significantly reduces the
inconsistent reaiment that would otherwise arise from
measuring the assets or liabilities or recagnising gains
of losses an o different basis, o

» the assets and liabilifies are part of G group of financial
assets, financial liokilities ar both which are managed
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* Held-te-maturity
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and theircfaerfonncnce evaluated on q lair value basis,
in accordancs with o documented risk management
or imvesiment strafegy.

These invesiments are initially recorded ot fair value.
Subsequent fo initiah recognition, these invesiments
are remeasured at foir value. Foir value adiusiments
ond realised gain and loss are recognised in the
income staterment.

Financiol assefs at fir value through profit or loss
comprise quoled shares, government  securities,
commercial paper and corperate bonds.

Loans and raceivables

loans and recelvables are nonderivative finoncial
gasets with fixed ar determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. Loans and receivables
are disclesed on the tace of the balance sheet,

Receivables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently mecsured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. A provision
for impairment of receivables is established when
there is objective evidence that the Group will not
be able 1o collect all the amounts due according
to the original terms of receivables. The amount of
lhe pravision is the difference between the carrying
amount and the prasent valve of cstimated future
cash flows, discounted at the original effective
interest rate. The amount of the provision is
recognised in the incame statement.

Held—to-maturity investments

invesiments  are  nen-derivative
financial assets with fixed or deferminable payments
ond tixed maturities that the group has the positive
intention and ability te hold to maturty. Heldto-moturity
investments comprise bonds on Tien. Purchases and
tales of investmenls are recognised on the frade
date, which is the date on which fne Group commits
1o purchase or scll the dsset. Invesiments are initially
recognisad at fair value plus fransaction cosis for all
financial assets not corred at foir value through profit
or loss.

Ayailable — [or - sale nvestmants,

Availableforsale finandial assets are non-derivative
financial assets that are designated o3 available
forsale or are not clussified in any of the thres
preceding caiegories. They include investment in
un - quoled shares. These invesiments are initially
recorded at fair value. Where equity instruments do
nof have o quoted market price in an acfive market
and whose fair value cannat be reliably measured
the instruments have been meosured at cost,

Invesiments are derecognised when the rights to
recaive cash flows from the investments huve expired
or have been transterred and the Group has transferied
substantialy all risks ard rewards of ownership.
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companies. Amounis recoverable from reinsurers are
estimated in @ manner consistent with the oufstanding
claims provision or sefled claims associated with the
reinsurer’s policies and are in accordance with the related
reinsurance confract. Reinsurance assels are reviewed for
impairment at each reporting date or more frequently when
an indication of impairment arises during the reporting
year. Impairment accurs when thers is objective evidence
as o result of an event that accurred after infial recognition
of the reinsurance asset that the Group may not receive all
sutstanding amounis due under the terms of the contract
and the eveni has a reliably rmeasurable impact on the
cmounis that the Group will receive from the reinsurer. The
impairment loss recordad in the income statement.

Guains or losses on buying rainsurance are recognised
in the income sfotement immedictely at the dufe of
purchasc and are not amortised. Ceded reinsurance
anangements do not relleve the Group from iis obligations
io policyholders.

Polieyhalder benefits

Policyholder berefits incured comprise benefits paid
in the yoar and changes in the provision for insurance
centiact liabilities. Benefits paid represent ol payments
made during the vear, whether arising from events during
that or ewrlier years. Insurance coniraet fiakilifies represent
the estimated ulimate cost of setfling all benefits acering
fo policyhclders and are discaunted to the present value.

Deposit administration centracts

The Group administers the funds of @ number of retirement
benefit schemes. The liability of the group fo the schemes
is included in the balance sheet.

Property and equipment

All categories .of property .ond equipment are inifially
recorded of cost. Buildings and frechold land cre

subsequenty shown ot maket vdlue, based on
valuations by  external . independent  valuers. Al
other property and  equipment is  sialed at

historical cost less accumulated  depreciction  and
accumulated impaiments.

Subsequent cosis are included in the asset’s camying
amotnt or recognised as a separate assat, as appropriale,
only when if is probable that fuure economic benefits
associated with the flem will flow to the group and the
cost of the lem can be measured refiably. All other repairs
and maintenance are chaiged 1o the income stalement
during the financial pericd in which they are incurred.

Incraases in the carrying amount anising on revaluation
are credited to o revaluation surplus reserve in equity.
Decreases that offset previous incregses of the same asset
are charged against the revaluation surplus; all other
decreases are charged to the income statement,

Freehold land is not depreciated. Depreciation on othar
ussels is cafeulafed using the siraight line method o
write down their cost or révalued amount to their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Notes fo the Financial Statements confinvea
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Buildings - Ovor the unexpired lease period
Equipment and

Motor vehicles 3-8 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriale, at each balance sheet dale.

Property and equipment are reviewed for impairment
whenever evenfs or changes in circumsiances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recagnised for the amount by which the
asset’s carmying amount exceeds ifs recoverable amount,
The recoverable ameount is the higher of an assef's fair
value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted 1o
their present value using a pre-ax discount rate that reflects
current markst assessments of the time value of moncy and
the risks specific 1o the assef. In determining fair volue
less casts fo sell, an appropricte valuation model is usad
For the purpeses of assessing impairmant, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels lor which there are separately
identifiable cash flows [cash-genarating units).

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expacted from its use or disposal,

Gains and losses on disposal of property and
equipment are determined by reference ro their carrying
amounts and are ioken info account in dcrerminlng
operating profif.

Investment property

Buildings, or part of o building, and land ffreehcld or held
under an operating lease) held for lang teim renial vields
and/or capital appreciation and are not occupied by the
Group are classified as invesiment property. Investment
propeity is initially measured at cost, including fransaction
Cosls. Subsequen’r\y invesiment property s carried o
foir value, representing open market value determined
annually by external valuers. Changes in fair values are
included in investment income Tn the income statement,

investment properties are derecognised when either they
have been disposed off or when the investmenr property is
permanenily withdrown From use and no future econamic
benelit is expected from iis disposal. On dispasal of an
invesiment propery, the difference between the disposal
proceeds and the carrying amounf is charged or credited
fo the income staterment.

Transfers are made to or from investment property anly
when there s @ change in use. For o transfer from
invesiment property 1o owner occupied propeify, the
deemed cost for subsequent accounfing is the fair value
at the date of change in use. If owner occupied property
becomes an investment property, the Group accounts for
such property in accordance with the policy stated under
property, plant and equipment up to the date of change
in use.

Acquired computer software licences are capitalised on
the basis of the costs incurred fo acquire and bring o
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recognised in resarves. The cumulative postacquisiticn
mavements are adjusted against the carrying amount
of the mvestment. When the Group's share of losses
in an associale equals o exceeds ifs interest in the
associate, including any other unsecured receivables,
the Group does not recognise further losses, unless 1t
has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf
of the associate. :

Unreclised gains on transactions between the Group and
its associates are eliminated io the extent of the Group’s
inferest in the associates. Uniealised losses are also
eliminaled unless the ransaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset fransferred.

The financial sialements of the associate are prepared for
the same reporting petiod as the parent company. Where
necessary, adjusiments are made o bring s accounting
policies in line with the Group.

Segment reporting

A business segmert is o group of assefs and operaticns
engagad in providing producs or services that are subject
to risks and retums that are different from those of other
business segments. A geographical segment is engaged
in providing products or services within a particular
economit environment that are subject io risks and raturns
that are different from those of segments operating in other
economic envirenments.

Income recognition
Gross premiums

Gross recurring premiums on life and invesiment contracts
recognised as revenue when payable by the policyhalder.
For single premium business revenue 1s recognised on the
date on which the policy is effective.

Cross general insurance wilten premiums comprise the
total premiums receivable for the whole period: of cover
provided by contracts entered inte during the accounting
pariod and are recognised on the date on which the policy
incepts. Prermiums include any adjustments arising in the
accounting period for premiums receivable in respect of
business writien in prior accounting periods. Premiums
collecied by intermediaries, but not yet received, are
assessed based on estimates from underwriting or past
experience and are included in premiums writien.

Uneamed premiums are those proportions of premiums
writilen in @ year that relale to periods of risk after the
balance sheet date. Uneamed premiuvms are calculated
on a daily pro rate basis. The proportion atiributable
to subsequent periods is deferred as a provision for
unearned premiums.

Reinsurance premiums

Gross reinsurance  premivms on life and  Invastment
confracts are recognised as an expensa when payable or
on the date on which the policy is effective.

Gross general refnsurance premiums wirittlen comprise
the 1oial premiums payable for the whele cover previded
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by contracts entered info the pericd and are recognised
on the date on which the policy incepts. Premiums
include any adiusiments orising in the accounting period
in respeci of reinsurance cenfracts incepting in prior
accounting periods,

Ureamed reinsurance premiums.are those propartions
of premiums wrilen in-a year that relafe o periods of
risk after the balance shest date. Uneomed reinsurance
premiums are deferred over the term of the underlying
direci insunince policies for risksattaching  contracts
and over the term of the reinsurance controct for losses
occurming contracts.

Fees and commission incame

insurance ond  investment contract policyholders are
charged for policy adminisiration services, investment
management services, surrenders and other contract fees.

These fees are-recognised as revenue over the period

in which: the related services are performed. If the fees
are for services provided in future periods then they are
deferred and recogrised over those future periods.

Investment income:

Interest income is recognis_ed in the income statement as
it accrues and is caleulated by using the effective interest
rate method. Fees and commissions that are an integral
part of the effeciive yield-of the financial asset or liability .
are recognised as an adjustment fo the effective interest
raté of the insrument.

Investment income also includes dividends when the right
o recaive payment is established.

Rental income

Rental income arfsing from operaiing leoses on investment
properties is accounted for on a straight line basis over the
lease terms.

Benefits, claims and expenses recognition
Gross benefits and claims

Gross benefits and claims for life insurance contracts and
{or investment contracts include the cost of all claims arising
during the year ineluding internal and extermal claims
handling costs thet are directly relafed 1o the processing
and setlement of claims as well as changes in the gross
valuation of insurance and investment contract liabilities.
Daath claims and surrenders cre recorded on the basis
of notifications received. Maturities and annuity payments
are recorded when due.

Reinsurance claims

Reinsurance claims are recognised when the related gross
insurance claim is recognised according to the terms of
the relevant coniraci.

Reinsurance

The Group. cedes insurance risk in the normal course of
kusiness for all of its businesses.

Reinsurance assets reprasent balances due from reinsurance

e |



IAS 39 Financial Insiuments:  Recagnifion  and
Measurement: Changes in circumstances  relating
to derivafives are not reclassifications and thersfore
may be either remaved from, or included in, the ‘fair
value through profit or loss’ dassification ofter initief
recognition. Removed the reference in 1AS 39 1o a
‘segment’ when defermining whether an instrument
qualifies as o hedge. Reguire the use of the revised
sffective interast rte when remeaisufing a debi instrument
* on the cessation of fair value hedge accounting.

IAS 40 Investment Property: Revision of the scope such
that property undar constuction or development for
fulure use as an investment property, is classified as
investment property. If fair value cannot be reliably
determined, the investment under construction will be
measured at cost until such time as fair value can be
determined or construction is complete, Alsc, revised
the condiiions for a veluntary change in accounting
policy to be consistent with 1AS 8 ond clarified thar
the carrying amount of investment property held under
a lease is the valuation cbiained increcsed by ony
recognised liability.

IAS 41 Agriculture: Removed the reference fo the
use of a prefax discount rate to determine fair value.
Removed the prohibition to take into account cash
flows resulfing from any additional transformafions
when estimating fair value. Also, replaced the ferm
“‘oointolsale costs” with ‘costs 1o sell’.

IFRIC interpeetotions not yet effective

IFRIC 13 Customer Loyally Programmes: IFRIC 13
was issued in June 2007 and becomes effective for
annual pericds beginning on or after 1 July 2008,
This Interpretation requires customer loyalty award
credits to be accounted for as a separate component
of the sales transaction in which they are granied and
therefore part of the fair valve of the consideration
received is allocated to the award credits and
deferred over the period that the award credits are
fuifilled. The Group expects that this inferpretation will
have no impact on the Group’s financial statements as
no such schemes currently exist,

IFRIC 15 Agresment for the Construction of Redl
Estafe: IFRIC 15 was issved in July 2008 and
becomes effective for financial years beginning on
or after 1 January 2009. The interpretation s to be
applied refrospectively. I clarifies when and how
revenue and related expenses from the sale of a real
estate unit -should be recognised if an agreement
between a developer and @ buyer is reached before
the censtruction of the real esiate is completed.
Furthermore, the inferprefafion provides guidance on
how 1o determine whether an agreement is within the
scope of IAS 11 or tAS 18 IFRIC 15 will not have
an impact on the consolidated financial stglement
because the Graup does not conduct such activity.

[FRIC 16 Hedges of a Nat Investment in o Fareign
Operation: IFRIC 16 was issved in July 2008 and
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becomes effective for financial vears beginning on
or after 1 Cetober 2008. The interpretation is fo be
applied prospactively. IFRIC 14 provides guidance an
the accounting for a hedge of a net invesiment. As
such it provides guidance on identifying the foreign
curreney risks that qualify for hedge accounting in the
hedge of @ net investment, where within the group
the hedging instuments can be held in the hedge of
a net investment and how ¢n enfity should defermine
the ameunt of foreign currency guin or loss, relating
io both the net investment and the hedging instrument,
to be recycled on disposal of the net investment. The
Croup expects that this inferprefation will have no
impact on the consolidated financial statements as it
has no Investments in Foreign Operation.

IFRIC 17 Distrikution of non cash assels to owners: IFRIC
17 was issued in July 2008 and becomes effective for
financicl years beginning on or after 1 July 2009, The
interprefation is to be opplied prospectively. IFRIC 17
provides guidance on how an entity should account
for distribulions of cssefs other than cash (non-cash
assefs| as dividends fo ifs owners, including situafions
where an enfity may also give iis owners o choice of
receiving eithar noncash assets or a cash dlfemative.
The Group expects that this interpraiation will have ro
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Consclidation

The consolidated financial

sigtements comprise  the

financial statements of the Group as at 31 December
sach year The financial siatements of the subsidiaries
are prepared for the same reporfing year as the parent
company, using consistent accounting policies.

Imvestments in subsidiaries in the Group financial statements
are carried at cost less cny impaitment losses recogrised.

)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are ol entities over which the Group
has the power fo govern the financial and operating
policies generally accompanying o shareholding of
mare than one half of the voling rights. Subsidiaries
are fully censolidated from the date on which control
is fransterred to the Group. They are de-consolidated
from the dotte the control ceases.

All intra-group balances, transactions, inceme and
expenses and prafils and losses resulting from infra-
group fransacticns are eliminated in fuil,

Associakes

Associates are all enfifies over which the Group
has significant inflience but not contrel, generally
accompanying o sharsholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Invastments in associates are
oecounted for by the equity method of accounting and
are initially recognised of cost,

The Group's share of its ossociates’ postacquisition
profits or losses is recognised in the income stafement
and its share of pre-acquisition movements in reserves is



conditions are nonvesting conditians, which have to
be faken into account lo defermine the fair value of
the equity instruments granted. The Group currently
does not have sharebased poyment schemes with
nonvesting  conditions  allached ond,  therefore,
does not expect significant implications as a resul
of this amendment,

IFRS 3R Business Combinations and 1AS 27R
Censclidated and Separate Finencial Statements - The
revised standards were issued in January 2008 and
become effective for financial years beginning on or
after 1 July 2009. IFRS 3R introduces @ number of
changes in the accounting for business combinafions
oceurring affer this date that will impact the amaunt of
goodwill recognised, the reparted results in the period
that an acquisition occurs, and future reported results.
IAS 27R requires that a change in the ownership
interest of o subsidiary [withoui loss of control} is
accounted for as an equily fransaction, Theretare,
such a Iransaction will no longer give rise to gocdwil,
nor will it give rise fo o goin o loss. Furhermare, the
cmended standard changes the accounting for losses
incurred by the subsidiary as well as the loss of contral
of a sohsidiary. Cther consequential amendrments
were made to 1AS 7 Slatement of Cash Flows, 1AS
12 lncome Taxes, 1AS 21 The Efects of Changes
in Foreign Exchange Rates, IAS 28 Invesiment in
Associates ond 1AS 31 Inferests in Joint Ventures. The
changes by IFRS 3R and 145 278 will affect future
acquisitions or less of control and transactions with
minority interests. The Group doss not intend o take
advantage of this passibiliy.

IAS 1 Revised Preseniation of Financial Stotements -
the revised Standard was issued in September 2007
and becomes sffective for financial years begirning
on or affer 1 January 2009 The Slondard separates
owner and narowner changes In equity. The
statement of changes in equity will include only defails
of transactions with awners, with non-owner changes
in equity presented as a single line. In addition, the
Standard infroduces the statement of comprehensive
income: it presents all items of recognised income
and expense, either in one single statement, or in fwo
linked statements. The Group is siill evaluating the
effects of this revision, but has not early adopted.

C1AS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and 1AS

1 Presentaiion of Financial Statements - Putiable
Finoncial Instruments and Qbligaticns Arising on
liquidation - These amendments were issued in
February 2008 and become sffective for financial
years beginning on or after 1 January 2009, The
revisions provide o limifed scope exception for
puttable instruments fo be classified as equity if they
fulfil @ number of spacified features. The amendments
to the stardards will have ne impact on the financial
position or performance of the Group, as the Group
has not issued such instruments.

T T
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Irprovements io [FR3s

In ey 2008 Improvements fo 1FRS's were issuad. There
are separate fransitional provisions for each standard.
MNone of these amendments are expecied to have @
material effect on the Gioup, The Group has not early
adopled the follewing amendments:

IFRS 7 Financial Instrumants: Disclosures: Removal of
the: reference to ‘lotal interest incoma’ as @ compenen!
of finance costs.

IAS 8 Accounting Pelicies, Change in Accounting
Estimates and  Crors:  Clorification  that — only
implementation guidance that is an iniegral part of an
IFRS is mandatory when selecting accounting policies.

145 10 Events after the Reporling Period: Clarification
that dividends declared ‘ofier the end of the reperting
period are not obligations.

185 16 Froperty, Flont and Equipment: lrems of
property, plant and equipment held far rental that are
roufingly sold in the ordinary course of busincss after
rental, are transferred to inventory when renfal ceases

and they are held for sale.

IA518 Revenue: Replacement of the term *direct costs’
with “ranscaction casts' as defined in 1AS 39,

IAS 19 Employes Benefits: Revisad the definition of ‘past
service costs’, ‘refurn on plan assets’ and “short term’
and ‘other longterm’ employee benelils, Amendments
to plans that result in o reduction in benefits rslated
to fulure services cre aocounted for as a curtailment.
Deleted the reference to the recognition of contingent
ligkilities to ensure consistency with 1AS 37,

185 20 Accounling for Government Grants and
Disclosures of Government Assistance: Loans granted
it the future with no or low interest rates will not be
exempt from the requirement fo impute interest. The
diffsience between the amount received and the
discounted amount is accounted far as government
grant. Alse, revised various terms used to be consistent
with other IFRS.

IAS 27 Consolidoled ond  Seporate  Financial

~ Statements: When o parent enlity ceeounts for

subsidiary at fair value in eccordance with IAS 32 in its
separate financial starements, this reciment confinues
when the subsidiary is subsequenily classified as held
for sale.

IAS 29 Financlal Reporing in Hyperinflationary
Economies: Revised the reference 1o the exception fo
measure assets and liabilities at historical cost, such
thett it notes property, plont and equipment as being
an example, rather thar implying that it is a definitive
list. Also, revised various terms used to be consistent

with ather IFRS.

1AS 34 Interim Finencial Reparting: Earnings per share
is disclosed in inferim financial reports it an entity is
within the scope of IAS 33, '

I
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies adopted  in the
preparation of lhese financial statements are sef out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to
all years prescnted, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements are prepared in compliance
with Internafional Financial Reporing Standards {IFRS).
The financial stclements are presented in the functioncl
currency, Kenya Shillings  (KShs.) rounded fo the nearest
one thousand, ond prepored under the hisorical  cost
convention, as  modified by the camying of certain
property  and  equipment, invesment property and
cerfain invesiments at foir value, impaired assefs at their
recoverable ameounts and aciuarially determined liahilities
af their  prasent value. The preparation of financial
statements in conformity with IFRS reguires the use of
estimaies and assumptions. It also requires managarment
fo exercise ils judgement in the process of applying the
group's accounling policies.

Financial wssets and finoncial liabiliies are offset and
the net amount reported in the bolance sheet only when
there is & legally crforceable right to offset the recognised
ameounis and there is an intention to sellle on a net basis, or
io realise the assefs and seitle e liability simulraneously.
Income and expenses will noi be offsef in the income
statement unless required or permitted by any accounting
stondard o inferpietation, as specifically disclased in the
accouniing policies of the Group.

Adoption of new and revised standards
Chengss in accounting policies

The accounting policies adopied are consistent with those
of the previous financial year except os follows:

The Group has adepted the following new and amended
IFRS and IFRIC inferpretations during the year. Adoption
of these revised standards and interpretations did not
have any matericl elfect on the financial peformance
ot posilion of the Group. They did however give rise to
additional disclosures.

= IAS 23 Bomowing costs. The revision requires
capifalisation of borowing costs when such costs
relate to o gualifiing asset. A qualifying asset is
on asset that necessarily tokes a substantic! peried
of fime to gef ready for its intended vse or sole.
Previously the Standard alse permitied such costs to
be expensad os incurred and this was the Group's
previous accounfing palicy. The adoption of this
interpretation has had ne impact on the financial
position or performance of the Group.

» |AS 39 - Financial instruments: Recognition and
Measurements. The amendrment allows reclassifications
of cerfain financial instuments out of the fair value
Ihiough profit or loss category under cerlain conditions.
In erder to comply with the Group policy, the Group
opled not fo take advantage of this amendment, which

Notes to the Financial Statements
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APA Insurance, an associate of the Group adepted.

* IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures. Due fo
amendment in IAS 39 above, there waos a tequirement
for odditional disclosures abaut the situations in which
any such reclassifications were made, and the effents
on the financial sictements,

* |FRS 8 Operating Segmenis. This Standard requires
disclosure of information about the Group's operating
segments and replaced the requirement to determing
primary {business] and secondary [geographical]
reporting  segmenis of the Group. The Group
determired that the operating segments were the
sama a3 the businass segments proviously identitied
under I1AS 14 Segment Reporting.

¢ |FRIC 1% - Service Concession Arangements, This
inferpretation sels out general principfes on recognising
and measuring the obligations and related rights in
Service concession arangesments.

* [FRIC 141AS 19 The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asser.
Minimum Funding Requirements and their Interaction.
This inferpretation provides guidance on how to assess
the fimit on the amount of surplus in o defined benefit
scheme that can be recognised as an asset under
|AS 19 Employse Bencefits. As the Group's defined
benefit scheme 1s currently in deficit the adopfion of
this interpretation has had no impuct on the financial
position or perfarmance of the Graup.

Standards issued but ot yet effective

The following amendment fo an existing stondards and
new standards and interpretations will be mandatory
for the company's accounting periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2009, but which the Group has not
early adopted:

* IFRS 1 Firstime Adopfion of International Financial
Reporfing Standards end 14$ 27 Consolidated and
Separate Fingncial Stafements - The amendments
fo IFRS 1 allow an enlity 1o determine the ‘cost’ of
invastments in subsidiaries, jointly contralled enfifies or
associates in ifs opening FRS financial sfatements in
accordance with IAS 27 or using o deemed cost. The
amendments fo 145 27 require all dividends from «
subsidiary, jeintly controlled entity o associate to be
recognised in the income strlement in the separaie
financial siatements. Both revisions will be effective
tor financial vears beginning on or afler 1 Januory
2008, The evision ta IAS 27 will have to be applied
prospactively. The new requirements affect only ihe
parent’s separcie financial statements and do not have
an impact on the consalidated financial sfafements.

¢ RS 2 Sharebased Poyment [Amendments] - This
amendment 1o IFRS 2 Sharebased payments was
issued in Jonuary 008 and becomes effective
for financial years beginning on or affer 1 January
2009. The Standard restricts the definition of “vesfing
condition” to a condition that includes an explicit or
implicit requirement to provide services. Any other
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Group Cash Flow Statement
For The Yecr Endied 31 December 2007

Year ended 31 December 2007

Investmenis
Leng ferm general Property
insurance business  development Group
Note  K5hs.'000 KShs."000 KShs.'000 KShs.’000
OQperating activities
: Cash generated from operaticns 38 B30,097 14,237 49,227 893,561
Inferest incorme | 198,520 22,188 19,363 240,071
}: Net cosh from/{used in) operating activities B 1,028,417 _ 36,425 6_8,590 ],133,63?
Investing activities:
l Purchase of property and equipment 186 [14,530) [19) (378 (14,927)
l Purchase of quoted shares . {434,938} {194,568) [107,254) [738,760)
' Purchase of governmant securilies (518,142] 138,617} {146,860) {703,619
1 Purchase of commercial papsr 153.985 ]53,085"
Martgage loans advanced {39,278} (39.278)
Repayments of morigage loans 25 2.634 6,771 - 16,405
_ MNet policy loans udvclmced {105,370) (105,370
L : Proceeds from the sale of government securities 209,237 37,061 ' 246,298
i Proceeds from disposal of property and eguipment 1,212 220,000 221,312
Proceeds from disposal of quoted shares 573,637 16,981 83,039 673,657
Dividend received from associaie - 8,394 . 8,394
Purchase of software ) ' {3,078) - R AL
, Net cash from/(used in] investing activities (167,531 56,003 (171,453) (282,981}
E Financing Activities: ‘
N Dividends paid /received from subsidiary (243,317} {12,000} 255,317
| Dividends paid ] o - [69_,1 20 (62, 120)
3 MNet cash from[{used in) financing activities o (243,317] [12,000) 186, 97—__[6_9,1_1_22
{Decreuse/increase in cash and cash equivalents 617,769 80,428 83,334 781,531
Mavement in cash and cash equivalenis
At the siart of the year 314192 8412 12,885 335589
/ [Decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents 017,769 80,428 83,334 781,531
| Atend of year _ 21 931,961 88,840 96,219 1,117,020

L | e S |
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B Group Cash Fow Statement
0(0%5 L\\x»\@ For The Year Ended 31 December 2008

Year ended 31 December 2008

Investments
long ferm general Properiy
insurance business  development Group

Note  K8hs.'000 KShs."000 KShs."000 KShs."000
Operating activities
Cash generated from aperations 38la] 363,163 (26,931) (231,712) 104,520
Investing activities
Inferast income 308,056 10,430 4,255 322741
Renial income 23,449 23,449
Purchase of property and equipment 18(q) (42,440} (42,440}
Purchase of quoted shares {597,208) (118,962 i716,170)
Purchase of government securities [(516.075] {1,892 105,810 (412,157]
Purchase of commerzial paper 108,392 [564,098) {164 491}
Morlgage loans advanced 25 {33,641] {33,641)
Repayment of morigage loans 12,479 1,406 13,885
Net palicy loans advanced 172,621 172,621
Proceeds from disposal of property and equipmeni 2,000 : 2,000
Proceeds from disposal of quoted shares 472,362 113,571 56,569 502,502
Dividend receivad from associale - 7,195 . 7,195
Purchose of sofware _ [©.570) o - (&,570)
Net cash from investing activities _ (363,359} . (44,357) 166,634 (241,07¢)
Fingnging activities:
Transfer to shareholders” fund (53,684 153,684}
Transfer from subsidiary 53,684 53,684
Dividends received 18,894 18,894
Dividends paiid _ - (18,8941 {76,800}  [95,694]
Met cash used in financing activities ) (53.684] {18,894 {4,222 {76,800}
Decrecsé in cash and cash equivalents {53.880) (90,176) (69,300 {213,354)
Cash af starl of the year o 931,961 88,840 96,219 1,117,020

At end of year Z1 878,081 {1.33¢4) 26,9219 203,664



Year ended 31 December 2007

Company Statement of Changes in Equity
For The Year Ended 31 December 2008

Share Share Transfer Refained
capital premium life fund earnings Total
KShs. ‘000 KShs. 000 KShs.'000 Kshs."000 KShs."Q00
At start of the year before
transfer to life fund 240,000 364,431 (297,001 708,461 1,015,891
Transfer fram life funds 72,995 72,995
Loss for the vear - {3,584 [3,584)
Final dividends paid for 2006 {nole 37) (69, 120) 169, 120}
244,000 364,431 (224,006} 635757 1,016,182
Year ended 31 December 2008
At start of the year before ranster 1o lite fund 240,000 364,431 (224,006} 635,757 1,016,182
Prior year adjysiment {note 33k ] - 1813 (813
At 01 lanuary - restated 240,000 364,431 (224,006) 634,944 1,015,369
Transter from life funds 53,684 53,084
Loss for the year {28,375} {28,375}
Final dividends paid for 2007 [note 37) (76,800 (76.800)
240,000 364,431 (170,322 520,769 963,878




Year ended 31 December 2007

Group Statement of Changes in Equity
for The Year Ended 31 Decamber 2008

Share Share  Transfer Revaluation Refcined  Staiutory
capital  premium  life fund reserve  earnings fund Total

KShs.'000  KShs."000 KShs.'C00 KShs.'000 KShs.'000 KShs. 000 KShs."000
At 01 January — As previously repertad 240,000 394,431  [53,684) FAZS 769,134 - 1,327,317
Prict year Od]us#menf__[nofe 33q) - (208,326 [063]  (24,792) 132523 (101,258}
At 01 Janucry - restated 240,000 364,431 (262,010 6,773 744,342 132,523 1,226,059
Profit for the year ' - 201,072 201,072
Transler o shareholders’ fund 53,684 (53,484)
Transfer to statuiory fund {121.8501 121830
Revaluation of buildings 2,521 2,521
Share of associales revaluation
gain on freehald kand and buildings Q79 Q/9
Final dividends paid for 2006 [note 37) _ _ (69,120) - 89,120
At 31 December 240,000 364,431 [208.328) 10,273 700,760 254,373 1,361,511
Year ended 31 December 2008
At 01 January - As previously reporied 240,000 344,431 (170,322) 10,2356 700968 292,172 1,438,185
Prior year adjustment {note 33b) (38,004 {663 (208) (37.799) (76,674)
Al 0T Junuary - restated 240,000 364,431 [208,328) 10,273 700,760 254,373 1,361,511
Loss for the year - - (25,903 [25,599)
Transter to statutory fund - {134,458) 134,458 _
Revaluation of buildings (3,885) (3,885)
Share of associates revaluation gain
on freehold land and buildings 1,118 - 1,118
Final dividends paid for 2007 frote 37) (76,800) [76,800)
At 31 December 240,000 364,43_] (208,324) 7,506 393,504 388,83__]. 1,185,944




Company Balcnce Sheet
For The Year Ended 31 Decemiber 2008

Restated
MNote 2008 2007
KShs.'000 KShs."000
i Assets
Investment in subsidiaries 17 1,010,212 1,010,212
Investment in associales 17 7,311 7.830
Property and equipment 18{b) 168 245
Investment property 19 &,000 6,000
land and development 88,525 47,732
i Cumrent income tax 13,680 13,680
i Financial insfruments:
i:|1 Financial assets ot fair value through profit or loss _ ' 7978 171,453
3 Avalloble for sale 3,827 -
Other recsivasles 35,445 41,332
Short term deposits with financial ingtitufions 21 19,259 77915
g;:_sh and cash equivalents _ _ 21 ~ 7,681 18,303
; Total Assets 1,200,066 1,394,909
ik Sharehelders’ Equity and Liabilifies
IB Capital employed
y Share capital 22 240,000 240,000
1 Share premium : 364,431 364,431
Ik Retained samings 520,769 634,944
| __ Transfer to fife funds ) 23 - 1170,322) | [224,006)
Shareholders’ Funds 963,878 1,015,349
T Liabilitias
i Other poyables 32 236188 379,540
Total Shareholders’ Equity and Liabilit[e_s 1,200,066 1,394,92
e '
,--| The financicl stolements on poges 44 - 98 were opproved by: the Board of Diractors on 16 March 2009 and signed on its behalf by:
<‘ John P N Simba : Tom Gitogo
Chairman ' Chief Executive
16 March 2009 14 March 2009
- N I [ N S
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Group Balance Sheet
For The Year Ended 31 December 2008

Restated
Mote 2008 2007
KShs. 000 KShs,'000
Assets
Intangible assets 16 8,240 5,289
Invesmments in associates 17 508,158 648,748
Praperty and equipmant 18{a) 65,205 60,147
Invesfment property 19 374,500 234,500
Financial nstruments
Heldtomaturity financial assets Noa, bupe et 20 492,523 231,551
Loans and receivables SHF +A0Mq0 L0303 20 338,598 524,222
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 20 3,036,894 2,799,823
Available for sale _&_vff"‘;{ ﬁ“‘aﬁ 20 3,827 -
Land and development E’;.;D’?; 239 88,525 47,732
Current income tox recoverable 23,293 23,293
Reassurers” share of technical provisions and reserves 30,629 50,900
Receivables arising out of reassurance amangements - 6,837
Receivables arising out of direct insurance arrangements 220,073 113,607
Short term deposits with finant_:'lc:i institutions 21 830,417 1,054,350
Cash and cosh equivalents 21 73,247 é2,670
Tofal Assets ] 6,094,129 5,863,669
Shareholders’ Equity and Liabilities
Capital employed
Share capital 22 240,000 240,000
Share premivm 364,431 364,431
Revaluation surplus 7,506 10,273
Retnined eamings 323,504 700,760
Transter to life funds 23 (208,326] {208,326
General fund 24 388,831 254,373
Shareholders’ Funds 1,185,946 1,361,511
Liailities Cunerenst-Linds
Insurance coniraet liahiliies LG 28 3,693,567 3,226,024
Amaounts payable under depdsit administration gontracs {Dc;zw 28 352,405 293,372
Claims reported and claims handling expenses 4@%};@4 117,427 135,068
Crediiors arising from reassurance arrangements o 39,227 63,248
Current income tax T)D’- L m2g 50,700 38,004
Deferred tax - 30 28,930 -
Provisions 31 111,285 ©F7 285
Cther payables 32 514,642 636,783
Total Liabilities 4,908,183 4,502,158
Total Sharehclders’ Equity and Liabilities 6,094,12¢ 5,863,669

The financial siotements an pages 44 - 98 were approved by the Board of Directors on 16 March 2009 and signed on its behalf by:

John P N Simka

Chairmuan

16 March 2009

Torn Gitoga
Chief Exacutive

16 March 2009
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Company Income Statement
For The Year Ended 31 December 2008

_ 2008 2007
KShs. ‘000 KShs. Q00
income
Investment income 4,473 22,097
Income from associated companies {525) 294
Dividends received from subsidiary 18,894 12,000
Cther income QQE_’»__ 10,204
23,840 44,595
Operating expenses {52,215} (48,179
Loss bafore income tax 128,375] (3,584)
Income tax ) -
Loss for the year (28,375 (3,584)
PAIH share price vs. NSE 20 - Share Index
5000 + — 120
5000 + 100
4,000 + 80
3,000 + 60
2:000 T 40
];OOO T 1 20
- t = t { -

3/06 /06 9/06 12/06 3/07 /07 9/07 12/07 3/08 &/08 $/08 11/08 12/08
«ffi= NSE - Shore Index == PAIH - Share Price
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Group Income Statement
For The Year Ended 31 December 2008

Restaled
Note 2008 2007
KShs.’000 KShs.'000
Results from operating activities
Gross premiums Q 2,510,032 2,070,433
Premiums ceded to reinsurers (191,238} [236,763)
Met-premiums 2,31 8,09;4 1,833,670
Fees and commission income 10 51,106 59015
Investment income 1 1a) 282,373 191,204
Realised gains/[loss) 114k} 83,627 (67,468
Fair value gains and losses 11 {181,957) 218,704
Cther opercfing revenue 11(d} 1,112 19,042
Other revenué 234,261 420,497
Total revenue _ 2,554,355 2,254,167
Gross benefits and claims paid 12 {1,174,841) {615,5G1]
Claims ceded o reinsurers 12 105,710 146,042
Gross change in contract liabilities 12 (456,643] (808,719
Met benefits and ;Icims paid 12 [1',525-,-774} (1,278,248)
Other operating and administrative expenses 13 {858,9035) 1839,449]
Total benefits, claims a_nd other expenses {2,384,679) (2,117,717)
Profit from operating activities '{69,;576 136,450
Results from invasting activities
Invesimeni income 1 1{a) 48,346 59,872
Realised gains 11{b) 72,978 265,889
Fair value gains and losses 1) (49,626} {235,343
Other operating revenue 11(d) ' 23.438
Share of loss of associcte (133,703) [@65]
Tetal revenue (112,003} 112,891
Investment expenses (74,042} (64,347)
{Loss)/Profit from investing activities {1 86,045] 48,544
{Loss) /Profit before tax {16,359 184,994
Income fax expense 15 {79,630 [38,004]
[Losst/Profit for the year (95,999} 146,990
{Lozs:, Earnings per shore _
Basic {loss)/earnings per ordinary share [KShs.) 33 {1.99) 3.03
Dilvted Hloss!/earmings per ordinary share {KShs | . {1.99] 3.03



Embedded Value Report continued
for The Year Ended 31 December 2008

6. Sensitivities

This sechion illusirafes the effect of different cssumptions on the value of intorce business net of cost of capiral. The effect of
assumption chonges in the MNat Premium valuation has been included in the value of irforce business. For each sensitivity
ihustrated all other assumptions have been left unchanged.

; Value of % change
; in force over base
,f KShs.'0C0
| Values as at 31 December 2008 1.091,858
- Policy discontinuance rate increases by 10% e.g. from 10% 10 11% :; 1,091,517 0.0%
Future: expense increases by 10% : 1,026,139 -6.0%:
Expense inflation increases by 1% e.g. from 10% 10 11% 1,083,332 0.8%
: Portality and morbidity experience increases by 10% 1,066,899 -2.3%)
Invesimant refurns decrease by 1% e.g. from 10% to 9% I 1,039,239 -4.8%
, Premium ircreass fakeup rate decreases by 10% e.g. from 90% 10 81% : ],087,8§3 O4%l
i The sensifivity of the value of new business is as follows:
Value of one year's new business as at 31 Degember 2007 . 101,051
; Policy discontinuance rate increcses by 10% e.g. fiom 10% 1o 11% ! QG;,QQO -1.7%
') Future expense increases by 10% 83,800 17 0%
"i: Expense inflation increases by 1% e.g. from 10% 10 11% 98,979 : 2.0%
. Mortality and morbidity experience increases by 10% 75,128 . 25.6%|
l Investment retumns decrease by 1% e.g. from 10% to 9% 00,319 -10.6%
( Premium increase lakeup rafe decreases by 10% e.g. fram 0% 1o 81% 90,584 | -1.4%
Increase in nonscommission acguisition expenses by 10% 77,370 -23.4%

Assumed Management Action

Moriality charges have been assumed to change in ling with the costs of providing benefits.

I B

Giles T Wough MA, FIA, FASSA, ASA
! Statutory Actuary,
- Fellow of the Institute of Actuaries

i - 16 March 2009

T T e
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Embedded Value Report Continved
For The Year Ended 31 Decemiber 2008

4. Sensitivily to the Risk Discount Rate

The risk discount rate appropriate to an invester will vary depending on the irvestar’s own requirements, fax position and

perception of the risks associated with the realisation of the future profits of the Group. The sensifivity of the embedded value to

the risk discouni rate is set out below:

Risk Discount Rate 15.12% 16.12% 17.12%

KShs ‘000 KShs ‘GO0 KShs ‘000
Shareholders’ net assets - ].;007,42-] 1 ,007,4’2"] 1-,907,421 .
Value of inforce business 1,118,216 1,091,858 1,064,013
Embedded value | | | 3,025,637 2999279 2,971,434
Value of one vear's new businass at valuation daie _ 111,148 . 101,051 Q1,475

5. Assumptions

The assumptions used in the calculation of the embedded value are based on the Group’s best estimate of fulure experience

The main assumptions used are as follows:

]

<l

d}

e)

Economic Assumptions

The main ecanomic assumptions [p.a.} used are as follows:

2008 2007
% p.a % p.u
Risk Discount Rate 1612 15.00
Overall invesiment return [pre fax] 11.95 11.10
Expense Inflation rafe 8.12 8.00

Marialiry Rotes

The assumptions for future morlality rotes are based on the results of recent experience Tnvestigations conducted by the
company. Allowance has been made for expecied lulure AIDS martality using a toble derived for the Kenyan experience.

Expensss
The mainienarce expense assumption is based on the results of recently conducted internal expense invesfigations.
Premiurn Escalations

The embedded value of inforce business includes the expected value of fuiure premium increcses rasulting from
premium indexation arrangements on inforce business. The value of new business includes the expected value of future
premium increases resulting from premium indexation arrangements on new business written during the year to 31
December 2008.

Persistency / Surrender Basis

The assumptions for lapse and surrender rates are based on the results of recent experience investigations conducted
by the company.

Tex

Allowance was made for the current life office taxation bass.
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Embedded Value Report continved
For The Year Ended 31 December 2008

Embedded value eamings Restated
The Embedded value eamings are derived as follows: As at 31 Dec As at 31Dec
2008 2007
KShs. 000 KShs, *000
Embedded value at end of year 2090279 2808661 g
Embedded value af beginning of yvear [2,898,601) {2,554,39()} |
Change in embedded value 100,618 344,265
Dividends paid and new capital 76,800 69.120
Evropecn Embedded Value Methodology Change e [22,9%0)
Embedded velue earnings 177,418 390,395
These earnings can be analysed os.Follows:
Adjusiment to foir value of subsidiary 276,300
Roll forward 245,609 191,510
Invesiment refurn on free assets 44,412 23,007
Expected refum on life business in force 201,197 168,503
Change aver the period {344,491) 198,885
Value of new business at end of vear 103,952 250,812
Value of new business at point of sale 133,684 233,883
Tax an valus of new business {40, 105)
Expected return on new business fo end of year 16,373 16,929
Changas in assumplions and methodology 27,240 (29,973
' Change in Tax Tieatment of Reserves 1165.036)
Experience variaficns [66,717) (60,728)
Cost of CAR {14,687
Increase in NAY for other subsidiaries {229,243} 38,774
Totel earnings 177,418 390,395

. Value of New Business

The value of new business represents the value of projecied profits o the point of sale arising from new policies sold during the
year to 31 December 2007, accumulaled 1o the end of the year af the risk discount rate.

Value of new business as at 31 December 2008
Value at point of sale igross of tax|

Tox on value of point of sale

Cost of CAR at point of sale

Expected refurn

T

101,051 250,812
133,684 233,883
(40,103)

| (2,901 .

| w0373 16,929 ‘




1. a) Definition of Embedded Value

Embedded Value Report
For The Year Ended 31 December 2008

This report scts out the Graup embeddad value and the value of new business of Pan Africa life Assurance Limited. The

embedded value reprasents an estimate of the ecenomic value of the Group excluding the valve attributable to fulure new

business. The embedded value comprises:
i, The value of the life Group's sharehalders’ net assets; plus

ii. The value of the inforce business.

The value of inforce business 1s the present value of fulure profits arising from business in Jorce al the valuation date,

discounted at the risk discount rate,

bl European Embedded Value Principles (EEV)

Revised embedded value guidance from the Chief Financial Officer’s {CFO] Forum’s Eurapean Embedded Value {EEV]
Principles, becomes effective for reporting periods ending on or after 371 December 2008, The methodology and assumptions

have been odjusted s follaws:

The equity risk premium assumplion is increased from 2.0% to 3.5%;

ii. The cash gap assumption was changed from bend yield less 2% 1o bord yield less 1%; and

iii. The cast of capital is based on the higher of minimum statutary Capital Adequacy Requirement {CAR). The internclly

assessed level of required capital for the Company is now set at 5% of Admitted Liakiliies as set out in seclion 41-1 of

the Insurance Act of Kenya less the cost of policyhelder bonuses.

Restared
As at 31 Dec As gt 31Dec
2008 2007
KShs. ‘000 KShs. ’QOO
2. Embedded Value Results
Group embedded value
Sharsholders’ adjusted net assats 1,907,421 1,806,686
Net Volue of in-férce business 1,091,858 1,091,975
—
Gross value of inferce business 1,584,613 1,341,314 !
. Tax provision [475,383) {246,654) |
| Cost of CAR (17,372) (2.685) |
Embedded volue 2,999,279 2,898,661
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Report of the Statutory Actuary
for The Year Ended 31 December 2008

. Cerlificate of Solvency in respect of Pan Africa Life Assurance Limited's Life and Pension Policies:

| have conducted a statutary actuarial valuation of the longterm business of Pan Aftica Uife Assurance limited as af 31
December 2008.

This valualion has been conducted in accordance with generally accepted actuarial principles and in compliance with the
requirements of the Insurance Act. These principles require prudent provision for fulure cutgo under coniracts, generally based
upon the assumptions that current condifions will confinue. Provision is therefore nol made for all possible contingencies. In
completing the actuarial valuation, | have relied upon the audited financial statements of the Company.

In my opinion, the longterm business of the Campany was financially sound and the actuarial value of the liabilities in respec
of all classes of life insurance and pension fund business did not exceed the amount of the Statutory Insurance Funds as at 31
December 2008.

Giles T Waugh
Statutery Actuary
MA, FIA, FASSA, ASA

Fellow of the Institute of Actuaries

16 March 200¢
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Report of the Independent Auditors
For The Year Ended 31 Decearmber 2008

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Pan Africa Insurance Holdings Limited (the Company) and of its subsidiaries
together with the Group's financial statements, set out on pages 44 - 98, which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31
December 2008, and the consolidated income statement, consclidated statement of changes in equity and consclidated cash flow

statement for the year then ended, and o summary of significant accounting policies and ofher explanatory notes.

Directors” Responsibility for the [inancial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparafion and fair presentotion of these finoncial statements in accordance with Infernational
Financial Repoiling Standards and the reguirements of the Kenyan Cempanies Act. This respensibility includes: designing,
implementing and maintaining infemal control relevant o the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free of material misstatemant, whether due o fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making
accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditors” Responsibility

Our responsibility is 1o express an independent opinion on these financial siatements based on our audit, We conducted our audit
in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requiremenis and
plan and parferm the audit fo obigin reasonable assurance whether the financial skatements are free of material misstatement. An
audit invalves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depsnd on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due o fraud or etror. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design oudit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the sffectiveness of the Groups internal contral. An audit alsa
includes evaluating the appropriatenass of accounting policies used and the reascnablenass of accounting estimates made by the

direciors, as well as evaluating the overall preseniation of the financial statements,
We believe that the cudit evidence we have obtained is sufficient ard appropriate to provide o basis for our audit opinion.
Cpinian

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fait view of the financial position of the Company and of its
subsidiaries as at 31 December 2008, and of its financial pedarmance and its cash flows for the vear then ended in accordance
wilh Infernational Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Kenyan Companies Act.

Report on Other legal and Regulotory Requiraments
As recuired by the Kenyan Companies Act, we report o you, based on our audit, that:

*  We have cbiained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowiedge and belief were nacassary
for the purpases of our oudit;

* In our opinion proper books of account have been kept by the Group and the Company, so far as appears from our
examination of those books; and

The Graup’s and Company's balance sheets and income statements are in agieement with the books of account.

Ernst & Young
Nairobi

16 March 2009




Statement of Directors’ Responsibllities
For The Year Ended 31 December 2008

The Kenyan Companies Act requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year that give o frue and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group and the Company as at the end of the financial year ond of the profits of the Group and the
Company for that year. It aiso requires the directors to ensure that the Group and the Company keep proper accouniing records,
which disclose with reasonable accuracy, the financial position of the Group and the Company. They are also responsible for

safeguarding the assets of the Group and the Company.

The directors accept responsibility tor the annual consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared using appropriate
accounting policies supportad by recsonakle and prudent judgements and estimates, in confermity with International Financicl
Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Kenyan Companies Act. The directors are of the opinion that the financial
stutements give a true and fair view of the state of the financial affairs of the Group and the Company and of its prefits. The diracfors
further accept respensibility for the maintenance of accounting records that may be relied upon in the preparation of financial
statemenis, as well os adequate systems of internal financial control.

Nothing has come o the altention of the direcfors to indicate that the Company and its subsidiaries will not remain a going concern

for at least twelve manths from the date of this statement.

John P N Simba : Tom Gitego

Chairman . Chief Executive

16 March 2009 ' 16 March 2009



do not reguire medical testing for Insurance cover, which
underpins Pan Africa Life's anli-discriminatory policy towards
thase who are HIV positive.

We have futher put in place an aniidiscriminatery policy
that does not discriminate againsl those who are HIV posiiive

during our recruitment process.
Valuing the employees

Respect for employees and nurturing their creative falents

and expertise confribute immensely to the afiainment of

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

Continued

organisational objectives, We have in place a stafl handbook
that articulates an ethical palicy, gift policy, code of conduct
and sexual harassment policy.

We gim fo provide a safe working environment for all cur
employees by embedding policies that prevent work place
harassment and encourage diversity and inclusion in all
aspecis of employment.

Muater Heart Run ]
Stoff porticipotion in the “Moter Hospiial Heort Run” 1o raise funds
for needy children requiring  heoae! irealment

Dagoretti Chief's Camp donation
Pon Afico tife CEQ, Tom Gitoge, prasents the company’s donation
of foodstuff and clothing to the inferpolly disploced people at
Dagoresti Chiefs Comp.



Supperting the community through cerporate  social
rasponsibility

The CSR program for. Pan Alrica proposes acfivities that

resonate with our brand essence "We have o sense for -

life’. These activities espouse Pan Africa’s commitment to
a better quality of life through encouraging best practices

supporting
in Education and caring for the communities in which

in environmental  conservation, initigtives
we operate. In line with our CSR commitment, we have

undertaken the following activities:
‘Growing up Green’ campaign

We launched the 'Growing up Green’ campaign, which is
a school based annual children’s ree planting programme.
This iniliotive pariners with a nongovemmental arganisation:
Jukudi Children’s Club™ ingraining simple teachings on
environmental conservation to children ot an eaily age in an
effort to inculcate @ sense of awareness and responsibility
rowards consarving the enviionment,

The program was lounched at Chelets primary schoal, a
public schoal within the Rundo wrea. Young pupils in class
one are encouraged to gach plant o tree and “adopt” it by
taking care of the seedling thraughout their eighl yeors of
primary schooling. The activity involves the participation of
Pan Africa staff who joins the children ond their parents. So
far, over 500 indigerous e seedlings have been planted.

o A AT
#

% Atree for every chils =

ihclase one

A pupil helps the Pon Africo tife Chief Execulive plant on imdigancus tree
ot Chelata Primary School

Partnership with AIESEC Kenya

AIESEC 15 the world's larges! studentrun organisation that
provides university students with cppertunifies to cullivate

leadership and entrepreneurial skills and develop a scnse

Corporate Social Responsibility {CSR)

of social responsibility. We have parinered with the AIESEC
Kenya Chapter by supporting student ron fund raising activities.
We will conlinue to engage the student association going
forward in supporting those activities that provide a strategic

fit with our corporate social responsibility objectives,
Financial Support to needy students

A key tocus area in our CSR program is in effering financial
support to needy students. This inifiative seeks to sponsor
bright pupils for secondary school education, covering
tuition fees in form of a scholarship that eaters for secondary

school fees,
Responsible market practices

We confinue io deliberately align our operations to be
customer focused and we have @ compliance departiment,
focusing on the quality of the sale and service 1o policyhelders
in an effort fo ensure that cusiomers’ expectations are abways
met. Recently, we were cpplauded in print media for
regularly publishing lists of policies whose benelits remained

uncollected in an atlempt so contact the policyholders.

We hove also rolled our "‘Customer Service Open Days'’
throughout our branch network, which are forums through
which cur staff meet and ¢lasely interact with customers, with
an aim of receiving and acfing on customer feedback through

one on one engagement.

Stoff engaging with customers.

Supporting HIY/AIDS related causes

Pan Africa Life significantly changad the Insurance industry’'s
view of HY/AIDS by pioneering Individual and Group Lite
products without the HIV/AIDS exclusion; additionally, we
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Table 8: Shareholder’s Profile

Corporate Governance Report Continved

Category Number of Shareholders Number of Shares o %
local Corporate - 162 32,353,44; - &7.40
Qi Individual - 2.515 15,041,071 3 I34 N
Foreign Invesr_ors " | 199 505,480 1.26
TOTAL | 2876 48,000,000 100

Immobilisaiion of shares

The Central Depository System cume into effect on 1 Jure 2003. The CDS is a computer system that facilitates the holding of shares

in eleciionic accounts created of the offices of the Central Depository and Seflements Corporation Limited, o Group regulated by

the Capital Markets Authority. The CDS funclions shall include halding jumba certificates, clearing and setlement for funds and

securifies, regisitation with fransfer secretories and corporate aclions processing. What this means is that instead of the. share

registrar procassing fransfers for shareholders, praparing share certificales and processing dividend chaques, for example, these

responsibililies now lie with the CDS. Defails of the process of immobilisation and the advantages of this system can be obigined

trom the MNairobi Stock Exchange website: www.nse.co.ke. The Group commenced operations in- February 2005, A progress

repart on the immobilisation is presented in Table 9 below,

Table 9; Immebilisation Report as at 31 December 2008

A

lram Amount {KShs)

Group’s Share Capital - 500,000,000 - 100.00
Number of Undesusdl Shares ' 452,000,000 50,40
%oml MNumber of lssued Shares 7 : 48,000,000 260
Total Numbe"r of Shares Immobilised by the CDéC . 2,660,933 2.0. | 3._
Total Mumber of Non-immobilise& Shares i 38,339,067

7G.87

Going Concern

The Beard submits this annual report and oudited financial statements for the vaar ending 31 December 2008. The annual report

ond audited financial stetements present, in the ooinion of the directars, o fair, balanced and understandoble assessment of the

state of the affairs of the Group’s positien and prospects, The Board reperts that the business is o going concern and they hove ne

reason fo believe that the Group and its subsidiaries will not be going concerns inic the foresesable future.

lohn P N Simba

Chairman

16 March 2009

Tom Gitago

Chief Executive

146 March 2009




Top 10 shareholders in the Group

The top 10 shareholders, based on the Group's Regisfer of Members, as at 31 December 2008 are shown in Table & below:

Table &: Ta-p ten shareholders as at 31 December 2008

2008

%

2007

%..

Number of Shares

Number of Shares

Hubris Holdings Limited 24,000,000 50.00 24,000,000 50.00
Baloobhat Patel 8,598,640 17.21 8,5@8,640-“.“ "1_7_91
Kancher Kenya Limitad 2,025,028 4727 2,025,028 4.22
Thammao Holdings Limited 1,702,243 3.56 1,709,943 3.56
APA Insurance Limited H57,66%9 1.37 380,096 0.70_
Cannon Assurance (Kenya) Limited : 511,558 1.07 . 476,700 Q.99
Barclays (Kenyal Mominess ltd A/C 9397 485,069 1.1 728,469 1 ._52
Clympia Capital Holdings Limited 310,000 0.65 300,000 0.63
Financial Fixtures Limited 287 237 0.60 287,237 0.60
Robert Kamau Willie Ngigi 277166 .58 716,664 1.49
TOTAL 38,862,310 80.94 39,222,779  81.71

Distribution of shareholders

The Capital Markets Autharity requires the Group to provide information on the distribution of the sharshalders based an the

number of shares owned and based on their nationality. This information is presented in Tables 7 and 8:

Table 7: Distribution Schedule

Number of Shareholders

Number of Shares

%

Less than 1,000 1,886 1,095,930 2.28
1,001 - 5,000 712 1,482,734 3.09
5,001 - 10,000 8 778,720 1.62
@]77507000 129 2,571,447 5.36
50,000 - 100,000 32 1,596,671 416
More than 100,000 19 40,074,498 8349
TOTAL. - 2,876 48,000,000 - 100
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Sanlam Investment Management Kenya Limited

The Croup has significant Investments that need to be managed
to ensure optimal returns. Fund management has been oulsourced
to SIM{K) id. who are one of the leading fund muragers in the
country. The fund manager reports on a quarterly basis to the
Invesiment commitiee. Management monitors fund performance

on a monthly basis,
SHAREHCLDING
Prevention of Insider Trading

Insider trading is the frading of o carporation’s stock or other
securifies by individuals with potential access to non-public
information about the Group. Insider trading occurs when
a persan has knowledge of the Groups affairs before such
information is made available o the public. In comoliance with

the Nairobi Stock Exchange's regulations io prevent insider

trading, the Group’s policy is that directors, management, siaff -

members, any of their relatives, or any of the companies /
businasses / organisations that they exercise significant influence
over are not allowed to deal in the Group’s shares during the
closed season, The closed season is the period between the end
of the Graup’s reporting period and the publication of results,
This ocewrs at the vearend (hetween 31 December and 31
March] and the half yearend {30 June and 15 August].

The Company Secretary always advises the directors,
management and staff of the closed season to avert any

incidences of insider frading.

Disclosure of Infermation to sharehcolders

The Board discloses fo sharsholders the financial pesition of
the Group three limes a year: atthe annual general meeting,
by publication of the. half year results in the English daily
newspapers and by publication of the yearend results in the
English daily newspapers. The financial pesition of the Group
together with refevant information such as the share.pfice
and on the central depository system ara mode available
for viewing on the Group's website — www. pan-africa.com.
The share register is kept at the offices of the Group and
a computer database storas this information. The Company
Secrefary is responsible for the share register and responds o
correspondence directly from shareholders. The official books
of the Group are kept at the head office of the Group and

Corporate Governance Report continued

are available for the perusal of shareholders during working
hours, The Group publishes the annual report and audited
uccounts, which are sent out 1o all shareholders, entiled o
aitend the annual general meeting.

Pan Africa Insurance Holdings Limited has an authorised share
capital of KShs. 300 Million divided.inlo 100 Million shares
of KShs, 5/= each. 48 Million shares are curently issued.

Table 5: Director's shareholding as at 31 December 2008

Detcils of the direclors’ shaehalding in the Group are

summarised in Table 5 bolow.

Table 5: Directors Sharcholding as at 31st December
2008

Mame of Director

Shareholding

1 Baloobhai Patel 8,598,640
2 Tom Gilogo [Chief Execufive] 10,000
3 john Simbe (Chaiman] - 10,000
4 James Gitoho - R _ 4,000
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Corporate Governance Reporl Contfinued

Toble 4: Summary of meefings Attended by Directors during the yeor ended 31 December 2008

Human

Boord theatings Andit (ommittes  lnvesimeat  Committee Resoures  Invastment Sul-(ommitfes
W W 6 W ) W B . b
Margarat Dawes 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 7 7
John Simba 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 7 7
James Gitoho 4 £1 z.l 4 4 4 4 4 7 o)
Tom Gilege 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 7 7
Balocbhai Patel 4 i 4 4 4 4 4 i . a 7
Nerman kelly “ 4 4 4 4 - ) - .
Robert Dommisse 4 4 4 4 . i i

Notes: o] MNumber of meatings convened during the year when the director was a member

b}

Management Committess

The Chief Fxecutive has established several committess to assist
him in the management of the Group comprising the respective
Heads of Departiment and other senior managers who may be
coropled from fime to fime. These committees include:

¢ The Executive Committee (EXCO) that meets weekly to
review day to day issues affecting the Group and ensure
adherence to Group's pelicy, procedures and stategy:

* The Managemen Commitlee [MANCOM] that meets
menihly fo review operational issues of the Group,
with emphasis on the assessment and monitoring of the

institution's operational risks.

PROFESSIOMNAL ADVISCRS

The Board is of the view that to carry on ifs responsibiliies in
an independen! and impartial fashion it should seek and benefit
from professional counsel.

Group Company Secrefary

Al members of the Board have direct access to the Group
Company Secretary who is esponsible for ensuring that board
procedures, rles and ragulations are followed. As the Group
Cernpany Secrefary is alse the Chief Legal Officer, she reports
independently and directly 1o the board on liigious matiers
alffecting the Group and its subsidiaries.

Number of mectings attended by the director during the year

B Richard Ellis

A significant component of the Investments within the Croup
cemptise of residential and commercial properties. CBRE is
responsible for the management of these commercial properties,
collection of rent, general repairs and mainienance. CBRE
reporis indspendenily and directly to the Board af the half yvear

and year end board mesting.
Ernst & Young

Whereas the direclors are respensible for preparing the occounts
and for presenting o balanced and fair view of the financial
position of the Group, Emst & Young examine and give their
opinion on the reasonableness of the linancial statements: Ernst
& Young reporl inedependently and directly io the Board at the
haif year and end year board mestings.

KPmG

KPMG are the group's fax odvisors. They were appointed by
the Board and liase with managemenl 1o ensure thot the Group
optimises ifs tax posilion and complies with all lox matters,

Statufory Actuary

Giles Waugh [of Delcitie, South Africa) 1s the Group's statutory
acuary responsible for examining the financial soundness of the
Group. He does this by independently valuing the Group's assels
and policy liabilities. The siatutory actuary reperts independantly
and directly to the Board at beard meetings where the half and

the end year results are being considered.



Investment Committee
The mambers of the Investment Commitiee ore as detailed in Table 2 below.

The primary functions of the Investment Commitiee are: To establish appropriate invesiment guidelines for the Group; to set invastment
benchmarks, {for example, recommended percentege compositions of property, equities, cash, bonds ete for the various investment
porfolins); to review the acual porfolio composilions against these benchmarks on a querterly basis; to review the performance of
investments and make recommandations where appropriate; fo approve The acguisition and dispesal of significant investments; to

approve capital warks on property investments.

Table 2: Investment Committee Membership

Member Directorship.Sfatus
1 Baloobhai Patel (Chairperson) MNon-Executive Director
2 MNerman K;l!y Neon-Executive Director )
3 Tom Gitogo Chisf Executive i
4 James Gitoho MNon-Executive Directar -
-5 John Simba . MorrExecutive Director _

The Investment Committee has constituted a Sub-Commitiee which reports directly 1o it The subcommitiee has been mandated 1o
oversee the development of the Mae Ridge Development and repors lo the Invesiment Committes. Its members comprise of:

a. Baloobhai Palel (Chairperson)
by, John Simber .
¢, Jumes Gitcho

d. Tem Gitogo

Human Resources Committee

The members of the Humen Resources Committee are as defalled in Table 3 belew. The Commities is governed by the pravisions of
its Human Resources charter and an annudl plan 1o guide the agenda of mestings throughout the year. Specifically, ils responsibilifias
include to regularly evaluate the longterm: evailability of management expertise, to appoint members of the executive management,
lo give careflul afisntion o succession planning for the pasiiions of the senior management, including making recommendations with
regard to the position of the Chief Executive.

Table 3: Human Resources Committes Membership

Member ' Dirécrorship Status
1 Jﬁmes Gitohe {Chairperson) : Non-Execurivé Director :
2 Margaret Dawes N;n-Execulive Cirector, Chief Exacutive of the Rest of Afrfcﬁ 1SDAA) i
3 joh?éimbc: Non-Fxrecutive Directar -

Attendance at Maetings

Toble 4 summarises the ettendance record of the directors of the Board and Commitiee meetings in 2008, A record of aliendance is
kept in @ register, which is in the Group Company Secretary’s custody, The record of attrendance, partial aftendance and absence is
alse nofed in the minutes of the meelings. '

B [ Y S A o



the Board decisions and instiuctions on the gencral managemen:
of the Group with the assistance of the Executive Management,

Role of the Board Vs the Executive Management

The roles of the Board and these of the Cxecutive Management
cre seporate and except for the office of the Chief Executive
who acts both as a director and as a member of the Bxecutive
Managament, the offices are nof vested in the same persons.
The abridged biographies of the manogement are as detailed
onpage 10- 11 of this Annual Repart. The Beard is respensible
for the leng term strategic direction and profitable growth of
the Group. while the Executive Maonogement is responsible for
the operational day to day running of the Group. The Group
adheres to an Approval Framewark Poliey which clearly sefs out
the exact decisions which can be made by the Board and those
which can be made by the Execuiive Manogement.

Committees of the Beoard

To assist the Board better discharge its sesponsibilifics, the
Board has constituted several Board Committees comprising
a halanced mix of nonexecutive directors.  Executive
management and Group censullants, experls and service
providers are on accusion inviled 1o the Board as circumstances
diciale to provide their expertise. The delegaiion by the
Board 1o these committess doss not detract the Board from
its ultimate collsctive accountﬁbil]fy for the performance and

good governance of the Group.

Each Board Committee has a Charter which conlains provisions
relafing to the powers delegated by the Board lo each
Committee, membership of the Commitiee and the Committee’s
detailed duties. Annual performance reviews of each Committes
are cariied out and presented Io the Bourd. Al every quarter,
the Chairperson of each Committee presents o repert on the
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discussions held of the Committee meeting and seeks the Board's

ratification for any decision mads.

Members and aftendance of these commitiees are provided on

page 30.

" The Board has three commitiees as follows:

Audit Commitiee

The membership of the audil committas is detailed in fable

1 below.

This Commitiee meets ot least once in each quarter. The Audit
Committee charier sets out the mandate of thiz Commitiee as
conzidering all risks that affect the Group, legally, financislly,
technalogically, politically, and to develop measures to manage
identified risks. Specifically, for and on behalf of the board,
the Committes is responsible for: Selling and overseeing
the overall standard for financial and acuarial reporting,
risk manogement and infernal controls within the Group;
menitoring the effectiveness of business risk managemen
processes in the Group; reviewing and assessing the quality
of the work done by the prefessionals responsible for financial
and actuarial reporting, risk management and internal control;
engaging in discussions with external and infernal quditors on
the quality and acceptability of he control environment and

reperting struciures,

The Board of the Group has authorised the Committee to
investigate any activity within ils lerms of reference. The
Commitiee is avthorised to seek any information it requiras from
any employee in the Group and all employeas are required
te ecroperate with any request made by the Cormmittee.

Table 1: Audit Committee Membership
Member

Directarship Status

1 Margaret Dawes [Chairparsonl

NonFxecutive Director, Chief Executive of the Rest of Africa [SDM)

2 Baloobhai Patel

Mon-Executive Director

2 Robert Dommisse

MNonExecutive Director




Chief Executive as the only execufive direcios, three directors
representing the strategic partner Sarlam Group and two non-
executive directors thus balancing the board composition.
The Board is composed of directors with a good mix of skills,
experience and competences in the relevant fields of experfise
and is well ploced to ioke the business to grealer heights. The
directars abridged biographies appear on page 8 - 9 of this
Annual Repor. ' : '

Changes fo the Board during 2008

During 2008, Andrew Creenwood resigned as the Chisf
Executive of the Group and wus replaced by Tom Gitego
who was previously the General Manager for Individual Life.
In addition Douglos lacey resigned and MNorman Kelly was

- oppoinied as a direcfor in his place. John Burbidge, a leng

serving member of the Board, refired from the Sanlam Group
and consequantly resigned from the Board.

-Re-election to the Board

In secordance with the provisions of the Company’s Adticles of
Association, all the directors refire by rofation every three years
and ore efigible o offer thamsebves for re-election. In every year,
new direciors who are appointed during the year o fill any casual
vacaneles, are subject to election by the sharehalders during the
Annual General Mesfing and thereafter ofter themselves for re-
election every three years, In 1he 2008 Annual General Mesting,
RBaloobhal Patef resigned as o directar and was unanimously
reclected to the Board. n addition, Tom Gitege and Robert
Dommisse who were appointed as directors in 2008 resigned
in the 2008 Annual General Meseling as it was their first Annual
Generol Meefing since they were appoined as directors and

were unanimously reelecied to the Baard.
Responsibility for Financial Reporting

The Board recognises ifs responsibility to present a true and
fair view of the state of the fincncial offairs of the Group and
its prospects. The Group's financial skatements are prepared in
nccordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
and the requirements of the Companies Act and are audited in
accordunce with Infernational Auditing Standards.

Remuneration

In remuneiating the directars, the Group 's pelicy has been fo
consider, the demands and requirements made on the directors
in relation fo the business of the Group, the availability of the

direciors for ad hoc consultation, professional and business

counsel as and when the need arisss, industry and reloted
companies  benchmarks, international experiences and the
calibre of directors needed 1o run this Group. The directors
have abways, are, and will be expected to continue to add
value to the business. The diractors’ fee is annual but the
sifiing allowances are only paid subject to alfendance at the
baard and/or commitiec meetings confirmed by the register of
attendance. Both the annualfees and siting allowance are paid
on a quarterly basis. The Directors are not eligible for pension
scheme membership and do nof participate in any of the Group's
remuneration schemes.

Dietails of the directors’ remuneration are set ot in note 39,
Service Contracts and Compensation

Apart from the Chief Executive, ne director or @ party related o
a direckor has a service contract of 1eceives compensafion from

the Group.
Disclosure of Interests

The Directors are under a fiduciary duty 1o act honestly and
in the best interests of the Group. To curk instances where the
directors’ self interests conflict with their duty fo act in the best
interests of the Group, the Group has insfituted policias requiring
the directors to make declarations on cny such interests at any
such meeting where such business will be discussed in addition
to absolving themselves from making decisions on the respective
business. The policy provides that directors, their immediate
families and companies where direciors hove interests must not
ansact business with the Graup without express approval from
the Board. Any such business transacted with the Group must
be at arms length.

Every quarter prior fo the beginning of any Board meeting, the
directors are requested to declare any interest and 1o complefe
a disclosure of inferest form confirming that they have excluded
themselves from discussions or decisions on potentially conflicting
matters. The duly completed farms are kept in the Cermpany
Secretary’s safe custady. In addition, any new director coming

on board is required fo complete the disclasure of interest form.
Role of the Chairman vs. the Chief Executive

The rales of the, Chairman and the Chief Executive are clearly
defined ond are not vested in the same person. The dayteday
execulive management of the Group is delegated 1o the Chiaf
Executive whereas the running of the Baard is the responsibility of

the Chairman. T_lje Chief Executive direcis the implementation of



Principles of Corporate Governance

The Pan Africa Group continues e be committed to the highest
level of Corparate Govemance, which we consider ta be critical
to-mointaining business infegrity and investors” irust in the Group,
Qur Corporate Gavernance philesophy, which incorporates
the four pillars of corporate governance namely; responsibility,
cccountability, fairmess and ransparency, sets out the standards,
discipline, systems and processes which ensure that cur Group
opeiaies on q fransparent, just and equitable manner.

For this reason the Group expects for all its direciors and
employees to act with honesty, integrity and foimess. The Board
of Directars are required 1o adhere to principles and standards
which have been developed with close reference fo the provisions
and principles of goed corporate govermnance as set out by the
Guidelines on Corporate Governance Practices by Public Listed
Companies in Kenya issued by the Capital Markets and other
best practices. This culure and standards are alsc expected of all
of the Group’s employees. To this end, the Group has adopted
a Code of Eihics, which complies with the highest standards of
integrity, honasty and ethics in dealing with al its siakehclders,
including directors, managers, employess, customers, suppliers,
competitors, shareholders and society ot large. The Code also
stipulates policies and guidelines regarding the personal conducr
of employess. All new stoff receive @ copy of the Code and ©
presentation on the Code as part of the induciion process,

In addition 1o the Code of Ethics, the Group confinues fo uphold
the Gift Policy {outlines the pelicy on receint and issue of gifis
by empleyees), Financial Crime Combeting Policy {outlines the
guidelines of combating financial crime and unlavdul conduct,
Schedule of Offences [definas the different instances of unlewful
conduct and the respective sunciions] and Zere Tolerance
Approach [slipulates zero tolerance to financial crimes and
unlowful conduct in addition o the consequences of committing

such- crimes).
Board of Directors

The Directors are ultimately accountable to dll siakehclders for
ensuring that the Group's business is conducted in accordance
with high standards of comporate’ govemance., OF particular
importance fo the Group is the protection of shareholders” and
policyholders’ interests and open corporate communication.

The Directors’ eonduct is regubtéd by the provisions of the
Board Charter. ¥ dictates among other things the size, rle,
responsibilifies, functions and powers of the Chairman and ether

Corporate Governance Report

membars, inductions, appoiniments, performance evaluation
and remuneration of ‘the members. it also comprises a work
plan setting out the schedule of Board meelings and the mein
business fo be dealt with of those meetings.

The Board continuas to undertake annual self evaluations and
reviews of its performance, which includes the review of the
suitability of its composition, the diversity of skills and experience
on the Board performance against the terms of reference and
succession planning, together with the performance of the
Commitiees, Chairman, Chief Execulive and the Group's
Company Secretary.

Board Responsibilities

The Board is charged with the duty of steering the Pan Africa
Group. It is responsible for formulating Group palicies and
sitalegics and emsuring that business objactives, aimed at
promoting and protecting sharsholder and investors value are
achieved. To facilifate this, Management is roquired to provide
fimely and adequaiz infarmation on the Group's policies fo the
Boord to ensure its effective discharge of ils dutics. The Board
also considers operationat reports, reports from each Board
Committes, specific propesals for copital expendituie and
acauisitions and sfralegic opportunities for the Group.

The Board mests af least four times during the vear to review
the financial performance ond operations of the Group. At
thess meetings, the Boord alsc considers skategic matters and
other issucs that will impact on the Group’s financial position
and reputation. The Board further considers matters aimed
at ensuring competent management of the business, intornal
controls and compliance with laws and regulafions as advised
by the Group’s Company Secretary and reporling performance
to shareholdars.

Netices of Board mestings cre circulaied at least 21 clear days
before Board meelings and agendas for meetings and detailad
Baard papers are circulated ot least fourteen clear days before
any Board meeting. To ensure lhe continuous flow of information,
lhe Group encourages dialague and meetings betwzen
members of the Board and senior management outside of the
formal quarterly Board meetings, Directors also continually avail
themselves on areas of thelr expertise particularly, accounting,

law, insurance and srategic management.
Board Composition

The current Board consists of seven directors comprising of
the Chairman, as an independent non-executive directar, the
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llani ya Mkutano Mkuu wa Mwaka

LA INATGLEYWA HAPA kwamba mkutane mkuu wa mwaka wa 63 wa Kampuni ulafanywa kattka ukumbi wa Tsava wa Heteli
va Hilion iliyeko katka barabara yo Mama Ngina, Nailrebl, tarehe 27 May 2009 soa nne asubuhi kujodill made zifuatozo:

1. Kuowasilisha mada mbadala na kunukuu hadhira.

2 Kusomo ilani ya mkutano.

3. Kuthibitisha kumbukumbi za mkutano mkuu wa mwaka uliaiangulia ambas ulifanywa farehe 21 May 2008,
4

Kuzingatier na endapo itaidhinishwa, kutkubali arifa ya mahesabu va kipindi cha mwaka kilichomalizika tarehe 31 Dasemba
2008 pomejo na taarifa za Mwenyekit, Afisa Moy Miendajl, Wakurugenzi,wakaguzi wa mahesoby na wasimamizi
wakuu wa fedha.

Konakifi lewamba wakurugenzi hawapendekesl mguawo wa hisa kwa kipindi kilichemalizika tarshe 31 Desembia 2008,
o. Kuwachagua wakurugenzi:

4.1 Baloobhai Patel kwa kuwa ametimu umri wa miaka sabini, anastaafy kulingana na kifungu 184 (2) cha sheria za Kampuni
kilenge {Cap 486), na kwa mujibu wa llani maalum flivoiclewa chint yva kifunge 186(5), anajiwasilisha kwa ajili ya
kuchaguliwa tena.

6.2 Margoret Dowes, anastaalu kwa kupokezana kulingana na sheria za woma zinazetumiwa na Kampuni atajiwasilisha kwa
ajili ya kuchaguliwa tene.

6.3 Kulingana na sheria za woma zinazotumiwa na Kampuni, Morman | Kelly ambaye aliteulivea kuwa mkurugenzi tarehe 21
May 2008, anastaatu huu ukiwe mkutane mkuy wa kwanza wa mwaka kufanyika tangu kuteulivwa kwake na kwa kuwa
uwezekane upo,angjiwasilisha kwa gjili va kuchaguliwa tena.

7. Kuidhinisha nyongeza ya mishaharo yva Wakurugenzi.

8. Kunakili kwamba kampuni ya wakaguzi we mahesabu yo Emst & Young, itaendelea kuhudumu chini ya kifungu 15912}
cha sheria zo Kampunt, kitengo (Cap 486} na itawaagiza Wakurugenzi kutekeleza nyongeza hiye.

Q. Kujoditi mada nyengine yoyote kwa idhini ya mwenyekit ambapo ilani ya saa 48 imekabidhiwea Katibu wa Kampuni katika
ofisi ya Kampuni iliyosajiiva.

Kwa agize la Halmashauri
Emma Wachira

Katibu

16 March 2009

Nukuu:

Mwanachama ambaoye anastahili kuhudhuria mkutane huo ne kupiga kura na ombaye atckumbwa na ddhuru asiweze
kuhudhuria ana uhury wa kuchagua mwakilishi wake alakayehudhuria na kupiga kura kwa niaba yake. Kwao kuliwezesha
hilo kune formu maalumu ya uwakilishi ambayo imeambatanishwa na taarifa hil na inapasa kujazwa na kutiwa saini na

A" mwanachama huye no ni lezima iwasilishwe katika ofisi ya Katibu wa Kampuni, Jumba la Pan Africa, Kenyatte Avenue,
Sanduku lo Barua 10493, 00100 MNairobi qu ifumwe mapema il fweze kufika kabla ya Jumataty tarehe 25 Mei 2009 saa
nne asubuhi.
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Nofice of the Annual General Meeting

NOTICE 5 HEREBY GIVEN that the &3rd Annual Genercl Mesting of the Company will be held af the Tsavo Room, Hillon Hotel,
Mama Ngina Street, Nairebi on Wednesday, 27 May 2009 oi 10.00 am to conduct the tollowing business:

1. To table the proxies and nete the presence of o quorum.

2. Toread the notice convening the meeling.

3 Toconfirm the minutes of the previous Annual Generat Meeting held en 21 May 2008.

4, To consider, and if approved, adopt the Balance Sheat and Accounts for the yaar ended 31 December 2008 iogether with
the reports of the Chairman, the Chief Execuiive, the Directors, the Auditors and the Siatutary Actuary.

5. To note that the direclors do not recommend the payment of o dividend in respect of the financial year ended 31
December 2008, .

&, Toelecr direclors:

6.1 Baloobhai Paiel having attained the uge of seventy years, relires in ferms of Section 185 (2} of the Companies” Act [Cap

486), and being eligible by virue of a Special MNotice given under section 186(5), offers himself for reelection,

6.2 Margaret Dawes, retires by rofation in accordance with the Company's Articles of Association and being eligible

offers herselt for reelection.

6.3 In accordance with the Company's Aficle of Association, Norman | Kelly who was appointed a dirsctar on 21 May
2008, retires this being the first Annual General Meeting fo be held since his appointment and being ¢ligible, offers
himself for re-election.

7 Toapprove the Directors’ remuneration.

8. To note that the auditors, Ermst & Young, will continue in office in accerdance with Section 159(2) of the Companies Act
{Cap 486) and to authorise the Directars to fix their remuneration.

Q. To transact any other business with the permission of the Chair for which 48 hours nofice had been given 1o the Compary
Secrefary at the registered office of the Company.

By Order of the Board
Emma Wachirg
Company Secretary

1A March 2009

Note:

A member entilad to affend and vote af the meefing and whe is unable Io attend is enfitled to appoint a proxy teo attend and vote an
his behalf. A proxy need not be a member of the Company. To be valid, a proxy form, which is attached to the end of this repor,
must be completed and signed by the member and must be ladged at the offices of the Company Secrefary, Pan Affica’Insurance
Holdings, Pan Afiica Life House, Kenyatta Avenue, PO, Box 10423, 00100 Nairobi or be posted, so as 1o reach not later than
Monday 25 May 2009 ot 10.00 am. '
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our stoff went on three month secondment to Sanlam in South
Aliica, not to menfion several others who have alsc gone for

shorter fraining sfints at Sanlam.

In our pursuit to become the employer of choice, the Group
cartied out employee and agent safisfaction surveys during the
vear and has been .implementing the resufts of these surveys.
We also launched an ultea modern intranet facility where staff
receive fegular updotes on pertinent issues and are able 1o
share their ideus oo,

Exemplary peformance continues fo be owarded ond in
Septembar, our best perfarming sales execufives went on an
enviable incentive trip to India and Singapore. The race is on
for the nest incentive kip as most of the soles executive are

determined te qualify in 2009,
Prospects

The investment we have made in improving the calibre of our sales
force through training and recruitment, new innovative products,
as well as the opening of the three addiional branch offices
will no daubi see our individual life sales go up significantly in
the coming months. Like in 2008, we will confinue 1o focus on
low to medium income markets whils strategically shifting fo the

medium to high income markets.

Chief Executive's Statement centinved

Corporate business growth prospecis are quite high as the
concept of bancassurance is expected Io pick up_ We are on
caurse to launch an Individual Pension produal os well as other
innovalive products in 2009, We will olso be expanding our
Disposit Administration operations to take advantage of the
opportunities that this sector presents.

The current global recession is expected to recade o a lorge
extent in 2009, with the recovery process confinuing info 2010.
This process will gradually see the reversal of the unredlised
investment lasses that the group had to take in at the end of
2008, since the fundamenials of the componies we have
invested in are all sound. Meanwhile, we will sirive fo diversify
our invesiment income sources and the angoirg Tresidential
houses development in Runda is o case in point.

Tom Gitagio
Chief Executive

14 March 200¢

FiRe Awards Win

Qur rich legacy of professional excellence s demonsiated
in the recognition of Pan Alfrica Insurance during the 2008
FiRe Awards in which the company emerged the Qverall
winner in the Corporate Governance category, The Group
has continously received various awards in FiRe compeition
since 2000. The FiRe Award is awarded 1o companies that
demonstrate excellence In thelr financial reporting and those
that embrace seund corporate governance practices.

The CEQ of Pan Aftica Life, Tom Gitago flefi} ond the GM Sofes & Marketing, jane
Nt {right] receive the eward for the Ovorall Winner, Corporate Governance
category, from Simon Rutegra feentia), the Chief Executive Cfficer of the Uganda
Stock Exchange, duing the 2008 FiRe Awards.




called FlexiAnnuity which was received very well by the market.
The new product offers a guaranteed monthly annuity payment
during the life of the insured with optional guorantes periods of

either five or ten years,
Risk Management

The group identifies risks on a confinucus basis and have
confinued o upgrade our systems, conirols and business
processes 'o address emerging risks. In 2008, we commissioned
an offsite data replication site to ensure quick recovery in the
event of disaster We alsa successfully upgraded our finance
management system and ars in the pracess of implementing a
state of the art life administration system called Alfinanz.

Management actively and regularly reviews all the risks the
group faces and puts in place programmes that ensure that these
risks are effectively mitigated or where appropriale, eliminated.
Extensive coverage of what the group is doing to manage risk is
cenfained in the risk report note 41.

Expenses

Operating expenses incraased by only 7.5 percent to Shs
473m compared to premium income growth of 21 percent,
reflecting the conscious effort that management made to contain
expenditure in the prevailing hard economic fimes. This cost
efficiency was achieved despite additional premium collection
charges levied by some of cur key business partners, as well as
the expenses asscciated with epening and running of the new
~ branches menfioned gbove.

Policyholder Benefits and Life Funds

The gross value of policyholder benefils grew by 15 percent
over the yeor to stand of KShs. T.4b. This was occasioned in
part by claims reported late from previous periods together with
the build up of reserves to cater for unearned premiums. Despite
the increase in repor’red claims, the claims oulslonding at the
end of the year decreased by 13 percent demonstraling our
aggressiveness in early setlement, an aspect of our service that
our customers have come fo expect from us and one we infend
to keepr. The life fund and the depcsit administration fund tofal
over KShs. 4b, a growth of 15 percent.

Resulis from investing activities

Pan Africa insurance Heldings wholly owns PA securities Limited.
This subsidiary.is an invesment company which invests directly
in the copital markets but ils main invesiment is a 40 percent

shareholding in APA Insurance Limited {APA}, a general insurer.

APA saw fis gross premium incoms grow fo just over KShs. 3bs,
a commendable 27 percent increase over the previous year.
APA also registered a KShs. 27/m underwriling profit compared
io KShs. 13m loss the year before, demonsirating that its core
business opsfatichs dre vary sound. The company however
suffered the brunt of the declining forfunes af the MNSE which
resulted in a KShs. 585m unredlised loss. In accordance wilh
International Financial Reporting Standards (IAS 28), we have
incorporated our share of these results in our profit and lass
account. The effect of this is o loss of KShs. 123m which as
| have menfioned above is unredlised as it arises not from the
insurance oparations of APA but from its porffolio of investment
in quoted equity shares.

Embedded Value

In keeping with the high corporate governance siandards that
vou have come to expect from the Group, we have for the
5th consecutive year published the smbedded value report for
the group. We are currenfly the only insurer in Kenya fo report
on embedded value, a requirement by capital markets in the
more developed financial markets. The repon gives a more
comprehensive measure of the valve of assets and the Intrinsic
value of the inforce book of long term insurance business, by
incorgorating the present value of ulure profits expecied 1o arise

from policies in place s af year end.

The total Group embedded value as at 31 December 2008
stands at KShs. 3k, an increase of 3 percent over the prior
year. This increase aifses mainly from the growth in the value
of inforce business and a KShs. 276m fair valuc adjustment of
properfies owned by the group. For 2008, a 30 percent tax
was applied to the value of inforce business following legislation
changes regarding surplusas from fife business that took effect
from 1 January 2009. Had the prior year results been adjusted
for this tax change, the growth in EY in 2008 would have been

an imprassive 11 percent.
Qur People

The group recognises that ifs people hold the key o ifs ability
to operate profitably and deliver on its promises to the various
stakehalders. The group emplays 105 ull fime employees and
a team of over 550 sales executives and throughout 2008
continued to pursue the objective of atiracting, developing
ard retaining the best and the brightest staff. We confinue
to place o sirong emphasis on investment in skills training
and developmeni as @ means of relaining our competitive

advantage and realising cur full potential. To this end, two of
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Chief Executive’s Statement

Performance in Year under Review

The vear 2008 will pethaps go down in history as one of
the most difficult years for businesses across the world on
account of, among other challenges, the unprecedented global
recession. Here in Kenya, we started off with the pelitical unrest

that noficeably affected some of the markets we operate in.

Agl:iinst this backgreund however, Qur core operations retuined
sclid results with the life business operating surplus up by 24
peicent to Shs 149m. The premium income axceedad KShs
2.5b, o commendable growth of 21 percent. The tofal lives
now covered by the group stand at over §44,000,

But as expected in the circumstances, the group's results from
invesfing achivities were negatively aftectad by the volafility
witnessed in all global equity markets. All mojor world indices
recorded significant decling and here ot hame the Nairehi
Stock Exchange iINSE] index drapped by 35 percenito 3,521,
resulfing in the group witnessing significart unrealised losses
from beath the investment of shareholder ussets (Shs Pém) as well
as share of associale (KShs. 1Z23m).

Individual Life

Individual Ife premium income grew by 21 percent o KShs
1.5b, a result we arc proud of given the difficult environment
undar which this was achievad. As is our custom, we confinued
fo poy affention to underrepresented segments of the marker and
this culminated during the year in the expension of our branch
netavork to cover Westlands, Naivasho and Yol We believe
that by attending fo underrepresented segmienis of the market,
we will have played our rightful rele in improving insurance
penefiation in Kenya,

Inrespanse fo our cientneeds, we continve to review cur products
andio launch innovative producls that are value for money. During
the vear we launched the Flexitamily, o preduct shat caters for
burial expenses. In 2009, we expaci o launch new products
that will address some of the changing needs and expectations

_of the market.
Corporate Business

Our group risk premium income now exceeds the KShs. 1k mark

and is well sei io refain the market leader position it assumed

in 2007, We continue to expand aur relafionships without
i ' compromising on auality and this has made us the insurance
i provider of choice i this area. During the yeas, the company

infroduced a new single premium retiement annuity product
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migumu ya mwaka hasa kutokana na mporomoke wa kivchumi
duniani, msukumo mkali wa soko lo hisa ambao umekuwa
na athari kubwo katika pato la mwekezaji. Kupanda kwa
mbumko wa bei pia kuncendelea kuathiri pato letu la kimsingi

na kupunguza thamani katika ustawi wa kiblashara.

Kempuni yels, pomcja ne  kampunl zengine 7a  bima
imekumbwa na athari kubwa va miingishike wa mwoka
2008, Pamoja na hayo Kampuni yetu inatafula njia mbadala
za kuorgeza mapato huku mradi mkubwa wa 2008 ukiwa ni
ule wer ustawi wa Mae Ridge.

Ustawi wa Mae Ridge

“Kempuni yetu imeanza usiowi wao mradi wa Mae Ridge

De-ve|opmen’r kotika eneo la Runda kwa ghoromo ya takriban
shilingl bilioni 2. Ukiwa katika enec la Eagle Park ambalo
pia llistawishwa no Kampuni yo Pan Afiica Group, mradi
huo utahusisha ujenzi wa nyumba 81 zo kifshaori ambazo
Zitajengwa kwa awamu tatu. Katika mradi hue awamu ya
kwanza ya nyumba ishirin inatarajiwa kukamilika kukikia mwazi
Januari 2010, Huku biashara ya rasilimeli zilizohamishika
ikiendelea kunawiri nchini Kenya, mradi hue wa ustawi ulatea
fursa muhimu ya vwekezaji kwa wanaotaka kumiliki myurmba ne
wawekezail katika nyanja hiyo va rasilimali zisizehamishika

Shukran

Miwisho, ningependa kuchukua fursa hii kumtambua no
kumpongeza kwa huduma zoke, aliyekuwa Afisc My
Miendaji Bwana Mr Andrew Greenwaod ambaye kablo
ya kujivzulu kwake mnamo mwezi Februari 2000 alikuwe
amehudumu katika kampuni hii fangu mwezi Desemba 2000,
Wakati wa kipindi hicho, Kampuni ilipiga hateo kubwa na
tuncimshukury kwa huduma zake 7o kutakata na kujitolea kwa

hali ya juu zilizopelekea kukua kwa Kampuni hii.

Pia ningependa kuchukua fursa hii kumkaribisha katika Kampuni
hii Afisa Mkuu Moya Miendaii, Tom Gitoge ambaye aliteuiwa
mramo mwezi wa Aprili 2008, Alikowa Manejo Miuy wa
Individual life, na ana tajriba kubwa kotika sekia ya hima
baada ya kuhudumu katika wadhita mkuu wa vsimamizi katika
Kampuni ya PricewalerhouseCoopers [Kenya na Llondon) na

pia Mkorugenzi wa masuala ya Fedha nchini Uingereza.

Kwe niaba ya Halmashauri yo Wakurugenzi, ningependa

kuchukua fursa hii kuwapongeza Douglas lacey na John

Burkiidge kwa huduma zao za muda mrefu na zisizo kitani
katika Kampuni hii tengy kvingia kwa Alrican Life katike

Taarifa ya Mwenyekiti inaendelea

sekta ya hima nchini Kenya kupitia Kampuni ya Pan Africa.
Tunawatakia kila la kheri kotika mambo yote amboyo
wamepanga kufanya,

Kwa wakorugenzi wenzangu, ninawashukury kwa  ushouri
wao, usaidizikujifolea na uadilifu wakiwa wanachama wa
Halmashauti na pia kwa huduma yao kuu ketika kamcti
mbalimbali za Hdmashaui emboze zinalekeleza  wajibu

muhimu katika maengozi ya kishirika ya Kamponi hii.

Tunawashukoru wodau wety wekiweme  wateja
wowasilishaji wa bidhoa na wote wanaoshitikiana nasi kwa
kuwa bila usaidizi wae hatungeweza kuzikabili changamoto

za mwaka ulictangulia.

Pia ningependa kuwashukuru wasimamizi na watanyikazi wa
Kampuni hii ambac wameijilahidi sana kazini katika kipindi
cha mwaka kil'\chopitu kuweza kuafikia mo|engo na matarajio

ya kampuni hii.

Na kwa wenye hisa wetu ningependa kuwashukuru kwa imani

yac ambayo wameendelea kuidhihirisha kwa Kempuni hii.

John B N Simba, MBS OGW
Mwenyekiti
16 Morc_h 2009




Pato | jumia la kima liliongezeka kwa asilimia 21 hadi zaidi
ya shillingi bilioni 2.5. Bima za kibinafsi katika kiwengo
cha shilling’ bilioni 1.5 zilipelkkea ukugji wa asilimia 23
ambao ulikuwa chini yo motorajio yetu, hasa kulckane no
changamdic za kivchumi ombozo Zzilicthin zoidi viwange
vyetu vya kibiashara. Biashra na mashirka zilifonya vwema
kattka kipindi hiki cha mwaoka no kufikia paie la jumla la

shiling? biliani moja, ukiwa ni ukuaji wa osilimia 18.

Kampuni flidhihirisha thamani ya huduma licha ya athari
ya msukumo mkali wa masoko ya hisa na kupala ukugii
wa asilimia 3 hadi shillingi bilioni 3. Hii ni bagda vo
kukubalia ulipaji wa mgawe wa hisa wa shiling milioni 76 &

uliclipwa katika kipindi hicho cha mwaka kwa mlinganisho

wa 2007,

Migiji wa hisa wa Kampuni ya Pan Africa Insurance Haldings
Limited shares kafika Soke la Hisa la Nairebi ulipungua kwa
asilimia 38 katika kipindi hicho cha mwaka na kufikia shilingi
" bilicni 2.97 {shilingi bilioni 4.8-: 2007 na hasa hasa ilickana
na mkurupuke wa mavze ketika Soke lo Hisa la Nairchi.
Kutokana na hasara za uwekezaji, hasara ya kimsingr kwa
hisa ni shilingi 2 [Faida — Shilingi 3.06: 2007).

Mgawo wa Hiso

. Kutokana na hali ya kivchumi duniani isiyokadirike na athari
ambayo huenda ikaifikio biashare yetu kutokana na hile
pamoja na nia yetu ya kuhifadhi pesa taslimu na kuimarisha
rasilimali ya Mae Ridge huke Runda, Halmashauri imejitokeza
na mfuma wa wdhibiti usiogeuzika kuhusiona no mgewo
wa hisa na hivyo haipendekezi malipe ya mgawe wowete
wa hiso kwa wenye hisa katka mkutane mkuu wa 63 ujoo
mwaka. Fndape kutakuwa na mabadiliko kalike mazingare
yeiu ya kibiashara Holmasheun itachunguza upya msimamor
huo na kupendekezo mgawo wa muda wa hisa.

Taarifa za Viwango
Kwa aijili yo kuimarisha uwajibikeji, vongozi wa kimashirka na
uwazi,Kampuni iliendelea kujiweka katika viwange mbalimbali

wya kimataifa na vya kampuni wa utoaji wa tacrife skiwa ni
pamoja na:
s Taurfo zo Kifedha: Kulingana na viwango vya kimalaifa

vya ylogji wa taarifa za kitedha.

*  Taarifa za kwkadiria hasora: Kwa mujibu wd viwango
na maongezi ya Kamali ya vkaguzl wa mahesabu na

ukadiriaji wa hasara.
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¢ Taariks za vongozi wa kimashirika: Kulingana na mising
ya "uongozi wa kimashirka® wa CMA na masharti

mengine ya ysimamizi.

. Taarifa zo kempuni tanzu / matawi / kamati za
Halmashauri: kila kitengo cha kampuni na Pan Africa
Insurance Heldings Limited.

Taarifa yo Uongozi wa kimashirika

Taarifa yets ya mwaka kila wakatt ina maslezo yetu kamili
ya uongoezi wa kimashirika lkiwa kampuni iliyoorodheshwa
kwo umma katka soko ks hiso, Kampuni ya Pan Afica
ingjiambatanisha no “maongozi ya kimashirika” yo Mamlaka
inaycsimamia mascko ya hisa. Kampuni pia iko chini ya
Sanlom Group ambaye imewasilisha tojiiba o ujuzi waoke
katika eneo hili. Halmashauri ya Wakurugenzi imejikakamua
kuweka viwange thabiti zaidi vwwa uongozi wa kimashirka
kama inawychiiajika katka shughuli zetu.

Tuzo za uteaji wa taarifa za kifedha (FiRe]

Mnamo 2008, Kampuni ya Pan Africa Insurance Holdings

timited {likabidhiwa hadhi ya kwanza katke kitenge cha
vongozi wa kimashirika na nafasi va pili katika kitengo cha
bima kuickana na taarifa yelu ya mohesabu kwa kipindi cha
mwoka kilichomalizika tarehe 31 Desemba 2008. Tuzo hizo
zilidhaminiwa kupitia ushirikiono wa Taasisi ya Uhasibu ya
Kenya na Mamlaka ya Masoko ya Hisa na Scko la Hisa la
Mairobi, Tangu kuanzishwa kwa tuze hize zo FiRe mnamo
2000, Kampuni yeh haijakosa kutuzwa kutuzwa kila mwaka.
Hilo linadhihirisha lengo la Kempuni yety la kuendelea
kuzingatia viaalamu,uwazi na ubora kattka utoaji wa taarita

za kifedha.
Mabadilike katika Halmashauri -

Mnamo mwezi Februar, Andrew Greenwoed alijiuzulu
wadhifa wa Afisa Mkuu Miendaiji wa Kampuni hii ili aweze
kuandama shughuli zengine. Tom Gitogo alivekuwa Maneja
Mo wa Individual Life, alitevliwa kuchukua wadhita huo
mnamo mwezl Aprili 2008.

John Borbidge, amboye kohudumu kwa muda mreefu katika
Halmashauri, alijivzuly mhame mwezi Mei 2008, Norman
Kelly aliteuliwa kuwa Mkurugenzi no kuchukua nafasi va
Douglas Lacey aliyejiuzuly mnamo mwezi Machi 2008,

Sura yo Mustakabali

Tukipige darubini ,sekia ya bima inakabiliwe na mikabala



Mwaka mmeja baadaye hali ilizidi kuwa ngumu na kukithin
kwa mporomeoko wo muamang wa kivchumi duniani Mfumko
wa bel wa miezi 12 uliongezeka kutoka asilimic 12 mname
Desemba 2007 hadi aasilimia 27 mnamo Disembao 2008.
Kiwaonge cha migji cha Scko la Hiso la Maircbi kilishuka kwa
asilimia 35 hadi 3521,

Shilingi ya Kenya ilipungua themani kwa asilimia 22.7 dhidi
va Dola ya Marekani hadi tokriban KShs. 77.7 mnamo
Disemba 2008.

Mazingara ya Kibiashara

Tulikisia ukuaji wa Palo la Taifa wa kati ya asilimia 3 na asilimia
4 mnomo mwaka wa 2008 ambac ulitarajiwa keshuka zaidi
kwa kati ya asilimic 2 na asilimia 3 mname mwaka wa 2009.
Kudorora huko kulitckana na kushuka kwa tendakazi katike
sekia kadhaa za kivchumi kupungua kwo uiashi wa bidhaa
mbalimbali na athari za mporemoke wa kivchumi duniani.

Sekta ya kilimo ilishuhudia kudorora kwa asilimic 10 kafika

uloaii wa bidhaa katika kipindi cha miezi 11 hadi Novemba

2008 hasa kutckana na hali mbaya va hewa na althari za
ghosia za boada ya uvchaguzi na kuengezeka kwa bei va
pembejec za kilimo.

Kultkuwa na matokeo mchanganyike kafika sekla ya viwanda
katika miezi 11 ya kwanza ya 2008 Utcafi wa saryji
uliongezeka kwa asiimia 18.9; uioaji wa mogadi na bia
vkaongezeka kwa asilimia 39.5 na asilimia 14.9 miawatia;
hata hivo utcaji wa sigara ulipungua kwa asilimia 5.1,

Selkta yo Uialii ilicorera kwa asiimia 33.8  kutokana
na kupunguo kwa idadi ya waldli wa kigeni kati yo
Januari na Novemba 2008 kutoka watalii 630,947 haodi
watalii 952,396,

huku
ukuaji wake ukikisiwa kvwa wa zaidi yo asilimia 10
mnamo 2008,

Sektla ya mawasiliono  iliendelea  kvwa  imara

Ulipet]i wa madent ya kigeni ulipungua kutoka ziada ya dola
milioni 473 katika kipindi hicho cha mwake hadi Novemba
2008 kufuatia kuongezeka haraka kwa nakisi ya dhomana
ya matumizi ikilinganishwa na kuimarishwa kwa dhamang
va kifedha na mioji. Nakisi hiyo ya dhamene ya migfi
iliongezeka hasa kuokana na kuongezeka kwa kima cha
bidhaa zlizoagizwa kutoka nje ambacho kilipite kiwange
cha wuzaji wa bidhaa na huduma katika nehi za kigeni,

I N N A I

Dhamana ya kifedha na miaji limarika hadi zieda ya dolo
milioni 2,070 ketika kipindi hicho cha mwaka hadi Nevemba
2008 ikilinganishwa na ziado ya dola milioni 1,557 katike
kipindi hicho cha mwaka hadi Movemba 2008. Kiwango
cha fedha za kigeni kilimarika kutoka dola milioni 5 katika
kipindi hicho cha mwaka hadi Novemba 2007 hadi kofikia
dola milioni 561 katika kipindi cha mwaka hadi Novemba
2007 kikieleleza vwekezaji wa kigeni wa moja kwa moja na
biashara zengine za kadiri za kibinafsi.

Benki ¥uu ingendelea kutumia sera kabambe za kifedha katika
urekebishc:[i wa kasore za kiuchumi.

Sekta ya Bima

Kafika juhudi zo kujiambaianisha na ogizo la Waoziri wa
Fedha kwa kampuni za bima za kudumu za bima kuengeza
miaji wake kutoka shilingi milioni 5C hadi shilingi milioni 150,
Kampuni ya Pan Africa life Assurance Limited ilongeza minji
wake wa bima kutcka hisa shilingi 126,600,000 katika
hisa 25,320,000 hadi shilingi 200,000,000 katka hisa
50,000,000 za shilingi 5 kila hisa,

Serikali ya Kerya kupitia wizara ya Fedha inanuia kuchunguza
uoya msingi wa kisherla na usimamizi wa sekia ya bima nchini

Kenya kwa lenge la kuimarisha tendakazi ya sekia hiyo.

Kwa ajili hiye kumebuniwa jopo kazi la kukusanya maoni
na mapendekezs kutka kwa kampuni za bima na wadau

wengine muhimu.

Kamguni hii kwa muktadha huo inanuia kushiriki kikamilifu
katika zoezi hilo ra kutarajic kuwepo kwa sekia bora zaidi
iliyedhibitiwa ambayo itapeleken matokeo mazur katika sekia

ya bima.
Matakeo ya Kampuni

Kampuni ilipata nakisi ya shilingi miliont 96 ikilinganishwa na
ziada ya shilingi milioni 147 iliyotangazwa 2007, Nakisi hii
ilitokana na hasara ya rasilimali za vwekezaji wa wenye hisa
no pia hasara kutoka kwa mshirka mmeja. Hatahivyo shughuli
za kimsingi zimeendelea kuwa imara.

licha ya hali ngumu ya kiuchumi, kuliwa na ukuoji katika ziada
ya bima yo maisha omboye ilitekana na kudumishwa kwa
utaratibu wety wa utengezaji wa faida. Kushughulikia fedha
za ziada huambatanisha matckeo yo ulimwengu wa bima
lakini hakujumuishi mapalo ya vwekezaji kalka rosilimali za

wenye hisa.

I S



Ni furaha yangu kuwasilisha kwenu matokeo ya Kampuni ya
Pan Africa yo kipindi cha mwaka kilichomalizika tarebe 31
Disemba 2008.

~Uchumi wa Dunia

Kufuatia dharura iliyotckana na mfumke wa muamana wa
kiuchuri duniani mname 2008, shirika la Fedha Duniani IMF
limekadiria ukuaji wa uchum! dunioni kuwa asilimia 3.4 ikiwa
ni kiwango kilichopungua kwa asilimia tanc kikilinganishwa

na mwaka ulictangulia.

Huku sera zikishindwa kuondoa hali ya wasiwesi fiyopo,
hali hii imesababisha kushuka kwa thamani ya rasimali kwa
mataifa valivestawi kiuchumi na yole yanayoendelea kustawi.
Mbali na haye hali hil imepunguza kima cha umiliki wa mali
na hivye kudidimiza utasht wa wateja.

Aidha, wasiwasi huo umepelekea kampuni  mbalimbali,
mashirika na wate binafsi, kuahirisha motumizi na hiwo
kupunguza utashi wa wateja wa huduma za migii.

Wekati huo huo, kupunguzwa sana kwa viwango wyo
mikope, kumetatiza biashars kwa kucthin utoaji na ununuzi
wa bichaa.

Sera kabambe zincendelea kutekelezwa lkwa qjili ya
kukabiliana na mfumko huo wa kivchumi ili kuupa nguv utashi
wa bidhaa miongoni mwa wateja, lakini itachukua muda kwa
suluhisho kupattkana.

Mikakati hiyo ni pamoja na mipange ya kununua rasilimali
zilizochvjuka, kuumia fedhc za umma kuimarisha  mitaji
wa benki na kutea dhamana za kudumu, na kushirikisha
zinazotorwa  na

upunguzali wa ada  za

Benki Kuu.

maongozi

Ukuaiji wa uchumi wa Dunia unafarajiwa kushuka kwa asilimia
V2 mwaka huu,ikiwa ni kivango choke kidogo zaidi tangu vita
vikuu wya pili wa Dunia,

licha ya hatua kuchukuliwa, mkurupuke wa muamana ungali

na athar kvbwa ng unasambaratisha uchumi.

Ufufuzi wa kudumu wa  kiuchumi  houtawezekana  hadi
utendokazi wa sekio ya fedha urejeshwe kattka hali yo

kawaida huku msimamo wa uioaji wa mikopo ukidhibitiwa.

Kwa lengo hilo, seta na mikokali mipya vinahitajika kwa
ajili ya kutoa utombuzi wa hosara inayotokana ne uteaji wa
mikope, kuziweka asasi za kifedho katika vitengs wao wa
kadiri no kewezesha woty kupala usaidizi kutoka kwa asasi

Taarifa ya Mwenyekifi

hize kupitia uimarishali wa midji wa asasi hizo na kuziendoles
mbsali rasilimali zisizokuwa na faida.

Maorgozi ya kifedha yanahitajika kusaidio zaidi vimarishaji
huo wa uloshi wa masuiofu teno kwa  kipindi  kirefu
kijache, huku mikakati kifanywa kuhakikisha muamana wa

kifedha unaimarishwa.
Mataifa machanga na yanayoendelea kustawi kiuchuri

Huku ukuaji wa uchumi katika mataifa yaliye na ustawi mkubwa
wa kiuvchumi ukipungua kwa asilimia moja {20072 asilimia
2.7}, usfawi katka mataife machanga na vale yanayoendelea
kustawi ulipungua kwa asilimia 8.3 percent (2007 asilimic
8.3]. Mataifa ya Afrike yalishuhudia kupungua kwa asilimia
moja hadi asilimia 5.2 percent {2007 silimia ©.2 percent].

Ukugji katika mataifa machanga na yale yanayoendelea
kustow! ulitarajiwa kupungua kutoka asilimia 6.3 mname
2008 hadi asilimia 3.3 mname 2009, chini ya upeo
wa kupungua kwa ulashi wao uvagizaji bidhoo kutoka nje
na ufadhili wa kifedha, kushuke kwa bei za bidhoa na
masharti magumy zaidi ya uladhili kuicka nje (hasa kwa
mataifa yaliyokuwa na- kiosi kikvbwa cha  madeni ya
kigeni yasiyolipwa).

Misingi thabiti ya kiuchumi katika mataifa mengi machanga
imefoa fursa zaidi zo serm z maongozl kulko wakati
uliogita, jambe ambale liliscidia katike kuzuia kwe kiosi
kikubwa athari hive ya kupunguzwa kwa ufadhili wa kigeni
wa kifedha. Kwo muktadha huo, ingawn mataifo haya
yatakumbwa na kudorera kwa ukuaji wa kivchumi, ukuaji
wae unotargjiwa kubakia  ulipokuwa ama kuengezeka
kidoge ikilinganishwa na nyckati zengine kuliposhuhudiwe
mkurupuke wa muamana wa kiuchumi duniani. Mataita
yanayostawi Barani Afrika na kwengineko pia yamejiandaa
wyema wakati huu kukahiliana na changamate za kimaengozi
kutckana na kutekelezwa kwa  mipango  iliyoimarishwa
ya ustowishaji wa uchumi wa malaife machanga. Lakini
Bara lo Afrka like katka hali hafifu ya  kujikwamug
ikilinganishwea na mataite ya maeneo mengine kulokana na
viwango vyake wya umasikini no kulegemea kwa bidhaa

kuicka nchin za kigeni.

Uchumi wa Kenya

Mvaka wa 2008 ulianza kwa ugurmu kuhusiane na shughuli
zetu kufuatio athari za ghasie za baada ya uchaguzi katika

baadhi ya masoko yetu tunayoyashughulikia.
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affect our premivm mcome and reduce the value of new
business. The Group, along with other insurance companies
has experienced a turbulent 2008, Conseguently, the Group is
looking into ways of income diversification with the main project
for 2009 being the Mae Ridge Development.

Mae Ridge Development

The Group has emborked on the development of Mae Ridge

Development in the Runda area at an estimaied cost of over
KShs. 2 billion. locoied o few metres from Eagle Park which
had also been developed by the Pan Africa Group, the praject
will entail the construction of 81 high quality residential houses
which will be developed in three phases, with the first phase
of twenty houses expected lo be completed byjcnu.cry 2010.
The development is expected to provide o viabls investment

cpportunity for potential home owners and investers in the
property market.

MNeote of Appreciaticn

In canclusion, | toke this opportunity fo recognise with much
appreciation the service of the former Chief Executive, Mr
Andrew Greenwoad who before his resignation in Febroary
2008 had served the Group since December 2000, During
that peried, the Group redlised various milestones and we
thank him for his dedieated and outstanding eontribution
ta the growth of the Group. | also take the opportunity fo
welcome the Group's new Chief Executive, Tem Gitogo who
was appointed to that position in April 2008. Formerly the
General Manager for individual Life, he possesses a wealth of
experience in the financial services sector with a specialisation
in the Insurance industry having previously served in a senior
position in PricewaterhouseCoopers {Kenya and London] and
as the Group Finance Director af British American Insurance
Company Limited.

Orr behall of the Board of Direciors, let me take this opportunity
fo express my gratiude to Douglas lacey and John Burbidge
for their long and invaluable confribution fo the Group since
the arrival of African life info the Kenyan market through Pan
Alrica. We wish them every success in all that they choose
to undertake.

To my feliow directors, | thank them for thelr counsel, support,
dedication and diligence as members of the Board and also in

thair key service on the various Commitiees of the Board which

play = key role in the corporate governance of the Group.

Chairman's Statement confinved

We are grateful to our stakeholders, business parners, customers,
suppliers ond all those we are associaked with, without whose
support we could not have effectively faced the challenges of
the past year

| om alse grateful for our dedicated Management and staff who
have worked hard in the yvear under review and for remaining
focused on the gools and targers which we have set ourselves

as a group.

To our shoreholders, | thank them for the support and the
confidence they have confinued fo demensirate in their board

and management. -

John P N Simba, MBS OGW
Chairman

16 March 2009




Despite tough economic conditions, there was a strong grawth in
the life operating surplus which is attributable to the refention of
owr profirable book of business. Operating surplus incorporates
the underwrifing result but excludes investment income cn

shareholders’ assets.

The overdll gross premium increased by 21 percent to over KShs,
2.5 billion. Individual life premium af KShs. 1.5 billion realised
a growth of 23 percent which was below our expeciations. This
was mainly due to the adverse market conditions which further
impacted on new business margins, Corporate business had
a successiul year aftaining gross premium of KShs. 1 billion,
a growth of 18 percent. The Group Embedded Value, despite
the impact of volatility in the capital markeis, increased by 3
percent ta KShs. 3 hillion. This is ofter allowing for the KShs.
76.8 milion dividend paid during the year, relaiing 1o 2007,

Market capitalisation of Pon Africa Insurance Holdings
limited shares at the MNSE decreased by 38 percent over the
year to reach KShs, 2.97 billion [2007: KShs. 4.8 billion)
in line.with the general trend af the NSE. Due to unrealised
invesiment losses, the Basic loss per share is KShs, 2 [2007:
ProfitKShs. 3.08).

Dividend

As a result of the global economic uncertainty and the impacl
it may have on our business as well as the need to conserve
cash, coupled with our commitment to develop the Mae Ridgs
property in Runda, the Boord has cdopted o conservative
approach in respect of dividends and will not recommend the
payment of @ dividend o the sharehoiders o the forthcoming
&3rd Annual General Meeting. Should the business environment
significantly change, your Board will review this position and
recommend payment of an inferim dividend.

Reporting Standards

To enhance accountobility, corporale governance  and
disclesures, the Group during 2008, confinued to conform
to the wvarous inernational ond Group standards for

reporting including:

* Financial Reporfing: In occordance  with  the

Infernational Financial Reporfing Standards;

+ Risk Management Reporfing: n uccordance
with the stondards and guidslines of the Audit &

Risk Commities;

Chairman’s Statement continued

* Comorate Governance Repariing: In accordance with
the CMAs “Principles of Corporate Governance’ and
other s1clul0ry/ regulatory requirements;

¢ Subsidiary / Associated Compenies [/ Board
Commitiees; reports every quarter 1o the holding
company, Fan Africa Insurance Holdings Limited;

Statement of Corporate Governance

Cur Annual Reports consisiently confain our siafement of
corporate govemance. As a publicly lisied company, the Group
complies with the Capital Markets Authority ‘Guidelines on
Corporate Governance’. The Group is also part of the Sanlam
Group which has shared its knowledge and experience in this
area. The Board of Direclors has taken upon itself to adopt even
more stringent corporate governance standerds as demeanded

by the nature of our business.
Financial Reporting {FiRe} Awards

in 2008, Pan Africa Insurance Heldings Limited was awarded
the first pasition in the Corporate Governance category and the
2nd runnerts up in the insurance category based on our published
accounts for the year ended 31 December 2007 The award is
jointly sponsored by the institute of Cerfified Public Accountants
of Kenya, the Capital Markets Authority and the MNairobi Slock
Exchange. Since the incepfion of the awards in 2000, the
Group has continued fo win o FiRe Award every year. This is o
manifestation of the Groups continued focus on professionalism,

trensparency and excellence in financial reporting.
Changes to the Beard

In February 2008, Andrew Grecnwood resigned from the
posifion of the Chief Executive of the Group in erder o pursus
other interests. Tom Gitogo, the former Gereral Manages for
Individual Life; was appoinied 1o succeed him in April 2008,
Following his refirement, John Burbidge, a long serving member
of the Board, resigned in May 2008, Noman Kelly was
appointed as a Director fo replace Dovglas lacey who resigned
in March 2008,

Future Outlook

Going forward the insurance industry faces o tough year. The
global recession, o volatile capital market which has hed an
adverse eflect to the invesiment income together with rising

inflation are some of the faciors which will continue to negatively



and much fighter external financing constraints lespecially for
ecancmies with large external imbalances). Stonger econcmic
frameworks in many emerging sconomies have provided more
room for policy support o growth than in the past, helping
lo cushion the impact of this unprecedented external shock.
Accordingly, although these economies will experience saricus
slowdowns, their growth is projected fo remain at or above rates
seen during previous global downturns. Developing couniries in
Africa and elsewhere are clso better prepared this time to face
policy challenges because of improved macroscanamic policy
implemeriation, but the continent is in a weaker position than
mast other ragions because of its povarty levals and reliance on

commaodity exporls.
Kenyan Economy

2008 started as a difficult year with post elaction violence
adversely offeciing some of the markets we operate in, This
was compounded later in the year as the Global Finangial erisis
deepened. The 12 months averall inflation increased from 12
percent in December 2007 to 27 percent in December 2008.
The NSE index declined by 35 percent to 3521, The Kenya
Shilling weakened by 22.7 percent against the US Dollar 1o
close at KShs, 77.7 in December 2008.

Business Environment

Wa estimate ‘@ GDP growth of between 3 percent and 4
percent in the year 2008 which should slump further to between
2 percent and 3 percent in 2009, The expected slump is
atfributed to o dismal performance by various secfors of the
economy, waning demand fer various outputs and the effects of
the global economic crisis.

The agriculiural secior, recorded o decline of 10% in production
over eleven months to November 2008 mainly dus fo
unfervourable weather coupled with effecis of post election

vidlence and high ogricultural input costs.

There was mixed perfformonce in the manufactuiing sector in
the first eleven months of 2008: Cement production increased
by 18.9 percent; soda ash and beer production increased by
39.5 percent and 14.9 percent respactively; however, cigarette
praduction declined by 5.7 percent.

Tourism sector recorded o decline as iniemnational fourist arrivels
between January and MNovember 2008 period declined by 33.8
percent, from 952,356 visitors in the same peried of 2007

Chairman’s Statement Continuvad

fo 630,941 visitors. The ielecommunications seclor remained

vibrant with 2008 growth estimated at over 10%.

Kenya's balance of payments declined from o surplus of US$
473 miflion in the year to November 2007 to o deficit of US$
43 million in the year to November 2008 following a faster
widening in the current account deficit than the improvement in
the capital and financial account, The curent account deficit
widened mainly due to growth Tn merchandise imports that
surpassed the growth in exports of both goods and services.

The capital and financial account improved fo o surplus of US$
2,070 million in the year to November 2008 compared with @
surplus of US$ 1,557 millien in the year to November 2007
Net private medium and longterm financial inflows improved
from US$ 5 million in the year to MNovember 2007 o US$
561 million in the vaar to Nevember 2008 reflecting increased
foreign direct investment inflows and other private medium and
longterm financial flows.

The Central Bank confinues fo utilise prudent fiscal and monetary
policies in conirolling distorlions in the economy.

Insurance Industry

In a bid to comply with a directive from the Minister of Finance
that long term insurance companies increase their paid "up
capital from KShs 50 million 1o KShs 150 million, Pan Africa Life
Assurance Limited increased its poid up share capital from KShs
126.,6 million to KShs. 200 million.

The Government of Kenya, thicugh the Minisiry of Finance intends
to review and implement an apprepriate legal and regulatory
framewaork governing the insurance industry in Kenya in order
to promote the efficiency and effeciiveness of the industry. To this
end, a task force has been established to collact views, opinions
and recommendations from insurance companies and other key
slakeholders. As o Group, we infend to actively paricipate in
this exercise and lock lorward o a better regulated insurance
industry which in turn will positively impact the  economy and
the insurance market in particular.

Group Performance

The Group recorded a deficit of KShs. 96 million compared to a
surplus of KShs. 147 million reported in 2007 This deficit is os
a result of unrealised investment losses on sharcholders’ assets

as well as @ share of unrealised loss from an associate. These

losses nomimsfcndiﬂg; our’ core operations remain sound.




Chairman’s Statement

| am delighted to present o you the results of the Graup for the financial
year ended 31 December 2008,

Global Ecenomy

Following the emergence of the Global Economic crisis in 2008,
IMF estimates the warld growth for 2008 at 3.4 percent, down from
5 percent in 2007. Global output and trade plummeted in the fincl
months of 2008 as the financial crisis persistad. All major equity
indices dropped by wide margins in 2008. With pelicies failing
to dispel uncertainty, this has caused asset valves 1o fall sharply
across advanced and emerging economies, decreasing household
wealth and thersby putting downward pressure on consumer
demand. In addition, the associaled high level of uncertainty has
prompted  households and businesses io postpone expenditures,
reducing demand for consumer and capifal goods. Al the same fime,
widespread distuptions T’ credit is consraining household spending

and curtailing production and trade.

Comprehensive policy acfions are being implemenied 1o oddress
the: root couses of financial stress and fo suppert demand, but it will
take time fo reap their full benefits. The inifiglives include programs to
purchase distressed assets, use of public funds to recapitalise banks
and provide comprehensive guarantees, and a coordinaied reduction

in policy rates by major central banks.

Wordd growth is projected to fall t5 ¥ percent in 2009, its lowsst rate
since World War 11, Despite widetanging policy actions, financicl
stain remain acute, puling down the real economy. A sustained
economic recovery will not be possible until the functionality of the
tinancial secior is restored and credit markets are unclogged. For this
purpose, new policy inifictives are needed to produce eredible loan
loss recognition; sort financial companics according to their medivm-
term viability; and provide public suppor to vioble institufions by
injecting capital and carving out bod assets. Monetary and fiscal
policies nead 1o become even more suppertive of aggregate demand
and sustain this stance over the foreseeable future, while developing

strategies fa ensure longterm fiscal susiainability.
Emerging ond Developing Economies

While growth in the advanced economies declined 1o 1 percent
{2007 2.7 percent], growth in emerging and developing econamies
daclined to 6.3 percent [2007: 8.3 percenl]. Alfrica experienced @
decline of 1 percent ta 5.2 percent {2007 .2 percent).

Growth in emerging and developing economies is expecied lo slow
sharply from 6.3 percent in 2008 to 3.3 petcent in 2009, under the
drag of falling export demand and financing, lower commedity prices,







Mercy Kaban gi, - .
Public Relations Manager

ale Business

gvember 1990, He holds a BSc Degree
lsa on Associate, Cuslomer Sarvice of

“{Hons). He holds further cudlfi

| Luke Magambo,

Divisional Manager, Finance & Adrnlms?ruhon

' Deputy Divisional
~ Joined Pan Africa Lie?




: -msiorrouo 53

s B Appnm‘led 1o fhe Board in: Deoernber 200]‘ .

'ﬂecupnllnn' ) o
'Pm:et Triad Aocma:

e Bacheltyuff\rduladure L

; Relevw Dil'\eclotsl'lips: -

- Pan Alftioa ife Assurance Limiied cnd
subsidicies in the Pan Aiica Insuranes Group
of Compnm&e

N .IOHN PN smn (541
. !Chm;man) ] R
: Appomhed as Chmrmu in Murch 2.002.

. -Occupudun- B R
Lm'ryer Poriner in S\mbn &Sirnbu ﬁdvmuhes-

. Profossional Guultﬁ:u:lon. -
L Admo&#?a High' Cw'?o\‘l(mw

._" 4 Qunhﬁ' i

Bachelor of taw fnivesrsity of Gares-Salaan

Other Relevant Chqlrmﬂnshms.
APA insurance Limiled

Relewnl Direttorships:
Pan Africa bife Assumnes Limited and \:nher
subsicharies within tha Pon Africa lisuronce

Growp of Companies




BALOOBHA! PATEL (70}

Agprcinted 1o he Board in Decanbes 2007

Maraging Direcior, “hemswedid Scforts Limiistt
Rafevant Directorships: .

pan Afica Lifs Asseance Limitad, and subsdiaties in 2
pan Arichsurgdoe Tioup of Companies

+ . Acadkemic Qualiications:
- MEA ISteﬂmbcsd? Uhivversty)

| Relessant Directorships:
Srbom imied; Pan Afica L Agsurance: Limited,
 and miceidiacs in the Pon Abca nsurcnce Sroup

s hssipancs Limil
Africa Insurance Group



Report of the Directors

The Directors submit their report logether with the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2008 that disciose the
state of affairs of the Company and its subsidiaries.

Incorporation

The limited licbility company whose shares are traded publicly in the Mairobi Stock Exchange {MSE} was incorporaled in Kenya on
26 Oclober 1946 under certificate of incorporation rumber C.10/46 under the Kenyan Companies Act [Chopter 486 of the Laws
of Kenya) ard is domiciled in Kenya.

Principal Activities

The principal acfivity ef the Group, through its subsidiary Pan Africa Life Assurance Limited, is the underwriting of olf classes of longrterm
insurance business as defined by the Insurance Act [Chapter 487 of the Laws of Kenya), with the exception of industrial life insurance.
The Group has inferests in a wholly owned invesiment company, PA Securities Limited, Mae Properties Limited [dormant), Chem Chemi
Mineral Water Limited [dorman and an associote general insuranca company, ARA Insurance Limited.

Results

The loss for the year of KShs, 95,999 000 {2007: profit of: KShs. 146,990,000 has been deducted from the retained sarnings.
Dividends

The Directors do not recommend a dividend (2007 KShs, 76,800,000} to the shareholders of the 63rd Annual General Meeting of
the Company.

Finencial Risk Management Obijectives and Pelicies

The acliviies of the Company and its subsidiaries expase it o a variety of financial risks, including underwriting risk, credit risk and
the sffects of changes in debt and equity market prices, and interest rales. Therelore the risk management programme focuses on the
identificafion and managament of risks and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on its financial performance. These include the -
use of underwriting guidelinas and capacity limits, reinsurance planning, credit palicy governing the ceceptance of clients, and defined
criteria for the approval of intermediaries and reinsurers. Investment policies are in place to enable optimal liquidity management and
to maximise refurns within an acceptable level of risk.

Autherization

The consalidated financial siatements of Pan Africa Insurance Holdings Limited for the year ended 31 December 2008 were authorised
for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on 16 March 2009, The owners have the power to omend the financial
stafements afier issue.

Direcfors

The Board of Directors who served during the year end up fo the date of this report are:
1] John P N Simba [Chairman) L _
2) Tom Gitogo (Chief Executive} [Appointed 1 April 2008 ="
3} John A Burbidge (Resigned 21 May 2008]
4] Margaret M Dawes
3} James M Gitoha
6} Dorman | Kelly {Appointed 21 May 2008)
7) Baloobhai Patel
8) Douglas M lacey Resigned 81 March 2008}\/
2 William R Dommisse

v

Auditors

The Group's auditors, Emst & Young, have indicated their willingnass to conlinue in office In accordance with Section 139 (2] of the
Campaniss Act.

By Order of the Board
Emma Wachira

Company Secratary
16 March 2009
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Five Year Group Review

Profit and loss account (KShs million)

2004 2005 2004 2007
KShs’000 KShs'Q00 KShs"000 KShs' 000

KShs'000

Investment income 194 219 404 191 282
Opercting profit before Income tax . @1 175 451 135 170
: %
Profit/ {loss) attribuied o shareholders 23 176 425 147 [36)
Cividerds - 48 58 &9 76

Long term insurance business

Gross premium income 241 1,169 1,397 2,070 2,510
Mei sremium income 730 1,031 1,248 |, 834 2318
Net bensfits and claims paid 580 " B45 051 1,278 1,526
Balance sheet

S-areholders’ funds 799 @31 1,303 1,362 1,188
«ng term business funds 1,784 2,196 2,407 3,237 3,694
Share capital 240 240 240 240 240
Toral assets 3,045 3,696 4,684 5,863 6,094
Key indicators

Bas'e earnings/ (less) per share [KShs.) 1.95 3.68 887 306 {1.99)
Dividends per share {KShs ) 1.00 1.20 1.44 1.60

Merket capitalisation at year end [KShs. million) 1,032 1,920 4,372 4,776 2,976
Company share prices at the NSE

High _ 35 472 100 122 o0
Low 18 22 34 75 “ 62
Share price of year end 22 40 92 100 &2
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Five Year Group Review

K$hs 0G0 «KShs’000 K5hs"000 KShs"000 KShs"QQ0

Twestment income 1694 218 A0 et 282
Operaiing profit bafors income tox - 31 175 451 136 170
Profit,/ Noss) atiributed 1o shoreholders 03 V76 425 147 [98)
Dividerds : 48 38 &% 76

Long term insurance business

Grass premivm income 241 1,169 1,397 2.070 2,510
Na: wemivm income 70 1,037 1,248 1,834 2,318
Met benefits and cloims paid 580 845 951 i.278 1,526

Balance sheet

S-nreholders’ funds 790 921 1,303 1,362 1,186
Long igem business funds 1,785 2196 2,402 3,237 3,694
Share capital 240 240 240 240 240
Todol assels 3,045 3,666 4,684 5,863 &, 094
Key indicators

Bosic eamings/ {loss) per share [KShs.| 195 3.48 8.57 3.06 {1.99
Dividends per share [KShs.) 1.00 1.20 1.44 1.60

Market capitalisation af year end [KShs, milliont 1,032 1,920 4,300 AT 2,576
Company shoare prices at the NSE

High 35 A7 100 122 et}
Low 18 22 34 75 62

Share price af year end 22 40 Q2 100 &2
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